
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 05, 2022 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of November 21, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Old Business 

2. Reconsider action taken relative to a resolution approving and authorizing execution of an 
Agreement for Private Development, and approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed 
conveying certain city-owned real estate to CF Storage, L.L.C. 

3. Pass Ordinance #3020, amending Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code 
of Ordinances relative to use of consumer fireworks within the City limits, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

4. Pass Ordinance #3021, amending Section 18-23(5), Powers and duties of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing 2/3 majority vote required by City 
Council to approve amendments to the City's comprehensive plan that are disapproved by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, upon its third & final consideration. 

5. Pass Ordinance #3022, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
removing the 2/3 majority vote required by City Council to approve zoning amendments that are 
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission, upon its third & final consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

6. Receive and file the resignation of Mary Carlson as a member of the Visitors & Tourism Board. 

7. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Jim O'Loughlin, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/2025. 
b) Lindi Roelofse, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/2025. 

8. Receive and file a communication from the Mayor relative to the appointment of Noah Hackbart as 
Student Liaison, term ending 04/30/2023. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

9. Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to certified lists for the 
following positions: 
a) Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Specialist. 
b) Engineering Technician I. 

10. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of October 2022. 

11. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Cedar Falls Family Restaurant, 2627 Center Street, Class B beer - renewal. 
b) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
c) Lifestyle Inn, 5826 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
d) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) Hy-Vee Fast and Fresh, 6527 University Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine – change in 
ownership. 
f) Hansen's Dairy, 123 East 18th Street, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

12. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

13. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to Personnel Policy 809: Disciplinary Procedures, 
for the City of Cedar Falls. 

14. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to Personnel Policy 903: Grievance Procedure, for 
the City of Cedar Falls. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with The Greg Prothman Company 
to perform recruitment services relative to the position of Principal Engineer. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with IFC Studios relative to the 
Cedar Falls Public Library Branding Project. 

17. Resolution approving and adopting a Recreation Fee Schedule to become effective January 1, 2023. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Subaward Agreement with the Iowa Department 
of Homeland Security and Emergency Management Division (HSEMD) for Building Resilient 
Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) Program grant funding relative to Stormwater Resilience 
Planning. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments (INRCOG) for grant administration services of an Iowa Department of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management Division (HSEMD) Building Resilient Infrastructure 
and Communities (BRIC) Program grant relative to Stormwater Resilience Planning. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of two Vacancy Agreements, in conjunction with the 
Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

21. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Boulder Contracting, 
LLC for the 2021 Street Patching Project. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contracted Education Proposal with Black 
Hawk County Conservation (BHCC) thru a partnership with Hartman Reserve Nature Center to 
provide public outreach and educational programs relative to improving water quality for the period of 
July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2026. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amended and Substituted Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with Tooth Trio, LLC relative to a post-construction stormwater 
management plan for 9219 University Avenue.  

2



Page 3 of 3 

24. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with Community United Child Care Centers (CUCCC) relative to a post-construction 
stormwater management plan for 5109 Nordic Drive. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with D & D Midwest Investments, L.L.C. relative to a post-construction stormwater 
management plan for 5630 Westminster Drive. 

26. Resolution setting December 19, 2022 as the date of public hearing on a proposal to grant city-
owned real estate to Cedar Falls Utilities by means of a non-exclusive permanent easement for the 
relocation of utilities. 

27. Resolution determining the necessity, and setting December 13, 2022 as the date of consultation 
and January 3, 2023 as the date of public hearing on a proposed Southwest Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Plan for a proposed urban renewal area. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

28. Allow Bills and Claims for December 5, 2022. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Executive Session 

29. Executive Session to discuss confidential records per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(a) to review or 
discuss records which are required or authorized by state or federal law to be kept confidential. 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, NOVEMBER 21, 2022 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: Harding. Mayor Green led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

54043 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of November 7, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54044 -  Rosemary Beach, 3018 Sage Road, shared an article from Sturgis, Michigan 

about William Sturgis and his great granddaughter’s visit to Cedar Falls. 
 
  Mary Brammer, 104 East 9th Street, commented on Hugh Pettersen and the 

planting of replacement trees on Seerley Boulevard, Hearst 2.0 and other 
College Hill improvements and cultural experiences, and recognized various 
individuals who supported these initiatives. 

 
  Cedar Valley Homebuilders Association Executive Officer Bob Manning, 2908 

West 3rd Street, commented on buildable residential lots in Cedar Falls, building 
permit fees and the lack of affordable housing. 

 
  Craig Fairbanks, 405 Spruce Hills Drive, commended Public Safety on the care 

of his brother during a recent fire. Mr. Fairbanks also commented on the 
availability of building lots and requested the City make the process more friendly 
to home builders. 

 
54045 - Public Safety Director Berte spoke about the promotions of Captain Heuer and 

Lieutenant Barron, and the swearing in of 2 reserve officers. 
 
54046- Mayor Green announced the continuation of the public hearing on the City’s 

FFY21 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Programs. The 
Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the proposed 
report. Upon being advised that there were no written communications on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. Community Development Director Sheetz 
provided a brief summary of CAPER. There being no one else present wishing to 
speak about the report, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the 
next order of business. 

 
54047 -    It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #22,975, 

approving and authorizing submission of the City’s FFY21 Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Programs, be adopted. Following due 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,975 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54048 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of November 

14, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposal to enter 
into an Agreement for Private Development, and to consider conveyance of 
certain city-owned real estate to CF Storage, L.L.C. It was then moved by Dunn 
and seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54049 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed proposal. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City 
Administrator Gaines provided a summary of the proposal. There being no one 
else present wishing to speak about the proposal, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53050 -  It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Schultz that a resolution approving and 

authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development, and approving 
and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying certain city-owned 
real estate to CF Storage, L.L.C, be adopted. Following comments and questions 
by Councilmembers Sires, deBuhr, Ganfield, Schultz, Kruse and Dunn, and 
responses by developer Brian Wingert, 2110 Flynn Drive, City Administrator 
Gaines, Mayor Green, and Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz. Nay: Ganfield, deBuhr, Kruse. 
Abstain: Sires. Motion failed.  

 
54051 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3020, 

amending Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to use of consumer fireworks within the City limits, be passed 
upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse. 
Nay: Dunn. Motion carried. 

 
54052 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #3021, 

amending Section 18-23(5), Powers and duties of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing 2/3 majority vote 
required by City Council to approve amendments to the City's comprehensive 
plan that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission, be passed 
upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, deBuhr, Kruse. Nay: Dunn, 
Schultz. Motion carried. 

 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

54053 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3022, 
amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing 
the 2/3 majority vote required by City Council to approve zoning amendments 
that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission, be passed upon 
its second consideration. Following a comment by Craig Fairbanks, 405 Spruce 
Hills Drive, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, deBuhr, Kruse. 
Nay: Dunn, Schultz. Motion carried. 

 
54054 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of November 7, 
2022 relative to the following items: 
a) Library Interviews – Michael Graziano and Lindi Roelofse. 
b) Audit Report. 
c) Review of TIF and Standard Incentive Policies. 
d) Cedar Falls Economic Development Corp. Update. 
e) Cedar Falls High School Pool Fundraising – “Jump In”. 

 Receive and file the following resignations/vacancies relative to members of 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Jordyn Beranek, Human Rights Commission. 
b) Andrew Stensland, Visitors & Tourism Board. 

 Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of College Hill Partnership relative to FY23 
Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) funds and an FY23 
Economic Development Grant. 

 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Urban Pie, 200 State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  
b) Five Corners Liquor & Wine, 809 East 18th Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

 Motion carried unanimously. 

54055 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #22,976, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 

mow the property located at 1720 Quail Ridge Road. 

 Resolution #22,977, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 8702 University Avenue. 

 Resolution #22,978, approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special 
Promissory Note for property located at 210 West 22nd Street. 

 Resolution #22,979, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract with 
House of Hope relative to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding 
for service agencies. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 Resolution #22,980, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract with 
Northeast Iowa Food Bank relative to Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funding for service agencies. 

 Resolution #22,981, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract with 
Pathways Behavioral Services relative to Community Development Block Grant 
CDBG) funding for service agencies. 

 Resolution #22,982, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with AECOM Technical 
Services, Inc. for design services relative to the North Cedar Heights Area 
Reconstruction Project - Phase II. 

 Resolution #22,983, approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase 
Agreement and a Compensation Estimate, and approving and accepting two 
Temporary Construction Easements, in conjunction with the Main Street 
Reconstruction Project. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,976 through #22,983 duly passed and 
adopted. 

54056 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Resolution #22,984, 
approving and adopting Summary Plan Descriptions (SPD) for the City of Cedar 
Falls Health Benefit Plans, be adopted. Following a question by Councilmember 
Ganfield and response by City Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put the question on 
the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse. Nay: None. Motion Carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,984 duly passed and adopted. 

54057 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz that the bills and claims of 
November 21, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse. Nay: 
None. Motion carried. 

   
54058 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:46 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

7

Item 1.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: November 8, 2022 

SUBJECT:      CF Storage, LLC Economic Development Project 
 
 

INTRODUCTION AND DESCRIPION OF PROJECT 
 
For the past several months, staff has been working with officials with CF Storage, LLC 
toward the construction of a new mini-storage facility on 4.7 acres of land along 
Production Drive, just south of W. Viking Road. The proposed project will occur on Lot 
18 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I (4.7 acres total of which approximately 
3.1 acres is buildable after easement and setback requirements). The proposed project 
will have a minimum building valuation of $1,400,000, and the project is projected to 
begin next spring. 
 
The plan shows a total of 205 units, covering over 30,000 square feet of building area. 
Construction of these units will begin in Spring of 2023. Also, as part of the agreement, 
CF Storage, LLC has a Right of First Refusal on Lot 17 to the south for a period of 3 
years. If they choose to acquire that lot, they would construct an additional 20,000+ 
square feet of buildings, with an additional $1,000,000 in taxable value.   

 
COMPANY PROFILE 

 
CF Storage, LLC is a partnership of two Cedar Falls residents seeking to open and self 
manage a high quality storage facility in the Cedar Falls South Industrial Park. Most 
local facilities are owned and operated remotely by large companies not based in the 
Cedar Valley. The partners have successfully built and managed over 700 units across 
NE Iowa and are now looking to improve the self-storage customer experience here in 
Cedar Falls.  
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES 

Land Incentive 

 

For the proposed CF Storage, LLC project, the company would receive at no cost, Lot 
18 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I (4.7 acres total of which approximately 

8

Item 2.



3.1 acres is buildable after easement and setback requirements) in the West Viking 
Road Industrial Park. This land incentive is consistent with our general economic 
incentive guidelines of providing one acre of non-restricted building area for each 
10,000 +/- square feet of new building space. Therefore, staff feels that the proposed 
30,000 total square feet of building area with a $1,400,000 minimum building valuation 
is consistent with prior City land incentives for comparable projects.  

Property Tax Incentive 
 

There are no tax incentives included for this project. 

Conclusion 

 
As this memorandum indicates, CF Storage, LLC is proposing to construct 30,000 
square feet of buildings, on 4.7 acres of land along Production Drive, just south of W. 
Viking Road. The proposed new construction building project will have a minimum 
building valuation of $1,400,000 and a total Minimum Assessed Valuation of $1,710,000 
including land. Construction would commence next spring with completion anticipated 
within 12-24 months. Also, the agreement includes a Right of First Refusal on the 
adjacent lot, for a period of 3 years. This adjacent lot would allow for expansion of the 
project to include 20,000+ square feet of additional building area, along with a building 
valuation of $1,000,000. 
 

The Agreement for Private Development by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
and CF Storage, LLC has been reviewed by both parties, and is attached for your 
review and approval. 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt and approve the following: 
 
1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private 

Development and a Minimum Assessment Agreement by and between the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and CF Storage, LLC, and approving and authorizing 
execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to certain real estate to CF 
Storage, LLC. 

 
If you have any questions regarding the proposed CF Storage, LLC economic 
development project, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
         
        
 

9

Item 2.



Venture Way

Poplar
Hollow Ln

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Te
ch

no
log

y
Pl

Arbors Dr

Arbor Way Blvd

W Viking Rd

Timber Cove Dr

Pr
od

uct
ion

Dr

Capital Way

I

Ashley
Furniture

Distribution
Center

Project Location

CF Storage, LLC
30,000 Square Foot
Storage Facility

Bossard

Zuidberg 10

Item 2.



 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT  
 
 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 
 
 
 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 

AND 
 
 

CF STORAGE, L.L.C. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

11

Item 2.



2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS………………………………………………..  6 

Section 1.1.  Definitions……………………………………………… 6 

 

ARTICLE II.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES………………  8 

Section 2.1.  Representations and Warranties of the City……………  8 

Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties of Developer.….……..  9 

 

ARTICLE III.  CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS…..  12 

Section 3.1.  Construction of Phase One Project Minimum                                                                     

Improvements…………………………………………………. 12 

Section 3.2 Building Permit Valuation Amount…………………….  12 

Section 3.3.  Construction Plans……………………………………… 12 

Section 3.4.  Commencement and Completion of Construction……… 13 

Section 3.5.  Certificate of Completion………………………………  13 

 

ARTICLE IV.  RESTRICTIONS UPON USE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 14 

Section 4.1.  Restrictions on Use……………………………………… 14 

 

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE………………………………………………… 15 

Section 5.1.  Insurance Requirements………………………………… 15 

Section 5.2. Condemnation………………………………………….. 17 

Section 5.3. Reconstruction or Payment…………………………….. 17 

 

ARTICLE VI.  MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT AND OTHER 

COVENANTS……………………………………………………………….. 17 

 Section 6.1 Execution of Minimum Assessment Agreement………  17 

Section 6.2. Maintenance of Properties……………………………..  18 

Section 6.3 Maintenance of Records……………………………….  18 

Section 6.4. Compliance with Laws………………………………...  18 

Section 6.5. Real Property Taxes….……………………………….  18 

Section 6.6.   Sales Tax………………………………………………  19 

Section 6.7.   Utility Usage…………………….…………………….  19 

Section 6.8.   Annual Certification………………..………………….  20 

Section 6.9 Use of Tax Increments…………………………………  20 

Section 6.10. Opinion of Counsel……………………………………  20 

 Section 6.11. Provisions To Be Included In Leases Covering Development 

   Property……………………………………………….  20 

12

Item 2.



3 

 

 Section 6.12 Relocation .......................................................................  20 

 

ARTICLE VII.  PROHIBITIONS AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND 

TRANSFER………………………………………………………………….  21 

Section 7.1.  Representation As to Development……………………… 21 

Section 7.2.  Prohibition Against Transfer of Property and Assignment of 

Agreement……………..………………………………  22 

Section 7.3.  Approvals………………………………………………  23 

Section 7.4 Transfer of Interest in Developer or Transfer of 

  Interest in Development Property to Permitted  

  Transferees .......................................................................  24 

Section 7.5   Prohibition Against Use as Non-Taxable or Centrally 

  Assessed Property……………………………………….. 24 

 

ARTICLE VIII.  CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY; 

CONDITIONS………………………………………………………… 25 

Section 8.1.  Conveyance of Development Property…………………  25 

Section 8.2.   Form of Deed…………………………………………… 25 

Section 8.3.   Condition of Property; Care and Maintenance…………. 25 

Section 8.4.   Environmental Matters…………………………………. 25 

Section 8.5.   Survey and Platting…………………………………….. 26 

Section 8.6.   Time and Place for Closing and Delivery of Deed……... 26 

Section 8.7.   Recordation of Deed……………………………………. 26 

Section 8.8.   Abstract of Title………………………………………… 26 

Section 8.9.   Conditions Precedent to Conveyance of Property……… 26 

Section 8.10. Failure to Commence Construction….…………….......  27 

Section 8.11. No Partial Property Tax Exemption…………………....           27 

 

ARTICLE IX.  DEVELOPER’S RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL……………           28 

 Section 9.1. Grant of Right of First Refusal………………………….  28 

 Section 9.2. Right of First Refusal to Acquire Right of First 

           Refusal Property………………………………………… 28 

 Section 9.3. Expiration of Right of First Refusal…………………….. 31 

 Section 9.4. Right of First Refusal Personal to Developer…………… 32 

 Section 9.5. Resale of Right of First Refusal Property Within 

           Five Years……………………………………………….. 32 

 

ARTICLE X.  INDEMNIFICATION………………………………………  32 

Section 10.1.  Release and Indemnification Covenants……………  32 

 

ARTICLE XI.  REMEDIES………………………………………………  33 

Section 11.1.  Events of Default Defined…………….………………  33 

Section 11.2   Remedies on Default………………………………….  35 

13

Item 2.



4 

 

Section 11.3  No Remedy Exclusive………………………………..  36 

Section 11.4  No Implied Waiver……………………………………  36 

Section 11.5   Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses……..  36 

 

ARTICLE XII.  MISCELLANEOUS………………………………………..  36 

Section 12.1.  Conflict of Interest……………………………………  36 

Section 12.2  Non-Discrimination…………………………………… 37 

Section 12.3.  Notices………………………………………………...  37 

Section 12.4.  Titles of Articles and Sections………………………… 37 

Section 12.5.  Provisions Not Merged With Deed……………………… 38 

Section 12.6.  Governing Law………………………………………… 38 

Section 12.7.  Entire Agreement……………………………………… 38 

Section 12.8.    Successors and Assigns……………………………  38 

Section 12.9.    Termination Date……………………………………… 38 

Section 12.10.  Memorandum of Agreement………..……………….. 38 

Section 12.11.  Immediate Undertaking……………………………… 38 

Section 12.12.  No Partnership or Joint Venture……………………… 38 

Section 12.13.  Captions……………………………………………… 38 

Section 12.14.  Number and Gender of Words………………………  38 

Section 12.15.  Invalid Provisions……………………………………  39 

Section 12.16.  Multiple Counterparts… ……………………………  39 

Section 12.17.  Authorization………… ……………………………..  39 

Section 12.18.  Time of the Essence… ………………………………  39 

Section 12.19.  Survival…………… … ……………………………..  39 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 Development Property…………………………………. 42 

EXHIBIT A-2 Right of First Refusal Property………………………… 43 

EXHIBIT B   Phase One Project Minimum Improvements………….  44 

EXHIBIT C  Certificate of Completion……………………………… 45 

EXHIBIT D  Minimum Assessment Agreement…………………….. 47 

EXHIBIT E  Form of Legal Opinion………………………………… 51 

EXHIBIT F  Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development... 53 

EXHIBIT G  Form of Deed…………………………………………..  56 

  

14

Item 2.



5 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT (hereinafter called 

"Agreement"), is made on or as of the _____ day of __________________, 2022, by and 

between the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter called "City"), 

established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the authorization of 

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2021 (Chapter 403 hereinafter called "Urban 

Renewal Act"); and CF Storage, L.L.C.,  (hereinafter called the "Developer"),  an Iowa 

limited liability company having its principal place of business at 201 Washington Street, 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613. 

 

 WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, in furtherance of the objectives of the Urban Renewal Act, the City has 

undertaken a program for the development of an economic development area and, in this 

connection, is engaged in carrying out urban renewal project activities in an area known as 

the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area (“Area” or “Urban 

Renewal Area”) as set forth in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Plan, as amended (“Plan” or “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the foregoing Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, has been 

recorded among the land records in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk County, Iowa; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to acquire certain real property located in the 

foregoing Urban Renewal Plan and as more particularly described in Exhibit A-1 attached 

hereto and made a part hereof (which property as so described is hereinafter referred to as 

the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer is willing to develop the Development Property for and 

in accordance with the uses specified in the Urban Renewal Plan and in accordance with 

this Agreement by constructing certain Phase One Project Minimum Improvements (as 

hereafter defined) on the Development Property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City believes that the development of the Development Property 

pursuant to this Agreement and the fulfillment generally of this Agreement, are in the vital 

and best interests of the residents of the City, and in accord with the public purposes and 

provisions of the applicable State and local laws and requirements under which the 

foregoing project has been undertaken and is being assisted, including but not limited to 

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual obligations of 

the parties hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the others as follows: 

15

Item 2.



6 

 

 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS 

 

 Section 1.1.  Definitions.  In addition to other definitions set forth in this Agreement, 

all capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the following 

meanings unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 

 

 Agreement means this Agreement and all Exhibits hereto, as the same may be from 

time to time modified, amended or supplemented. 

 

 Assessor's Minimum Actual Value means the minimum actual value, before rollback, 

of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements and the Development Property for 

calculation and assessment of real property taxes as set forth in the Minimum Assessment 

Agreement.  

 

 Certificate of Completion means a certification in the form of the certificate attached 

hereto as Exhibit C and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 

 

 City or Cedar Falls means the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or any successor to its 

functions.   

 

 Code of Iowa means the Code of Iowa, 2021, as amended. 

 

 Construction Plans means the plans, specifications, drawings and related documents 

of the construction work to be performed by the Developer on the Development Property; 

the plans (a) shall be as detailed as the plans, specifications, drawings and related documents 

which are submitted to the building inspector of the City, and (b) shall include at least the 

following: (1) site plan; (2) foundation plan; (3) basement plans; (4) floor plan for each 

floor; (5) cross sections of each (length and width); (6) elevations (all sides); and (7) 

landscape plan. 

 

 County means the County of Black Hawk, Iowa. 

 

 Deed means the form of Quit Claim Deed substantially in the form contained in 

Exhibit G attached hereto, by which the City shall convey the Development Property to the 

Developer. 

 

 Developer means CF Storage, L.L.C.  

 

 Development Property means that portion of the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 

Corridor Urban Renewal Project Plan of the City described in Exhibit A-1 hereto. 

 

 Event of Default means any of the events described in Section 11.1 of this Agreement. 

16

Item 2.



7 

 

 

 Mortgage means any mortgage or security agreement in which the Developer has 

granted a mortgage or other security interest in the Development Property, or any portion 

or parcel thereof, or any improvements constructed thereon. 

 

 Net Proceeds means any proceeds paid by an insurer to the Developer under a policy 

or policies of insurance required to be provided and maintained by the Developer pursuant 

to Article V of this Agreement and remaining after deducting all expenses (including fees 

and disbursements of counsel) incurred in the collection of such proceeds. 

 

 Ordinance shall mean Ordinance(s) of the City under which the taxes levied on the 

taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall be divided, with a portion of said taxes to 

be paid into the Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund, referred to and authorized 

by Section 403.19(2) of the Code of Iowa. 

 

 Phase One Project Minimum Improvements shall mean the construction of a Storage 

Facility totaling at least 30,000 square feet of finished space, together with all related site 

improvements described in the Construction Plans, as outlined in Exhibit B hereto. 

 

 Phase Two Project Minimum Improvements shall mean the construction of a Storage 

Facility Expansion totaling at least 20,000 square feet of finished space on the Development 

Property or on the Right of First Refusal Property. 

 

 Project shall mean the construction and operation of the Phase One and Phase Two 

Project Minimum Improvements, as described in this Agreement and the Exhibits hereto. 

 

 Right of First Refusal Property means that portion of the Cedar Falls Unified 

Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Project Plan of the City described in Exhibit A-2 

hereto. 

 

 State means the State of Iowa. 

 

 Storage Facility means the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Storage Facility Expansion means the Phase Two Project Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Tax Increments means the property tax increment revenues on the Phase One and 

Phase Two Project Minimum Improvements and Development Property divided and made 

available to the City for deposit in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 

Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund, under the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code 

of Iowa and the Ordinance. 

 

17

Item 2.



8 

 

 Termination Date means the date of expiration of the Assessment Agreement, as 

provided in Section 12.9 of this Agreement. 

 

 Unavoidable Delays means delays resulting from acts or occurrences outside the 

reasonable control of the party claiming the delay including but not limited to storms, floods, 

fires, explosions or other casualty losses, unusual weather conditions, strikes, boycotts, 

lockouts or other labor disputes, delays in transportation or delivery of material or 

equipment, litigation commenced by third parties, or the acts of any federal, State or local 

governmental unit (other than the Party claiming the delay). 

 

 Urban Renewal Area means the area included within the boundaries of the Cedar Falls 

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, as amended. 

 

 Urban Renewal Plan means the Urban Renewal Plan approved in respect of the Cedar 

Falls Unified Highway 58 Urban Corridor Renewal Plan, described in the preambles hereof. 

 

 Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund means the special fund of the City 

created under the authority of Section 403.19(2) of the Code and the Ordinance, which fund 

was created in order to pay the principal of and interest on loans, monies advanced to or 

indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including bonds or other 

obligations issued under the authority of Chapters 15A, 403, or 384 of the Code, incurred 

by the City to finance or refinance in whole or in part projects undertaken pursuant to the 

Urban Renewal Plan for the Urban Renewal Area. 

 

   ARTICLE II.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

 

 Section 2.1.  Representations and Warranties of the City.  The City makes the 

following representations and warranties:  

 

 (a) The City is a municipal corporation and political subdivision organized under 

the provisions of the Constitution and the laws of the State and has the power 

to enter into this Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder. 

 

 (b) This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered 

by the City and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the 

Developer, is in full force and effect and is a valid and legally binding 

instrument of the City enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as the 

same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws 

relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally. 

 

 (c) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, in 

18

Item 2.



9 

 

conflict with, nor will they result in a breach of, the terms, conditions or 

provisions of any contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, agreement 

or instrument of whatever nature to which the City is now a party or by which 

it is bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the foregoing. 

 

 (d) The City has not received any notice from any State or federal official that the 

activities of the Developer with respect to the Development Property may or 

will be in violation of any environmental law or regulation (other than those 

notices, if any, of which the Developer has previously been notified in writing).  

The City is not currently aware of any State or federal claim filed or planned to 

be filed by any party relating to any violation of any local, State or federal 

environmental law, regulation or review procedure applicable to the 

Development Property, and the City is not currently aware of any violation of 

any local, State or federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure 

which would give any person a valid claim under any State or federal 

environmental statute with respect thereto. 

 

 (e) The City will cooperate fully with the Developer in resolution of any building, 

traffic, parking, trash removal or public safety problems which may arise in 

connection with the design, construction and operation of the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements, including but not limited to any problems which may 

arise with respect to traffic at the intersections where access drives on the 

Development Property meet roadways or streets owned by the City. 

 

 (f) The City would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement without the 

consideration being made to the City pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

 (g) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the City 

contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, 

agreements and obligations of the City, and not of any governing body member, 

officer, agent, servant or employee of the City in the individual capacity thereof. 

  

 (h) The Development Property is zoned “M-1-P, Planned Industrial District”.  The 

“M-1-P, Planned Industrial District” zoning classification permits by right the 

construction, equipping and operation of the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements.  

 

 Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties of the Developer.  The Developer makes 

the following representations and warranties: 

 

(a) The Developer is a limited liability company duly organized and validly existing 

under the laws of the State of Iowa, is properly authorized to conduct business 

in the State of Iowa, and has all requisite power and authority to own and operate 

19

Item 2.



10 

 

its properties, to carry on its business as now conducted and as presently 

proposed to be conducted, and to enter into and perform its obligations under 

the Agreement. 

  

(b) The Developer desires to construct a Storage Facility ("Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements") on the 4.73 acre Development Property, which is to 

be acquired by the Developer pursuant to this Agreement, and which is more 

particularly described in Exhibit A-1.  

 

(c) This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered 

by the Developer and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by 

the other parties hereto, is in full force and effect and is a valid and legally 

binding instrument of the Developer enforceable in accordance with its terms, 

except as the same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or 

other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally. 

 

 (d) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, in 

conflict with, nor will  they result in a violation or breach of, the terms, 

conditions or provisions of the certificate of organization and operating 

agreement, together with all amendments thereto, of the Developer or of any 

contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, agreement or instrument of 

whatever nature to which the Developer is now a party or by which it or its  

properties are bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the foregoing. 

 

 (e) There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or threatened against or 

affecting the Developer in any court or before any arbitrator or before or by any 

governmental body in which there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse 

decision which could materially adversely affect the business (present or 

prospective), financial position or results of operations of the Developer or 

which in any manner raises any questions affecting the validity of the 

Agreement or the ability of Developer to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement. 

 

 (f) The Developer will cause the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements to be 

constructed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Urban Renewal 

Plan and all local, State and federal laws and regulations, except for variances 

necessary to construct the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements 

contemplated in the Construction Plans.  

 

 (g) The Developer will use its best efforts to obtain, or cause to be obtained, in a 

timely manner, all required permits, licenses and approvals, and will meet, in a 

20

Item 2.



11 

 

timely manner, all requirements of all applicable local, State, and federal laws 

and regulations which must be obtained or met before the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements may be lawfully constructed. 

 

 (h) The construction of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements will require 

a total investment of not less than One Million Four Hundred Thousand Dollars 

and no/100 Dollars ($1,400,000.00), and a valuation of One Million Seven 

Hundred Ten Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($1,710,000.00) is reasonable for 

the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements and the land that together 

comprise the Development Property. 

 

 (i) The Developer has not received any notice from any local, State or federal 

official that the activities of the Developer with respect to the Development 

Property may or will be in violation of any environmental law or regulation 

(other than those notices, if any, of which the City has previously been notified 

in writing). The Developer is not currently aware of any State or federal claim 

filed or planned to be filed by any party relating to any violation of any local, 

State or federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure applicable to 

the Development Property, and the Developer is not currently aware of any 

violation of any local, State or federal environmental law, regulation or review 

procedure which would give any person a valid claim under any State or federal 

environmental statute with respect thereto. 

 

 (j) The Developer has funds sufficient to successfully complete the construction of 

the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements, in accordance with the 

Construction Plans contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

 (k) The Developer will cooperate fully with the City in resolution of any traffic, 

parking, trash removal or public safety problems which may arise in connection 

with the construction and operation of the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements, including but not limited to any problems which may arise with 

respect to traffic at the intersections where access drives on the Development 

Property meet roadways or streets owned by the City. 

 

 (l) The Developer expects that, barring Unavoidable Delays, the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements will be substantially completed by the 31st day of 

December, 2024.  

 

 (m) The Developer would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement 

without the consideration being made to the Developer pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

 

21

Item 2.



12 

 

 (n) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the 

Developer contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, 

promises, agreements and obligations of the Developer, and not of any member, 

officer, agent, servant or employee of the Developer in the individual capacity 

thereof. 

 

ARTICLE III.  CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 Section 3.1.  Construction of Phase One Project Minimum Improvements. The 

Developer agrees that it will cause the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements to be 

constructed on the Development Property in conformance with the Construction Plans 

submitted to the City.  The Developer agrees that the scope and scale of the Phase One 

Project Minimum Improvements to be constructed shall not be significantly less than the 

scope and scale of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements as detailed and outlined 

in the Construction Plans, and shall in no event require a total investment of less than One 

Million Four Hundred Thousand Dollars and no/100 Dollars ($1,400,000.00). 

 

 Section 3.2  Building Permit Valuation Amount.  The Developer shall apply to the 

City for a building permit, and shall pay all necessary permit fees in connection with the 

construction of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements on the Development 

Property, based upon a building permit valuation amount (hereinafter the "Building Permit 

Valuation Amount") of a minimum of One Million Four Hundred Thousand Dollars and 

no/100 Dollars ($1,400,000.00), by no later than the 1st day of May, 2023. The Developer 

and the City acknowledge and agree that there may be more than one building permit 

applied for that together will constitute the minimum value stated herein, depending upon 

the phasing of construction of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Section 3.3.  Construction Plans.  The Developer shall cause Construction Plans to be 

provided for the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements which shall be subject to 

approval by the City as provided in this Section 3.3.  The Construction Plans shall be in 

conformity with the Urban Renewal Plan, this Agreement, and all applicable State and local 

laws and regulations, except for variances the Developer and the City agree are necessary 

to construct or operate the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements.  The City shall 

approve the Construction Plans in writing if: (a) the Construction Plans conform to the terms 

and conditions of this Agreement; (b) the Construction Plans conform to the terms and 

conditions of the Urban Renewal Plan; (c) to the best of City's knowledge, the Construction 

Plans conform to all applicable federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules and 

regulations and City permit requirements; (d) the Construction Plans are adequate for 

purposes of this Agreement to provide for the construction of the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements and (e) no Event of Default under the terms of this Agreement has 

occurred; provided, however, that any such approval of the Construction Plans pursuant to 

this Section 3.3 shall constitute approval for the purposes of this Agreement only and shall 

not be deemed to constitute approval or waiver by the City with respect to any building, 

22

Item 2.



13 

 

fire, zoning or other ordinances or regulations of the City, and shall not be deemed to be 

sufficient plans to serve as the basis for the issuance of a building permit if the Construction 

Plans are not as detailed or complete as the plans otherwise required for the issuance of a 

building permit.  The site plans submitted by the Developer to the building official of the 

City for the Development Property shall be adequate to serve as the Construction Plans, if 

such site plans are approved by the building official. 

 

 Approval of the Construction Plans by the City shall not relieve the Developer of any 

obligation to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, or the provisions of 

applicable federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations, nor shall approval of 

the Construction Plans by the City be deemed to constitute a waiver of any Event of Default. 

 

 Approval of Construction Plans hereunder is solely for purposes of this Agreement, 

and shall not constitute approval for any other City purpose nor subject the City to any 

liability for the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements as constructed. 

 

 Section 3.4.  Commencement and Completion of Construction.  Subject to 

Unavoidable Delays, the Developer shall cause construction of the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements to be undertaken by no later than the 1st day of May, 2023, and 

completed (i) by no later than the 31st day of December, 2024, or (ii) by such other date as 

the parties shall mutually agree upon in writing.  Time lost as a result of Unavoidable Delays 

shall be added to extend the completion date by a number of days equal to the number of 

days lost as a result of Unavoidable Delays.  However, an extension of the completion of 

the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements shall not affect the date upon which the 

Assessor's Minimum Actual Value shall become effective.  All work with respect to the 

Phase One Project Minimum Improvements to be constructed or provided by the Developer 

on the Development Property shall be in conformity with the Construction Plans as 

submitted by the Developer and approved by the City.  The Developer agrees that it shall 

permit designated representatives of the City to enter upon the Development Property 

during the construction of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements to inspect such 

construction. 

 

 Section 3.5.  Certificate of Completion.  Upon written request of the Developer after 

issuance of an occupancy permit for the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements, the 

City will furnish the Developer with a Certificate of Completion in recordable form, in 

substantially the form set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto. Such Certificate of Completion 

shall be a conclusive determination of satisfactory termination of the covenants and 

conditions of this Agreement with respect to the obligations of the Developer to cause 

construction of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements.  

 

 The Certificate of Completion may be recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder's 

office at the Developer's sole expense.  If the City shall refuse or fail to provide a Certificate 

of Completion in accordance with the provisions of this Section 3.5, the City shall, within 

23

Item 2.



14 

 

twenty (20) days after written request by the Developer, provide to the Developer a written 

statement indicating in adequate detail in what respects the Developer has failed to complete 

the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements in accordance with the provisions of this 

Agreement, or is otherwise in default under the terms of this Agreement, and what measures 

or acts it will be necessary, in the opinion of the City, for the Developer to take or perform 

in order to obtain such Certificate of Completion.  

 

ARTICLE IV.  RESTRICTIONS UPON USE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

 

 Section 4.1.  Restrictions on Use.   

 

(a) The Developer shall: use the Development Property for any lawful use, and 

devote the Development Property to, and only to and in accordance with, the 

uses specified in the Urban Renewal Plan and this Agreement until the 

Termination Date. 

 

(b) The Developer shall not discriminate upon the basis of race, creed, color, sex, 

gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, age, disability or national 

origin in the sale, lease, or rental or in the use or occupancy of the Development 

Property or any improvements erected or to be erected thereon, or any part 

thereof. 

 

(c) It is intended and agreed that the agreements and covenants provided in this 

Section shall be covenants running with the land and that they shall, in any 

event, and without regard to technical classification or designation, legal or 

otherwise, and except only as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, 

be binding, to the fullest extent permitted by law and equity, for the benefit and 

in favor of, and enforceable by, the City, its successors and assigns, as against 

every successor in interest to the Development Property, or any part thereof or 

any interest therein, and as against any party in possession or occupancy of the 

Development Property or any part thereof.  It is further intended and agreed that 

the agreements and covenants provided in subdivisions (a) and (b) of this 

Section shall remain in effect only through the Termination Date. 

 

(d) It is intended and agreed that the City and its successors and assigns shall be 

deemed beneficiaries of the agreements and covenants provided in this Section, 

both for and in its own right and also for the purposes of protecting the interests 

of the community and other parties, public or private, in whose favor or for 

whose benefit such agreements and covenants have been provided.  Such 

agreements and covenants shall run in favor of the City, until the Termination 

Date, during which time such agreements and covenants shall be in force and 

effect, without regard to whether the City has at any time been, remains, or is an 

owner of any land or interest therein to or in favor of which such agreements 

24

Item 2.



15 

 

and covenants relate.  The City shall have the right, in the event of any breach 

of any such agreement or covenant, to exercise all the rights and remedies, and 

to maintain any actions or suits at law or in equity or other proper proceedings 

to enforce the curing of such breach of agreement or covenant, to which it or 

any other beneficiaries of such agreement or covenant may be entitled. 

 

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE AND CONDEMNATION 

 

 Section 5.1.  Insurance Requirements. 

 

 (a) The Developer will provide and maintain or cause to be maintained at all times 

during the process of constructing the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements (and, from time to time at the request of the City, furnish the City 

with proof of payment of premiums on): 

 

  (i) Builder's risk insurance, written on the so-called "Builder's Risk -- 

Completed Value Basis", in an amount equal to one hundred percent 

(100%) of the insurable value of the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements at the date of completion, and with coverage available in 

nonreporting form on the so-called "all risk" form of policy;  

 

  (ii) Comprehensive general liability insurance (including operations, 

contingent liability, operations of subcontractors, completed operations 

and contractual liability insurance), together with an Owner's 

Contractor's Policy, with limits against bodily injury and property 

damage of at least $2,000,000.  The City shall be named as an additional 

insured for the City's liability or loss arising out of or in any way 

associated with the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements and 

arising out of any act, error, or omission of the Developer, its members, 

managers, officers, contractors and subcontractors or anyone else for 

whose acts the City may be held responsible (with coverage to the City 

at least as broad as that which is provided to the Developer and not 

lessened or avoided by endorsement).  The policy shall contain a 

"severability of interests" clause and provide primary insurance over any 

other insurance maintained by the City.  The policy shall waive 

subrogation rights against the City and shall contain a Governmental 

Immunities endorsement in a form acceptable to the City. 

 

  (iii) Worker's compensation insurance, with statutory coverage. 

 

 (b) Upon completion of construction of the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements and at all times prior to the Termination Date, the Developer shall 

maintain, or cause to be maintained, at its cost and expense  (and from time to 

25

Item 2.



16 

 

time at the request of the City shall furnish proof of the payment of premiums 

on) insurance as follows: 

 

  (i) Insurance against loss and/or damage to the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements under a policy or policies covering such risks as are 

ordinarily insured against by similar businesses, including (without 

limiting the generality of the foregoing) fire, extended coverage, 

vandalism and malicious mischief, explosion, water damage, demolition 

cost, debris removal, and collapse in an amount not less than the full 

insurable replacement value of the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements, but any such policy may have a deductible amount of not 

more than $25,000.  No policy of insurance shall be so written that the 

proceeds thereof will produce less than the minimum coverage required 

by the preceding sentence, by reason of co-insurance provisions or 

otherwise, without the prior consent thereto in writing by the City.  The 

term "full insurable replacement value" shall mean the actual 

replacement cost of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements 

(excluding foundation and excavation costs and costs of underground 

flues, pipes, drains and other uninsurable items) and equipment, and shall 

be determined from time to time at the request of the City, but not more 

frequently than once every three years, by an insurance consultant or 

insurer selected and paid for by the Developer and approved by the City. 

 

  (ii) Comprehensive commercial general liability insurance, including 

liability for injuries to persons and/or property resulting from the 

operation of automobiles or other motorized vehicles on or about the 

Development Property, in the minimum amount for each occurrence and 

for each year of $2,000,000. 

 

  (iii) Such other insurance, including worker's compensation insurance 

respecting all employees of the Developer, in such amount as is 

customarily carried by like organizations engaged in like activities of 

comparable size and liability exposure. 

 

 (c) All insurance required by this Article V to be provided prior to the Termination 

Date shall be taken out and maintained in responsible insurance companies 

selected by the Developer which are authorized under the laws of the State to 

assume the risks covered thereby.  The Developer will deposit annually with the 

City copies of policies evidencing all such insurance, or a certificate or 

certificates or binders of the respective insurers stating that such insurance is in 

force and effect.  Unless otherwise provided in this Article V, each policy shall 

contain a provision that the insurer shall not cancel or modify it without giving 

written notice to the Developer and the City at least thirty (30) days before the 

26

Item 2.



17 

 

cancellation or modification becomes effective.  Not less than fifteen (15) days 

prior to the expiration of any policy, the Developer  shall furnish the City 

evidence satisfactory to the City that the policy has been renewed or replaced 

by another policy conforming to the provisions of this Article V, or that there is 

no necessity therefor under the terms hereof.  In lieu of separate policies, 

Developer may maintain a single policy, or blanket or umbrella policies, or a 

combination thereof, which provide the total coverage required herein, in which 

event the Developer shall deposit with the City a certificate or certificates of the 

respective insurers as to the amount of coverage in force upon the Phase One 

Project Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (d) Developer shall notify the City immediately in the case of damage exceeding 

$25,000 in amount to, or destruction of, the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements or any portion thereof resulting from fire or other casualty.  Net 

Proceeds of any such insurance shall be paid directly to the Developer, and 

Developer will forthwith repair, reconstruct and  restore the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements to substantially the same or an improved condition or 

value as they existed prior to the event causing such damage and, to the extent 

necessary to accomplish such repair, reconstruction and restoration, the 

Developer will apply the Net Proceeds of any insurance relating to such damage 

received by Developer to the payment or reimbursement of the costs thereof.  

The provisions of this paragraph shall apply to casualties that occur prior to the 

Termination Date. 

 

 (e) The Developer shall complete the repair, reconstruction and restoration of the 

Phase One Project Minimum Improvements, whether or not the Net Proceeds of 

insurance received by Developer for such purposes are sufficient.   

 

 Section 5.2.  Condemnation.  In the event that title to and possession of the Phase One 

Project Minimum Improvements or any other material part thereof shall be taken in 

condemnation or by the exercise of the power of eminent domain by any governmental body 

or other person (except the City), so long as the Assessment Agreement shall remain in 

effect, the Developer or his successor shall, with reasonable promptness after such taking, 

notify the City as to the nature and extent of such taking. 

 

 Section 5.3. Reconstruction or Payment.  Upon receipt of any condemnation award, 

the Developer shall use the entire condemnation award to reconstruct the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements (or, in the event only a part of Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements have been taken, then to reconstruct such part) upon the Development 

Property. 

           

 

27

Item 2.



18 

 

ARTICLE VI.  MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT AND OTHER 

COVENANTS 

 

 Section 6.1. Execution of Minimum Assessment Agreement.  The Developer shall 

agree to, and with the City shall execute, concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, 

a Minimum Assessment Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Section 403.19, Code of 

Iowa, substantially in the form and content of Exhibit D attached hereto, specifying the 

Assessor's Minimum Actual Value for the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements to 

be constructed on the Development Property for calculation of real property taxes.  

Specifically, the Developer shall agree to an Assessor’s Minimum Actual Value, of not less 

than One Million Seven Hundred Ten Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($1,710,000.00) as of 

the completion of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements, but no later than January 

1, 2025.   Nothing in the Minimum Assessment Agreement shall limit the discretion of the 

Assessor to assign an actual value to the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements and 

Development Property, in excess of such Assessor's Minimum Actual Value nor prohibit 

the Developer or its successors from seeking through the exercise of legal or administrative 

remedies a reduction in such actual value for property tax purposes; provided, however, that 

the Developer or its successors shall not seek a reduction of such actual value below the 

Assessor's Minimum Actual Value in any year so long as the Minimum Assessment 

Agreement shall remain in effect.  The Minimum Assessment Agreement shall remain in 

effect until the 31st day of December, 2034 (the "Termination Date").  The Minimum 

Assessment Agreement shall be certified by the Assessor for the County as provided in 

Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, and shall be filed for record in the office of the County 

Recorder of the County, and such filing shall constitute notice to any subsequent 

encumbrancer or purchaser of the Development Property (or part thereof), whether 

voluntary or involuntary, and such Minimum Assessment Agreement shall be binding and 

enforceable in its entirety against any such subsequent purchaser or encumbrancer, as well 

as all prior lienholders and the holder of first mortgage, each of which shall sign a consent 

to the Minimum Assessment Agreement. 

 

 Section 6.2.  Maintenance of Properties.   The Developer shall maintain, preserve and 

keep the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements (and any part thereof) in good repair 

and working order, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and from time to time shall make all 

necessary repairs, replacements, renewals and additions, until the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.3 Maintenance of Records.  The Developer shall keep at all times proper 

books of record and account in which full, true and correct entries shall be made of all 

dealings and transactions of or in relation to the business and affairs of the Developer in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied throughout 

the period involved, and Developer shall provide reasonable protection against loss or 

damage to such books of record and account.  The provisions of this paragraph shall apply 

for all periods prior to the Termination Date. 

 

28

Item 2.



19 

 

 Section 6.4. Compliance with Laws.  The Developer shall comply with all laws, rules 

and regulations relating to the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements, other than laws, 

rules and regulations the failure to comply with which or the sanctions and penalties 

resulting therefrom, would not have a material adverse effect on the Developer’s business, 

property, operations, or condition, financial or otherwise.  The provisions of this paragraph 

shall apply for all periods prior to the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.5. Real Property Taxes.  The Developer shall pay, when due, all real 

property taxes and assessments payable with respect to all and any parts of the Development 

Property acquired and owned by it.  

 

 The Developer and its successors agree that prior to the Termination Date: 

 

 (a) It will not seek any tax exemption, either presently or prospectively authorized 

under any State or federal law with respect to taxation of real property contained 

on the Development Property between the date of execution of this Agreement 

and the Termination Date.  The foregoing shall not impair any rights to appeal 

the valuation set by the Black Hawk County Assessor as provided by law. 

 

 (b) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the applicability or 

constitutionality of any tax statute relating to the taxation of real property 

contained on the Development Property determined by any tax official to be 

applicable to the Development Property, Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements or to the Developer or raise the inapplicability or constitutionality 

of any such tax statute as a defense in any proceedings, including delinquent tax 

proceedings. 

 

 (c) It will not seek any tax deferral or abatement, either presently or prospectively 

authorized under Iowa Code Chapter 403, 404, 427B, or any other local, State 

or federal law, of the taxation of real property contained on the Development 

Property between the date of execution of this Agreement and the Termination 

Date. 

 

 Section 6.6.   Sales Tax.  The Developer shall pay all sales tax payable with respect to 

the Phase One and Phase Two Project Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Section 6.7.  Utility Usage.  The Developer agrees for itself and its successors and 

assigns, specifically including all commercial tenants and all other persons, firms or other 

entities operating any business on the Development Property or any portion thereof, that for 

all periods up to the Termination Date that all utility needs for the Storage Facility shall be 

furnished from City-owned utilities, including electricity, natural gas, water, sanitary sewer, 

cable television, telephone, internet and other fiber-optic communications service including 

point-to-point, VLAN and last mile fiber services for a corporate network connection, 

29

Item 2.



20 

 

except for any emergency utility needs in the case of any unavailability or interruption of 

City-owned utility services, which may be secured from alternative sources. The Developer 

and its successors and assigns agree to work with Cedar Falls Utilities to attain needed 

communication services (as defined above). Should it be mutually agreed upon by both 

parties that City-owned utilities are unable to meet the communication requirements 

specified, the Developer and its successors and assigns, as defined and described in this 

section, shall not, however, have any obligation or duty to use or take any minimum amount, 

and shall have no obligation to pay any amount in excess of the generally applicable rates 

for like users based upon actual use. 

  

 Section 6.8.  Annual Certification. To assist the City in monitoring and performance 

of Developer hereunder, a duly authorized officer of the Developer shall annually provide 

to the City: (a) proof that all ad valorem taxes on the Development Property have been paid 

for the prior fiscal year; and (b) certification that, to the best of such officer’s knowledge 

during the preceding twelve (12) months, the Developer  was not  in default in the 

fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that no Event of Default 

(or event which, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would become an 

Event of Default) is occurring or has occurred as of the date of such certificate or during 

such period, or if the signer is aware of any such default, event or Event of Default, said 

officer shall disclose in such statement the nature thereof, its period of existence and what 

action, if any, has been taken or is proposed to be taken with respect thereto.  Such statement, 

proof and certificate shall be provided not later than October 15 of each year, commencing 

October 15, 2024, and ending on October 15, 2034, both dates inclusive. 

 

 Section 6.9. Use of Tax Increments.  The City shall be free to use any and all Tax 

Increments collected in respect of the Development Property for any purpose for which the 

Tax Increments may lawfully be used pursuant to the provisions of the Urban Renewal Act; 

and the City shall have no obligations to the Developer with respect to the use of such 

increments. 

 

 Section 6.10.  Opinion of Counsel.  Concurrent with execution of this Agreement, 

Developer shall cause its counsel to execute and deliver to City an Opinion of Counsel 

substantially in the form and of the content of Exhibit E attached hereto. 

  

 Section 6.11.  Provisions To Be Included In Leases Covering Development 

Property.  The Developer agrees to include provisions in each commercial lease 

agreement the Developer enters into with any tenant that will occupy the Development 

Property or operate a business thereon, for all periods up to the Termination Date, which 

provide as follows: (a) that tenant acknowledges that the leased premises are part of the 

Development Property and are subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; (b) 

that this Agreement is binding upon Developer’s successors and assigns, specifically 

including all commercial tenants; (c) that certain of the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement specifically impact the tenant’s use of and conduct of its business operations 

30

Item 2.



21 

 

on the Development Property, which terms and conditions include, but are not necessarily 

limited to, Sections 4.1, 5.1(b), 6.2, 6.7, 7.2, 7.3 and 11.2; and (d) that the tenant agrees to 

operate its business and conduct its operations on the Development Property in a manner 

consistent with all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 6.12.  Relocation.  Developer agrees and covenants that it shall not, absent 

written consent from the City, sell or lease the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements 

or Development Property (or any part thereof) to any enterprise that is relocating 

(“Relocating”) to the City from another part of the County or a contiguous county during 

the term (the “Term”) of this Relocation provision (the “Relocation Provision”).  

“Relocating” or “Relocation” means the closure or substantial reduction of an enterprise’s 

existing operations in one area of the State and the initiation of substantially the same 

operation in the same county or a contiguous county in the State.  The Term of this 

Relocation Provision will expire on the Termination Date.  In general, urban renewal 

incentives cannot be used for projects that involve a Relocating enterprise (whether the 

relocating enterprise is the developer, land owner, tenant, or otherwise) unless there is a 

written agreement regarding the use of economic incentives between the city where the 

business is currently located and the city to which the business is Relocating, either 

specific to this Project or in general (i.e., a fair play or neutrality agreement), or if the City 

finds that the use of tax increments in connection with the Relocation is in the public 

interest, which means that the business has provided a written affirmation that it is 

considering moving part or all of its operations out of the State and such action would 

result in either significant employment or wage loss in Iowa.  Developer understands and 

agrees that if it sells or leases to a Relocating enterprise in violation of the Relocation 

Provision, as determined by the City in its sole discretion, such action shall be deemed an 

Event of Default under this Agreement, and, in addition to any remedies set forth in 

Section 11.2: 

 

(i) If Developer received all or a portion of the Development Property from the City 

for less than the full fair market value of the Development Property (“Full Value”), then 

the Developer shall pay the City the difference between the Full Value of the 

Development Property and what the Developer actually paid the City for such property.  

At the request of the City (which request need not be in writing), the Full Value of the 

Development Property shall be established by a licensed, certified appraiser to be selected 

by the City.  Developer shall be responsible for paying any fees or costs associated with 

obtaining such appraisal. 

 

ARTICLE VII.  PROHIBITIONS AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER 

 

 Section 7.1.  Representation as to Development. The Developer represents and agrees 

that the purchase and improvement of the Development Property, and the other undertakings 

pursuant to this Agreement, are, and will be used, for the purpose of development of the 

31

Item 2.



22 

 

Development Property and not for speculation in land holding.  The Developer further 

acknowledges: 

 

(a) the importance of the development of the Development Property to the general 

welfare of the community; 

 

(b) the substantial financing and other public aids that have been made available by 

law and by the City for the purpose of making such development possible; and 

 

(c) the fact that any act or transaction involving or resulting in a significant change 

of control of the development, is for practical purposes a transfer or disposition 

of the Development Property then owned and operated by the Developer, and 

the qualifications and identity of the Developer are of particular concern to the 

community and the City.  The Developer further recognizes that it is because of 

such qualifications and identity that the City is entering into this Agreement with 

the Developer. 

 

 Section 7.2.  Prohibition Against Transfer of Property and Assignment of Agreement.  

Except as otherwise expressly provided for in Section 7.4, Transfer of Interest in Developer 

or Transfer of Development Property to Permitted Transferees, for the foregoing reasons 

the Developer represents and agrees for itself, and its successors and assigns, that in addition 

to the provisions of Section 6.12 of this Agreement, prior to termination of the Termination 

Date: 

 

 (a) Except only for (i) the purpose of obtaining financing necessary to enable the 

Developer to perform its obligations with respect to making the Phase One 

Project Minimum Improvements under this Agreement, (ii) leases to 

commercial tenants for all or a portion of the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements, and (iii) any other purpose authorized by this Agreement, the 

Developer (except as so authorized) has not made or created, and that the 

Developer will not, prior to the Termination Date, make or create, or suffer to 

be made or created, any total or partial sale, assignment, or conveyance, or any 

trust or power, or transfer in any other mode or form of or with respect to this 

Agreement or the Development Property, or any part thereof or any interest 

therein, or any contract or agreement to do any of the same, without the prior 

written approval of the City. 

  

(b) The City shall be entitled to require, except as otherwise provided in this 

Agreement, as conditions to any such approval that: 

 

(1) Any proposed transferee shall have the qualifications and financial 

responsibility, as determined by the City, necessary and adequate to 

fulfill the obligations undertaken in this Agreement by the Developer 

32

Item 2.



23 

 

(or, in the event the transfer is of or relates to part of the Development 

Property, such obligations to the extent that they relate to such part). 

 

(2) Any proposed transferee, by instrument in writing satisfactory to the 

City and in form recordable among the land records, shall, for itself 

and its successors and assigns, and expressly for the benefit of the City, 

have expressly assumed all of the obligations of the Developer under 

this Agreement and shall have agreed to be subject to all the conditions 

and restrictions to which the Developer is subject (or, in the event the 

transfer is of or relates to part of the Development Property, such 

obligations, conditions, and restrictions to the extent that they relate to 

such part):  Provided, that the fact that any transferee of, or any other 

successor in interest whatsoever to, the Development Property, or any 

part thereof, shall, whatever the reason, not have assumed such 

obligations or so agreed, shall not (unless and only to the extent 

otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement or agreed to in 

writing by the City) relieve or exempt such transferee or successor of 

or from such obligations, conditions, or restrictions, or deprive or limit 

the City of or with respect to any rights or remedies or controls with 

respect to the Development Property or the construction of the Phase 

One Project Minimum Improvements; it being the intent of this 

provision, together with other provisions of this Agreement, that (to 

the fullest extent permitted by law and equity and excepting only in the 

manner and to the extent specifically provided otherwise in this 

Agreement) no transfer of, or change with respect to, ownership in the 

Development Property or any part thereof, or any interest therein, 

however consummated or occurring, and whether voluntary or 

involuntary, shall operate, legally or practically, to deprive or limit the 

City of or with respect to any rights or remedies or controls provided 

in or resulting from this Agreement with respect to the Development 

Property and the construction of the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements that the City would have had, had there been no such 

transfer or change. 

 

(3) Except leases to commercial tenants for all or a portion of the Phase 

One Project Minimum Improvements as provided in subsection (a)(ii) 

of this section, there shall be submitted to the City for review all 

instruments and other legal documents involved in effecting transfer; 

and if approved by the City, its approval shall be indicated to the 

Developer in writing. 

 

Provided, further, that in the absence of specific written agreement by the City to the 

contrary, no such transfer or approval by the City thereof shall be deemed to relieve the 

33

Item 2.



24 

 

Developer, or any other party bound in any way by this Agreement or otherwise with respect 

to the construction of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements, from any of its 

obligations with respect thereto. 

 

 Section 7.3.  Approvals.  Any approval of a transfer of interest in the Developer, this 

Agreement, or the Development Property required to be given by the City under this Article 

VII may be denied only in the event that the City reasonably determines that the ability of 

the Developer to perform its obligations under this Agreement and its statutory duty, as 

owner, to pay ad valorem real property taxes assessed with respect to the Development 

Property, or the overall financial security provided to the City under the terms of this 

Agreement, or the likelihood of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements being 

successfully constructed and operated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, will be 

materially impaired by the action for which approval is sought. 

 

Section 7.4.  Transfer of Interest in Developer or Transfer of Interest in Development 

Property to Permitted Transferee. Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 7.2 and 7.3, 

the City and the Developer agree that a transfer of ownership of the Development Property 

to a newly established corporation or limited liability company the ownership of which 

consists solely of the members of Developer (the “Permitted Transferee”), shall not trigger 

the provisions of Section 7.2 or Section 7.3, provided, however, that any transfer of the 

Development Property to the Permitted Transferee shall require the Permitted Transferee to 

agree in writing with the City (a) to expressly assume all of the obligations of the Developer 

under this Agreement, and (b) to agree to be subject to all of the conditions and restrictions 

to which the Developer is subject (or, in the event the transfer is of or relates to only part of 

the Development Property, such obligations, conditions, and restrictions to the extent that 

they relate to such part). Upon execution of an agreement in writing by the Permitted 

Transferee that (a) assumes all of the obligations of the Developer under this Agreement 

and (b) agrees to be subject to all of the conditions and restrictions to which the Developer 

is subject, the transfer of the Development Property, or the part thereof, shall be deemed 

approved upon delivery of such written assumption agreement to the City Clerk of the City.  

 

Section 7.5. Prohibition Against Use as Non-Taxable or Centrally Assessed 

Property.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, during the term of this 

Agreement, Developer, or its successors or assigns, agree that the Development Property 

and Phase One Project Minimum Improvements cannot be transferred or sold to a non-profit 

entity or used for a purpose that would exempt the Development Property or Phase One 

Project Minimum Improvements from property tax liability.  Nor can the Development 

Property or Phase One Project Minimum Improvements be used as centrally assessed 

property (including but not limited to, Iowa Code § 428.24 to 428.29 (Public Utility Plants 

and Related Personal Property); Chapter 433 (Telegraph and Telephone Company 

Property); Chapter 434 (Railway Property); Chapter 437 (Electric Transmission Lines); 

Chapter 437A (Property Used in the Production, Generation, Transmission or Delivery of 

34

Item 2.



25 

 

Electricity or Natural Gas); and Chapter 438 (Pipeline Property) and any subsequent 

successor laws related thereto). 

 

ARTICLE VIII.  CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY; CONDITIONS 

 

 Section 8.1  Conveyance of Development Property.  Subject to hearing and 

authorization required under law, the City shall make a conveyance of title to the 

Development Property to Developer without any additional consideration other than the 

Developer’s covenants as contained in this Agreement. 

 

 Section 8.2  Form of Deed.  The City shall convey clear title to the Development 

Property to the Developer by Quit Claim Deed (hereinafter called the “Deed”).  Such 

conveyance and title shall be subject to the conditions, covenants and restrictions contained 

in the Urban Renewal Plan and this Agreement, shall be subject to restrictive covenants, 

ordinances, and limited access provisions of record, if any, and to existing easements of 

record, but shall otherwise be free and clear of all other liens and encumbrances of record. 

 

 Section 8.3. Condition of the Property; Care And Maintenance.  As of Closing, 

Developer agrees to take the Development Property "As Is." The City makes no warranties 

or representations as to the condition of the Development Property.  The City and Developer 

acknowledge and agree that City has undertaken no investigations with respect to the 

suitability of the Development Property for Developer’s proposed uses, including but not 

limited to subsurface investigations regarding the soil conditions of the Development 

Property. Any geological or other inspection of the Development Property is the sole 

responsibility of the Developer (at its own cost). Developer waives all claims against the 

City as to the condition of the Development Property.  

 

 Section 8.4. Environmental Matters. At Closing, although not required by law, the 

City may file with the County Recorder’s office a properly executed Groundwater Hazard 

Statement.  Developer takes the property "As Is" with regard to any environmental 

matters.  The City makes no warranties and representations as to the environmental 

condition of the Development Property, other than the information provided in any 

Groundwater Hazard Statement filed by the City at Closing.  Developer shall be responsible 

for securing and paying for all inspections, remediation efforts, or documentation required 

by the county board of health in order to lawfully transfer the Development Property to 

Developer.  Developer agrees to indemnify, release, defend and hold harmless the City for 

all claims, damages or costs relating to the Development Property that arise after the Closing 

Date.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the contrary, Developer 

shall have a period of 60 days from the execution of this Agreement to inspect the 

Development Property for environmental contamination or deficiencies, and during this 

period, may cancel this Agreement due to the existence of any such environmental 

contamination or deficiencies by giving to the City written notice of its decision to cancel 

35

Item 2.



26 

 

this Agreement.  The City authorizes Developer and/or its agents and contractors access to 

the Development Property for purposes of its environmental inspection. 

  

 Section 8.5. Survey and Platting.  Developer shall be responsible for all survey and 

platting of the Development Property.  The City authorizes Developer and/or its agents and 

contractors access to the Development Property for survey and platting purposes. 

 

 Section 8.6  Time and Place for Closing and Delivery of Deed.  The City shall deliver 

the Deed and possession of the Development Property to the Developer on or before the 31st 

day of December, 2022, or on such other date as the parties hereto may mutually agree in 

writing (the “Closing Date”). 

 

 Section 8.7  Recordation of Deed.  The Developer shall promptly file the Deed for 

recordation among the land records in the office of the Recorder of the County.  The 

Developer shall pay all costs for so recording the Deed. 

 

 Section 8.8  Abstract of Title.  Immediately following the execution of this Agreement, 

the City shall provide an abstract of title continued only to the date of filing of the plat.  It 

shall be the Developer’s responsibility to pay to have the abstract updated.  Following the 

updating of the abstract of title by the Developer, it shall show marketable title in the City 

in conformity with Iowa law and the Title Standards of the Iowa State Bar Association.  The 

City shall make every reasonable effort to promptly perfect title.  If closing is delayed due 

to the City’s inability to provide marketable title, this Agreement shall continue in force and 

effect until either party rescinds the Agreement after giving ten days written notice to the 

other party.  The abstract shall become the property of the Developer at the time of delivery 

of the Deed. 

 

 Section 8.9  Conditions Precedent to Conveyance of Property.  The City’s obligation 

to convey title and possession of the Development Property to the Developer on the Closing 

Date shall be subject to satisfaction of the following conditions precedent: 

 

(a) The Developer shall be in material compliance with all the terms and provisions 

of this Agreement; 

 

(b) The Developer shall have furnished the City with evidence, in a form 

reasonably satisfactory to the City (such as a letter of commitment from a bank 

or other lending institution), that the Developer has firm commitments for 

financing for the Project in an amount sufficient, together with equity 

commitments, to complete the Project in conformance with the Construction 

Plans, or the City shall have received such other evidence of the Developer’s 

financial ability as in the reasonable judgment of the City is required for the 

Project; 

 

36

Item 2.



27 

 

(c) Execution of a Minimum Assessment Agreement by the City, the County and 

the Developer pursuant to Section 6.1 of this Agreement; and 

 

(e) Receipt of an opinion of counsel to the Developer in the form attached hereto 

as Exhibit E.  

   

 Section 8.10 Failure to Commence Construction of Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements.  In the event the Developer has not made substantial progress towards 

commencement of construction of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements on the 

Development Property by no later than September 1, 2023, and commencement of 

construction does not appear imminent, in the reasonable discretion of the City, by no later 

than September 1, 2023, then Developer shall have committed an Event of Default within 

the meaning of Article X and Section 11.1 of this Agreement, and shall convey title to the 

Development Property to the City as provided in Section 11.2(d) of this Agreement by no 

later than December 1, 2023. 

 

 Section 8.11.  No Partial Property Tax Exemption.  In consideration of the covenants 

of the City as contained in this Agreement, Developer agrees that it shall not seek from the 

County or from the City, any partial or other exemption from taxation of industrial property 

as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, 

and/or by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to any portion of the Development 

Property, or the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements located on the Development 

Property.  

 

ARTICLE IX.  DEVELOPER’S RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL 

 

 Section 9.1.  Grant of Right of First Refusal. As additional consideration for 

Developer’s covenants as contained in this Agreement, and upon performance by 

Developer of all of its obligations to the City under the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, but only for so long as Developer is not in default under this Agreement, the 

City hereby grants Developer an irrevocable right of first refusal (hereinafter the “Right of 

First Refusal”) to acquire the property described in Exhibit A-2 attached to this 

Agreement (hereinafter the “Right of First Refusal Property”), on the terms and conditions 

set forth in this Article. 

 

 Section 9.2.  Right of First Refusal to Acquire Right of First Refusal Property. The 

Developer’s right to acquire the Right of First Refusal Property under this Article shall be 

on the following terms: 

 

(a) The Right of First Refusal shall commence on the effective date of this 

Agreement set forth on page 5 hereof (the “Effective Date of this 

Agreement”). 

 

37

Item 2.



28 

 

(b) The Right of First Refusal shall be irrevocable until December 31, 2025 

(hereinafter the “Right of First Refusal Expiration Date.”). 

 

(c) The Right of First Refusal shall be effective only if the Developer shall have 

performed all of its obligations to the City as set forth in this Agreement and 

any agreements referenced in this Agreement, including without limitation the 

Minimum Assessment Agreement, and only for so long as Developer shall not 

be in default thereunder. 
 

(d) In the event the City receives a bona fide proposal from a third party to 

acquire the Right of First Refusal Property on terms which the City desires to 

accept, the following procedures shall apply: 

 

1) The City shall provide the Developer with written notice of its receipt 

of the proposal, and include with the notice a complete copy of the 

proposal, and of the City’s desire to accept such proposal. 
 

2) The Developer shall have a period of fifteen (15) calendar days from 

the date the Developer receives a copy of the written notice from the 

City within which to notify the City in writing of Developer’s intent to 

exercise its rights to acquire the Right of First Refusal Property.  The 

Developer’s written notice to the City shall include the information 

required under subparagraph 9.2(e) of this Agreement.    
 

(e) To exercise its right to acquire the Right of First Refusal Property, Developer 

shall send a notice in writing to the City that it desires to exercise its Right of 

First Refusal to acquire the Right of First Refusal Property and that it will do 

so in one of two (2) ways, as follows: 

 

1) By purchasing the Right of First Refusal Property for a purchase price 

of Two Hundred Ten Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($210,000.00) (the 

“Right of First Refusal Cash Purchase Price”), and on terms as are 

provided for in subsection 9.2(f) of this Agreement; or 

 

2) By agreeing to construct the Phase Two Project Minimum 

Improvements, consisting of a storage facility expansion totaling at 

least 20,000 square feet of finished space (hereinafter the “Storage 

Facility Expansion”) with a minimum actual taxable value of at least 

$1,000,000.00 for the Storage Facility Expansion. Together with the 

assumed taxable value of $210,000.00 for the land that comprises the 

Right of First Refusal Property, the total minimum actual taxable value 

for the Storage Facility Expansion and land shall be at least 

$1,210,000.00.  Other terms such as are provided for in subsection 

9.2(g) of this Agreement shall also apply. 

38

Item 2.



29 

 

 

(f) The following procedure shall apply in the event that Developer exercises its 

Right of First Refusal under subsection 9.2(e)(1) after proper notice has been 

given by Developer: 

 

1) The City shall provide the Developer with a complete abstract of title 

to the Right of First Refusal Property, continued to a date subsequent 

to the date of Developer’s notice of exercise of the Right of First 

Refusal, that shows that title to the Right of First Refusal Property is 

vested in the City, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances of 

record as provided in subsection (2), all at the City’s sole cost and 

expense. 

 

2) The City shall convey clear title to the Right of First Refusal Property 

to the Developer by Quit Claim Deed upon compliance with legally 

required public proceedings, and upon payment to the City by the 

Developer of the Right of First Refusal Cash Purchase Price. Such 

conveyance and title shall be subject to restrictive covenants, 

ordinances, and limited access provisions of record, if any, and 

existing easements of record, but shall otherwise be free and clear of 

all other liens and encumbrances of record, other than compliance with 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

3) The City shall deliver the Quit Claim Deed of the Right of First 

Refusal Property to the Developer within sixty (60) days of the date 

the City receives Developer’s notice of Developer’s intent to exercise 

its Right of First Refusal to acquire the Right of First Refusal Property. 

 

4) The Developer shall promptly file the Quit Claim Deed for recordation 

among the land records in the Office of the Recorder of the County. 

The Developer shall pay all costs for recording the Quit Claim Deed. 

Any revenue stamps or transfer tax on the Quit Claim Deed shall be 

paid for by the City. 

 

(g) In the event Developer exercises its Right of First Refusal to acquire the 

Right of First Refusal Property as provided in subsection 9.2(e)(2), the 

following provisions shall apply: 

 

1) Developer agrees to execute an agreement for private development and 

minimum assessment agreement with the City on such terms and 

conditions as the City, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate, within 

sixty (60) days from the date of the City’s receipt of Developer’s 

timely, proper notice of exercise of its Right of First Refusal to acquire 

39

Item 2.



30 

 

the Right of First Refusal Property by construction of a Storage 

Facility Expansion. 

 

2) The terms and conditions of such agreement for private development 

shall include without limitation provisions substantially similar to the 

following provisions of this Agreement: 

 

i. Article II, Representations and Warranties; 

 

ii. Article III, Construction of Minimum Improvements; 

 

iii. Article IV, Restrictions upon Use of Development Property; 

 

iv. Article V, Insurance; 

 

v. Article VI, Minimum Assessment Agreement and Other 

Covenants; 

 

vi. Article VII, Prohibitions Against Assignment and Transfer; 

 

vii. Article X, Indemnification; 

 

viii. Article XI, Remedies; and 

 

ix. Article XII, Miscellaneous. 

 

3) Such agreement for private development shall not entitle Developer to 

any partial property tax exemption with respect to the Phase Two 

Project Minimum Improvements that comprise the Storage Facility 

Expansion or the land comprising the Right of First Refusal Property, 

and shall not entitle the Developer to any economic development 

grants or property tax rebates with respect thereto, and shall include a 

minimum assessment agreement that establishes the minimum 

assessed value of the Right of First Refusal Property and Storage 

Facility Expansion at no less than $1,000,000.00 for the Storage 

Facility Expansion and $210,000.00 for the land that comprises the 

Right of First Refusal Property, for a total of $1,210,000.00, for a 

period of ten (10) years following the first day of January immediately 

subsequent to completion of the construction of the Storage Facility 

Expansion. 

 

4) The Developer shall apply to the City for a building permit based upon 

a building permit valuation amount for the Storage Facility Expansion 

40

Item 2.



31 

 

of at least $1,000,000.00, and shall pay all necessary permit fees in 

connection therewith, within 120 days of exercising its Right of First 

Refusal, but in no event later than July 1, 2025, and shall commence 

construction of the Storage Facility Expansion within 120 days of 

exercising its Right of First Refusal, but in no event later than July 1, 

2025. 

 

5) The Developer shall complete construction of the Storage Facility 

Expansion within one (1) year of the date of issuance of the building 

permit therefore. 

 

6) The Storage Facility Expansion may be either a new building or 

structure, or an expansion of the original Storage Facility that shall 

comprise the Phase Two Project Minimum Improvements, and may 

either be located on the Development Property, on the First Right of 

Refusal Property, or partially on each such property. 

 

 Section 9.3.  Expiration of Right of First Refusal. If the Developer fails to notify the 

City in a timely manner of the exercise of its Right of First Refusal to acquire the Right of 

First Refusal Property by either of the means described in subsections 9.2(e)(1) or 

9.2(e)(2) by the Right of First Refusal Expiration Date, Developer’s Right of First Refusal 

shall expire on the Right of First Refusal Expiration Date, and Developer shall have no 

further rights in and to the Right of First Refusal Property. The City shall thereafter own 

the Right of First Refusal Property free and clear of any right, title, interest or claim of the 

Developer. 

 

 Section 9.4.  Right of First Refusal Personal to Developer.  The rights of Developer 

as described in this Article IX are personal to Developer, and may not be assigned or 

transferred to any third party under any circumstances. Any attempted assignment, 

transfer, or conveyance of the rights of Developer under this Article without the express 

written consent of the City shall cause an immediate termination of all of the Developer’s 

rights described in this Article. 

 

 Section 9.5.  Resale of Right of First Refusal Property Within Five Years.  In the 

event that Developer, having acquired the Right of First Refusal Property by payment of 

the Right of First Refusal Cash Purchase Price under subsections 9.2(e)(1) and 9.2(f), sells 

the Right of First Refusal Property to any third party at any time within five (5) years of 

the date of the City’s delivery of the Quit Claim Deed conveying the Right of First 

Refusal Property to the Developer, the Developer shall pay to the City an amount equal to 

fifty percent (50%) of the amount by which the sale price of the Right of First Refusal 

Property exceeds the Right of First Refusal Cash Purchase Price of $210,000.00, which 

amount shall be paid in cash in full to the City immediately upon the happening of the sale 

of the Right of First Refusal Property by the Developer. Failure to pay said amount shall 

41

Item 2.



32 

 

constitute a default under this Agreement. For purposes of this subsection, the term “sell” 

shall include any voluntary of involuntary sale, exchange, or transfer of title to the Right 

of First Refusal Property, or any part thereof, to any person or entity whatsoever other 

than the City; provided, however, that Developer may grant a mortgage on the Right of 

First Refusal Property as security for a loan made to or guaranteed by the Developer, and 

the same shall not, in and of itself, constitute a sale of the Right of First Refusal Property 

within the meaning of this subsection. 

 

ARTICLE X.  INDEMNIFICATION 

 

 Section 10.1.  Release and Indemnification Covenants. 

 

 (a) The Developer releases the City and the governing body members, officers, 

agents, servants and employees thereof (hereinafter, for purposes of this Article 

X, the "indemnified parties") from, covenants and agrees that the indemnified 

parties shall not be liable for, and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 

the indemnified parties against, any loss or damage to property or any injury to 

or death of any person occurring at or about or resulting from any defect in the 

Phase One Project Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (b) Except for any willful misrepresentation, or any willful or wanton misconduct, 

or any unlawful act, or any negligent act or omission of the indemnified parties, 

Developer agrees to protect and defend the indemnified parties, now or forever, 

and further agrees to hold the indemnified parties harmless, from any claim, 

demand, suit, action or other proceedings whatsoever by any person or entity 

whatsoever arising or purportedly arising from any violation of any agreement 

or condition of this Agreement by the Developer, including but not limited to 

claims for the construction, installation, ownership, and operation of the Phase 

One Project Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (c) The indemnified parties shall not be liable for any damage or injury to the 

persons or property of the Developer or its officers, agents, servants or 

employees or any other person who may be about the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements due to any act of negligence, including a negligent 

failure to act, of any person, other than any act of negligence on the part of any 

such indemnified party or its officers, agents, servants or employees. 

 

 (d) The provisions of this Article X shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 

42

Item 2.



33 

 

ARTICLE XI.  REMEDIES 

 

 Section 11.1.  Events of Default Defined.  The following shall be "Events of Default" 

under this Agreement and the term "Event of Default" shall mean, whenever it is used in 

this Agreement, any one or more of the following events: 

  

 (a) Failure by the Developer to cause the construction of the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements to be commenced and completed pursuant to the 

terms, conditions and limitations of Article III of this Agreement, subject to 

Unavoidable Delays; 

 

 (b) Failure by the Developer or its successors to cause the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements to be reconstructed when required pursuant to Article 

III of this Agreement. 

 

 (c) Failure by the City to cause the Development Property to be conveyed to the 

Developer pursuant to the terms, conditions and limitations of Section 8.1 of 

this Agreement, subject to Unavoidable Delays; 

 

 (d) Transfer of the Developer's ownership interest in the Development Property or 

any interest of Developer in this Agreement, or the assets of Developer in 

violation of the provisions of Article VII of this Agreement, until the 

Termination Date; 

 

 (e) Failure by the Developer until the Termination Date, to pay ad valorem taxes on 

the Development Property;  

 

 (f) Failure by the Developer until the Termination Date to substantially observe or 

perform any other covenant, condition, obligation or agreement on its part to be 

observed or performed under this Agreement; 

 

 (g) The holder of any Mortgage on the Development Property, or any improvements 

thereon, or any portion thereof, commences foreclosure proceedings as a result 

of any default under the applicable Mortgage documents; 

 

 (h) Sale or lease of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements or Development 

Property in violation of the provisions of Section 6.12, Relocation, of this 

Agreement; 

 

 (i) The Developer shall: 

 

  (i) file any petition in bankruptcy or for any reorganization, arrangement, 

composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief 

43

Item 2.



34 

 

under the United States Bankruptcy Act of 1978, as amended, or under 

any similar federal or state law; or 

 

  (ii) make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or 

 

  (iii) admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become 

due; or 

 

  (iv) be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent; or if a petition or answer 

proposing adjudication as a bankrupt or reorganization under any present 

or future federal bankruptcy act or any similar federal or state law shall 

be filed in any court and such petition or answer shall not be discharged 

or denied within ninety (90) days after the filing thereof; or a receiver, 

trustee or liquidator of the Developer or the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements, or part thereof, shall be appointed in any proceedings 

brought against the Developer and shall not be discharged within ninety 

(90) days after such appointment, or if the Developer shall consent to or 

acquiesce in such appointment; or 

 

 (j) Any obligation, representation or warranty made by any party to this 

Agreement, any Exhibit hereto, or made by any party in any written statement 

or certificate pursuant to this Agreement, shall prove to have been incorrect, 

incomplete or misleading in any material respect on or as of the date of the 

issuance or making thereof.   

 

 Section 11.2.  Remedies on Default.  Whenever any Event of Default referred to in 

Section 11.1 of this Agreement occurs and is continuing, any party not in default may take 

any one or more of the following actions after the giving of thirty (30) days' written notice 

to the party in default, and the holder of the Mortgage, of the Event of Default, but only if 

the Event of Default has not been cured within said thirty (30) days, or if the Event of 

Default cannot reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days and the party in default does not 

provide assurances reasonably satisfactory to the party giving notice that the Event of 

Default will be cured as soon as reasonably possible: 

 

 (a) The party giving notice may suspend its performance under this Agreement until 

it receives assurances from the party in default, deemed adequate by the party 

giving notice, that the party in default will cure the default and continue 

performance under this Agreement; 

 

 (b) If the Developer is in default, the City may withhold the Certificate of 

Completion;  

 

44

Item 2.



35 

 

 (c) The party who is not in default may take any action, including legal, equitable 

or administrative action, which may appear necessary or desirable to recover 

damages proximately caused by the Default, or to enforce performance and 

observance of any obligation, agreement, or covenant, under this Agreement. 

 

 (d) In the event the Developer fails to perform any one or more of the material 

obligations described in Article III of this Agreement in a timely manner, 

Developer shall thereupon immediately convey title to the Development 

Property to the City, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, but subject to 

restrictive covenants, ordinances, and limited access provisions of record, if any, 

and to existing easements, if any.  Developer shall also establish to the 

satisfaction of City and its legal counsel that no labor has been performed and 

no materials have been furnished by any contractor, subcontractor, or any other 

person, firm or entity, in connection with any improvements made to the 

Development Property within the ninety (90) days immediately preceding the 

date of said conveyance.  Developer shall also deliver to City an abstract of title 

covering the Development Property, certified to a date subsequent to the date of 

said conveyance, showing that marketable title to the Development Property is 

vested in Developer and complies with the requirements of this subsection.  

Developer shall pay to City all general property taxes and special assessments, 

if any, due or to become due with respect to the Development Property, 

continuing until the Development Property is assessed to the City and is exempt 

from assessment for general property taxes by reason of its conveyance to and 

ownership by the City as a tax-exempt governmental body.  Developer shall pay 

for all costs associated with conveyance of the Development Property to the 

City, including, but not limited to, abstracting, recording fees, and reasonable 

attorneys' fees.  In the event the Developer fails to comply with the terms and 

conditions of this subsection (d) within the thirty (30) day period described in 

Section 11.2 of this Article, then the City may proceed as provided in Section 

11.2(c) of this Article, to obtain a decree of specific performance against 

Developer for the conveyance of the Development Property to the City or, in 

lieu thereof, at the City’s sole discretion, to obtain a judgment for monetary 

damages to compensate the City for the Developer’s default, plus attorneys’ fees 

and expenses as provided in Section 11.5. 

 

 Section 11.3.  No Remedy Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved 

to the parties is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each 

and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given 

under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute.  No delay 

or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such 

right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power 

may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.   

 

45

Item 2.



36 

 

 Section 11.4.  No Implied Waiver.  In the event any agreement contained in this 

Agreement should be breached by any party and thereafter waived by any other party, such 

waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive 

any other concurrent, previous or subsequent breach hereunder. 

 

 Section 11.5.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses.  Whenever any Event 

of Default occurs and a party not in default shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses 

for the collection of payments due or to become due or for the enforcement or performance 

or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of a party in default herein 

contained, the party in default agrees that it shall, on demand therefor, pay to the party not 

in default the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses as may be 

reasonably and appropriately incurred by the party not in default in connection therewith. 

 

ARTICLE XII.  MISCELLANEOUS 

 

 Section 12.1.  Conflict of Interest.  Developer agrees that, to its best knowledge and 

belief, no member, officer or employee of the City, or its designees or agents, nor any 

consultant or member of the governing body of the City, and no other public official of the 

City who exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to the 

Project during his or her tenure, or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making 

process or gain insider information with regard to the Project, shall have any interest, direct 

or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed 

in connection with the Project, or in any activity, or benefit therefrom, which is part of this 

Project at any time during or after such person's tenure. 

 

 Section 12.2.  Non-Discrimination.  In carrying out the construction and operation 

of the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements, the Developer shall not discriminate 

against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, gender, 

sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, age or disability.  The 

Developer shall insure that applicants for employment are employed, and the employees are 

treated during employment, without regard to their race, creed, color, gender, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, age or disability.   

 

 Section 12.3.  Notices.  Whenever this Agreement requires or permits any consent, 

approval, notice, request, proposal, or demand (collectively, "Notice") from one party to 

another, the Notice must be in writing and shall be effective upon actual receipt by the 

intended recipient, at the following addresses:    

 

46

Item 2.



37 

 

DEVELOPER:  Mr. Brian Wingert 

    Member 

    CF Storage, L.L.C.  

    201 Washington Street 

    Cedar Falls, IA 50613    

 

With a copy to:  Eric Johnson 

    Beecher, Field, Walker, Morris, Hoffman & Johnson, P.C. 

    620 Lafayette Street, Suite 300 

    Waterloo, IA 50703 

 

 CITY   City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

    City Administrator 

    220 Clay Street 

    Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 

or to such other designated individual or officer or to such other address as any party shall 

have furnished to the other in writing in accordance herewith.  Any party entitled to receive 

a Notice hereunder may change the address which it previously had specified for receiving 

the same, at any time and from time to time, by delivering a written change notice in 

accordance with the above provisions to the other parties at least five (5) business days prior 

to the effective date of such change. 

 

 Section 12.4.  Titles of Articles and Sections.  Any titles of the several parts, Articles, 

and Sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be 

disregarded in construing or interpreting any of its provisions. 

 

 Section 12.5.  Provisions Not Merged With Deed.  None of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be merged by reason of the delivery of the Deed, and the Deed shall not 

be deemed to affect or impair the provisions and covenants of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 12.6.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa. 

 

 Section 12.7.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the exhibits hereto reflect the 

entire agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof, and supersedes 

and replaces all prior agreements, negotiations or discussions, whether oral or written.  This 

Agreement may not be amended except by a subsequent writing signed by all parties hereto. 

 

 Section 12.8.  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement is intended to and shall inure 

to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and 

assigns. 

 

47

Item 2.



38 

 

 Section 12.9.  Termination Date of Minimum Assessment Agreement.  This 

Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force or effect with respect to the Phase One 

Project Minimum Improvements on the termination of the Minimum Assessment 

Agreement, as provided in Section 6.1 of this Agreement and in the Minimum Assessment 

Agreement, the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

 

 Section 12.10.  Memorandum of Agreement.  The parties agree to execute and record 

a Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development, in substantially the form attached 

as Exhibit F, to serve as notice to the public of the existence and provisions of this 

Agreement, and the rights and interests held by the City by virtue hereof.  Developer shall 

pay all costs of recording. 

 

 Section 12.11.  Immediate Undertaking.  All parties agree to undertake immediately 

upon execution of this Agreement all of those obligations which require immediate action. 

 

 Section 12.12.  No Partnership or Joint Venture.  The relationship herein created 

between the parties is contractual in nature and is in no way to be construed as creating a 

partnership or joint venture between the Developer and any or all of the other parties. 

 

 Section 12.13.  Captions.  The captions, headings, and arrangements used in this 

Agreement are for convenience only and shall not in any way affect, limit, amplify, or 

modify the terms and provisions hereof. 

 

 Section 12.14.  Number and Gender of Words.  Whenever herein the singular number 

is used, the same shall include the plural where appropriate, and words of any gender shall 

include each other where appropriate. 

   

 Section 12.15.  Invalid Provisions.  If any provision of this Agreement or any 

agreement contemplated hereby is held to be illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable under 

present or future laws effective during the term of such agreement; then: (i) such provision 

shall be fully severable; (ii) such agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such 

illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of such 

agreement; and (iii) the remaining provisions of such agreement shall remain in full force 

and effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable provision 

or by its severance from such agreement.  Furthermore, in lieu of such illegal, void, invalid, 

or unenforceable provision there shall be added automatically as a part of such agreement a 

provision as similar in terms to such illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable provision as 

may be legal, valid, and enforceable, whether or not such a substitute provision is 

specifically provided for in such agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event 

any provision involving material consideration by the City for the benefit of the Developer 

shall be held illegal, void, invalid or unenforceable, then the Developer shall have the right 

to cancel this Agreement, and upon such cancellation, this Agreement, in its entirety, shall 

48

Item 2.



39 

 

be rendered null and void; however, in that event, Developer shall proceed as described in 

Section 11.2(d) of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 12.16.  Multiple Counterparts.  This Agreement has been executed in a number 

of identical counterparts, each of which is to be deemed an original for all purposes and all 

of which constitute collectively one agreement, but in making proof of this Agreement it 

shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 

 

 Section 12.17.  Authorization.  Each party hereto represents that prior to its execution 

hereof all necessary company, governmental or other appropriate action, as applicable, 

including without limitation resolutions of their governing boards or bodies, has been taken 

to authorize the execution of this Agreement and the performance by such party of its 

respective obligations hereunder. 

 

 Section 12.18.  Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence with respect to all matters 

described in this Agreement and related documents.  

 

 Section 12.19.  Survival.  Each provision of this Agreement shall survive the 

occurrence of the other provisions of this Agreement to the extent necessary to ensure full 

performance of said surviving provision. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its 

name and behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be hereunto duly affixed and attested by its 

City Clerk, and the Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its name 

and behalf by its member, all on or as of the day first above written. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

              Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk      

       

49

Item 2.



40 

 

 

 

 

CF Storage, L.L.C., 

an Iowa limited liability company  

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Brian Wingert, Member 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Trevor Kerndt, Member 

 

DEVELOPER 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

  

 

This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 2022, 

by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa. 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

 

 

50

Item 2.



41 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 

2022, by Brian Wingert and Trevor Kerndt, Members, CF Storage, L.L.C., an Iowa limited 

liability company. 

    

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

  

51

Item 2.



42 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 

 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

 

 

 The Development Property is described as consisting of all that certain parcel or 

parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of 

Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 18, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 4.73 acres more or less). 

 

 

  

52

Item 2.



43 

 

EXHIBIT A-2 

 

RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL PROPERTY 

 

 

 The Right of First Refusal Property is described as consisting of all that certain parcel 

or parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State 

of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 17, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 3.24 acres more or less). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53

Item 2.



44 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

PHASE ONE PROJECT MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 The Phase One Project Minimum Improvements shall consist of the construction of a 

Storage Facility totaling at least 30,000 square feet of finished space, all as set forth in the 

Construction Plans and being as more particularly shown and in substantially the same 

configuration and scope as the Site Plans attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 

 The Developer agrees to connect to the sanitary sewer, storm sewer, natural gas, 

electricity, water, underground telephone cable, internet and any other utilities services from 

their present locations to such location or locations on the Development Property as 

Developer deems appropriate, at its cost.  The Developer also agrees to construct any 

driveway approaches and other paving, at its cost, in accordance with City ordinances.  

 

 The Developer also agrees to perform or cause to be performed all necessary grading, 

land preparation and all necessary building improvements, landscaping, storm water 

detention, signage, and all other site improvements, in all respects in entire conformity with 

all applicable codes and ordinances of the City, all at the Developer's cost.  The submittal 

to City of plans for the construction of said improvements shall be in substantial conformity 

with the following schedule: 

 

Schedule of Performance 

 

Activity to be Completed    Completion Date 

 

Issuance of Building Permit   September 1, 2023 

 

Substantial Completion     December 31, 2024 

 

Issuance of Occupancy Permit   December 31, 2024 
 

 

54

Item 2.



 

45 

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter called 

"City"), established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the 

authorization of Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2021 (Chapter 403 hereinafter 

called "Urban Renewal Act"); and CF Storage, L.L.C.,  (hereinafter called the "Developer"), 

an Iowa limited liability company having its principal place of business at 201 Washington 

Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613; did on or about the _____ day of _______________, 2022, 

make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an Agreement for Private Development (the 

"Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in accordance with the terms of the 

Agreement, to develop and maintain certain real property located within the City and as 

more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 18, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 4.73 acres more or less) 

 

(the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement incorporated and contained certain covenants and 

restrictions with respect to the development of the Development Property, and obligated 

Developer to construct certain Phase One Project Minimum Improvements (as defined 

therein) in accordance with the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Developer performed said covenants and conditions insofar as they relate 

to the construction of said Phase One Project Minimum Improvements in a manner deemed 

by the City to be in conformance with the approved building plans to permit the execution 

and recording of this certification. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the Agreement, this is to certify that all covenants 

and conditions of the Agreement with respect to the obligations of Developer and its 

successors and assigns, to construct the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements have 

been completed and performed by Developer and are hereby released absolutely and forever 

terminated insofar as they apply to the land described herein.  The County Recorder of Black 

Hawk County is hereby authorized to accept for recording and to record the filing of this 

instrument, to be a conclusive determination of the satisfactory termination of the covenants 

and conditions of said Agreement with respect to the construction of the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements. 

 

55

Item 2.



 

46 

 

 All other provisions of the Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect 

until termination as provided therein. 

 

 (SEAL)    THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

      By: ________________________________ 

             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

  

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2022, by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

    Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

  

56

Item 2.



 

47 

 

EXHIBIT D 

 

MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT, dated as of this _________ day 

of ______________, 2022, by and among the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, (the 

"City"), and CF Storage, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company, (the "Developer"), and 

the COUNTY ASSESSOR for the County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa (the "Assessor"). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, on or before the date hereof the City and Developer have entered into 

an Agreement for Private Development dated as of ______________________________, 

2022 (the "Agreement") regarding certain real property located in the City legally described 

as: 

 

Lot 18 West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 4.73 acres more or less). 

 

(the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is contemplated that pursuant to said Agreement, the Developer will 

undertake the development of the Development Property, which is within the Cedar Falls 

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 403.6(19) of the Code of Iowa, 2021, as amended, 

the City and the Developer desire to establish a minimum actual value for the facilities 

thereon to be constructed by the Developer pursuant to the Agreement (defined therein as 

the "Phase One Project Minimum Improvements"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Assessor have reviewed the preliminary plans and 

specifications for the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements which it is contemplated 

will be erected. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Minimum Assessment Agreement, in 

consideration of the promises, covenants and agreements made by each other, do hereby 

agree as follows: 

 

 1.   Upon substantial completion of construction of the above-referenced Phase One 

Project Minimum Improvements by the Developer, but no later than January 1, 2025, the 

minimum actual value which shall be fixed for assessment purposes for the Phase One 

Project Minimum Improvements to be constructed on the Development Property by the 

Developer and the land that together comprise the Development Property, shall be not less 

than One Million Seven Hundred Ten Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($1,710,000.00) 

57

Item 2.



 

48 

 

(hereafter referred to as the "Minimum Actual Value") until termination of this Minimum 

Assessment Agreement.  The parties hereto expect that the construction of the above-

referenced Phase One Project Minimum Improvements will be completed on or before 

September 1, 2024. 

 

 Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive the Developer's rights under Iowa Code 

Section 403.6(19) to contest that portion of any actual value assignment made by the 

Assessor in excess of the Assessor’s Minimum Actual Value established herein, or any 

actual value assignment made by the Assessor to the Phase One Project Minimum 

Improvements or to the 4.73 acres of land, which together comprise the Development 

Property.  In no event, however, shall the Developer seek to reduce the actual value assigned 

below the Assessor’s Minimum Actual Value established herein during the term of this 

Agreement. 

 

 2.   The Assessor’s Minimum Actual Value herein established shall be of no further 

force and effect and this Minimum Assessment Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 

2034. 

 

 3.   This Minimum Assessment Agreement shall be promptly recorded by the 

Developer with the Recorder of Black Hawk County, Iowa.  The Developer shall pay all 

costs of recording. 

 

 4.   Neither the preambles nor provisions of this Minimum Assessment Agreement 

are intended to, or shall be construed as, modifying the terms of the Agreement between the 

City and the Developer. 

 

 5.   This Minimum Assessment Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 

upon the successors and assigns of the parties, and all holders of mortgages upon or security 

interests in the Development Property, including the land and the Phase One Project 

Minimum Improvements,   to secure any loans with respect to the Development Property, 

including the land and the Phase One Project Minimum Improvements. 

 

 

      THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: ____________________________________ 

             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

58

Item 2.



 

49 

 

DEVELOPER: 

 

CF Storage, L.L.C. 

An Iowa limited liability company  

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Brian Wingert, Member 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Trevor Kerndt, Member 

 

 

 
 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2022, by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

     __________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 

2022, by Brian Wingert and Trevor Kerndt, Members, CF Storage, L.L.C., an Iowa limited 

liability company. 

    

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

 

  

59

Item 2.



 

50 

 

 

CERTIFICATION OF ASSESSOR 

 

 The undersigned, having reviewed the plans and specifications for the Phase One 

Project Minimum Improvements to be constructed and the market value assigned to such 

Phase One Project Minimum Improvements, and being of the opinion that the minimum 

market value contained in the foregoing Minimum Assessment Agreement appears 

reasonable, hereby certifies as follows:  The undersigned Assessor, being legally 

responsible for the assessment of the property described in the foregoing Minimum 

Assessment Agreement, upon completion of Phase One Project Minimum Improvements to 

be made on it and in accordance with the Minimum Assessment Agreement, certifies that 

the actual taxable value assigned to such Phase One Project Minimum Improvements and 

the 4.73 acres of land on which such Phase One Project Minimum Improvements are to be 

constructed, which together comprise the Development Property, upon completion shall not 

be less than $1,710,000.00, until termination of this Minimum Assessment Agreement 

pursuant to the terms hereof. 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      County Assessor for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Date 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss:    

 

 Subscribed and sworn to before me by T.J. Koenigsfeld, County Assessor for Black 

Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

      ______________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Date 
 

 

60

Item 2.



 

51 

 

EXHIBIT E 

 

FORM OF LEGAL OPINION 

 

City of Cedar Falls 

Attn: City Clerk 

City Hall 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

 

RE: Agreement for Private Development by and between the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa and CF Storage, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company 

 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa: 

 

 As counsel for CF Storage, L.L.C.  (the "Developer"), and in connection with the 

execution and delivery of a certain Development Agreement (the "Development 

Agreement") between the Developer and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") dated as 

of ________________, 2022, we hereby render the following opinion: 

 

 We have examined the original certified copy, or copies otherwise identified to our 

satisfaction as being true copies, of the following: 

 

(a) The certificate of organization and operating agreement, together with 

all amendments thereto, of the Developer; 

 

(b) Resolutions of the members of the Developer at which action was 

taken with respect to the transactions covered by this opinion; 

 

  (c) The Development Agreement; 

 

and such other documents and records as we have deemed relevant and necessary as a basis 

for the opinions set forth herein. 

 

 Based on the pertinent law, the foregoing examination and such other inquiries as we 

have deemed appropriate, we are of the opinion that: 

 

 1. The Developer has been duly organized and is validly existing as a limited 

liability company under the laws of the State of Iowa and is authorized to do business in the 

State of Iowa.  The Developer has full power and authority to execute, deliver and perform 

in full the Development Agreement and the Minimum Assessment Agreement; and the 

Development Agreement and the Minimum Assessment Agreement have been duly and 

validly authorized by action of the members, have been executed and delivered by an 

61

Item 2.



 

52 

 

authorized manager of the Developer and, assuming due authorization, execution and 

delivery by the City, are  in full force and effect and are  valid and legally binding 

instruments of the Developer enforceable in accordance with their  terms, except as the same 

may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws relating to or 

affecting creditors' rights generally. 

 

 2. The execution, delivery and performance by the Developer of the Development 

Agreement, the Minimum Assessment Agreement, and the carrying out of the terms thereof, 

will not result in violation of any provision of, or in default under, the certificate of 

organization and operating agreement of the Developer or any indenture, mortgage, deed of 

trust, indebtedness, agreement, judgment, decree, order, statute, rule, regulation or 

restriction to which the Developer is a party or by which it or its property is bound or subject. 

 

 3. To our knowledge and after inquiry to Developer, there are no actions, suits or 

proceedings pending or threatened against or affecting the Developer in any court or before 

any arbitrator or before or by any governmental body in which there is a reasonable 

possibility of an adverse decision which could materially adversely affect the business 

(present or prospective), financial position or results of operations of the Developer or 

which in any manner raises any questions affecting the validity of the Development 

Agreement, the Minimum Assessment Agreement, or the Developer's ability to perform its 

obligations thereunder. 

 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

BEECHER, FIELD, WALKER, MORRIS, HOFFMAN AND JOHNSON, P.C. 

 

 

By:______________________________________ 

 Eric Johnson, Attorney at Law 

       620 Lafayette Street, Suite 300 

 Waterloo, IA 50703 

 

  

62

Item 2.



 

53 

 

EXHIBIT F 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter called 

"City"), established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the 

authorization of Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2021 (Chapter 403 hereinafter 

called "Urban Renewal Act"); and CF Storage, L.L.C.,  (hereinafter called the "Developer"), 

an Iowa limited liability company having its principal place of business at 201 Washington 

Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, did on or about the _____ day of ______________, 2022, 

make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an Agreement for Private Development (the 

"Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in accordance with the terms of the 

Agreement and the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan (the 

"Plan"), to develop certain real property located within the City and within the Cedar Falls 

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan and as more particularly described as 

follows: 

 

Lot 18 West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 4.73 acres more or less) 

 

(the "Development Property"), and  

 

 WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement commenced on the ___ day of ___________, 

2022, and terminates on the 31st day of December, 2034, with respect to the Development 

Property, unless otherwise terminated as set forth in the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to record a Memorandum of the Agreement referring 

to the Development Property and their respective interests therein.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 1. That the recording of this Memorandum of Agreement for Private 

Development shall serve as notice to the public that the Agreement contains provisions 

restricting conveyance, development and use of the Development Property and the 

improvements located and operated on such Development Property, and contains provisions 

dealing with the dollar amount of the minimum taxable value of the Development Property 

for general property tax purposes, and the length of time during which said minimum 

assessed value continues in effect, as provided for in Section 403.6(19), Code of Iowa. 

 

 2. That all of the provisions of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments 

thereto, if any, even though not set forth herein, are by the filing of this Memorandum of 

Agreement for Private Development made a part hereof by reference, and that anyone 

making any claim against any of said Development Property in any manner whatsoever 

63

Item 2.



 

54 

 

shall be fully advised as to all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement, and any 

amendments thereto, as if the same were fully set forth herein.   

 

 3. That a copy of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments thereto, if any, 

shall be maintained on file for public inspection during ordinary business hours in the office 

of the City Clerk, City Hall, Cedar Falls, Iowa.   

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Memorandum of 

Agreement for Private Development on the ______ day of _______________________, 

2022. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

               Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________________________ 

 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

CF Storage, L.L.C. 

an Iowa limited liability company. 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Brian Wingert, Member 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Trevor Kerndt, Member 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

64

Item 2.



 

55 

 

STATE OF IOWA , COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss:   

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2022, by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

     _________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 2022, 

by Brian Wingert and Trevor Kerndt, Members, CF Storage, L.L.C., an Iowa limited 

liability company. 

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 
 

65

Item 2.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5160 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN 
AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT AND A MINIMUM ASSESSMENT 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND 
CF STORAGE, L.L.C., AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 
A QUIT CLAIM DEED CONVEYING TITLE TO CERTAIN REAL ESTATE TO CF 
STORAGE, L.L.C. 

 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on November 12, 1990 
(Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 
(Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 2003 
(Ordinance No. 2461), amended a third time by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 2012 
(Ordinance No. 2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution 19,263 on November 3, 2014, 
amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, amended a sixth time by 
Resolution No. 21,279 on May 7, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), amended a seventh time by 
Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth 
time by Resolution No. 22,205 on December 21, 2020, the City Council has approved and adopted 
an urban renewal plan designated as the “Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Plan” (the “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable that properties within the Urban Renewal Plan be developed as 
part of the overall development area covered by said Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from CF Storage, L.L.C.  ("Developer"), in 
the form of a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") by and between 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") and the Developer, pursuant to which, among other 
things, the Developer would agree to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as defined in the 
Agreement) on certain real property located within the Urban Renewal Plan as legally described 
in the Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (defined in the 
Agreement as the "Development Property"), consisting of the construction of a Storage Facility 
totaling at least 30,000 square feet of finished space, together with all related site improvements, 
as outlined in the proposed Development Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City provide certain financial 
incentives for the urban renewal project under the terms and following satisfaction of the 

66

Item 2.



 2 

conditions set forth in the Agreement, consisting of conveyance of title to the Development 
Property to the Developer, the Development Property being legally described as follows: 
 

Lot 18, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, 
Iowa (Contains 4.73 acres more or less); and 

 
 WHEREAS, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 403 (the "Urban Renewal Law") authorize cities 
to make loans and grants and to convey real property to developers for economic development 
purposes in furtherance of the objectives of an urban renewal project and to appropriate such 
funds, make such expenditures and convey such real property as may be necessary to carry out 
the purposes of said Chapters, and to levy taxes and assessments for such purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City, the Developer and the 
Assessor of Black Hawk County, Iowa, enter into a Minimum Assessment Agreement (the 
"Minimum Assessment Agreement"), whereby the minimum actual taxable value of the 
improvements to be constructed thereon would be established at an amount not less than 
$1,710,000.00 for a period through December 31, 2034; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the Agreement is in the best 
interests of the City and the residents thereof, and that the performance by the City of its 
obligations thereunder is a public undertaking and purpose and in furtherance of the Urban 
Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the Agreement and the City's 
performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic development activities and 
objectives of the City within the meaning of Chapters 403 and 15A of the Iowa Code, taking into 
account the factors set forth in Chapter 15A, to-wit: 
 

a) Businesses that add diversity to or generate new opportunities for the Iowa 
economy should be favored over those that do not. 

 
b) Development policies in the dispensing of the funds should attract, retain, or 

expand businesses that produce exports or import substitutes or which generate 
tourism-related activities. 

 
c) Development policies in the dispensing or use of the funds should be targeted 

toward businesses that generate public gains and benefits, which gains and 
benefits are warranted in comparison to the amount of the funds dispensed. 

 
d) Development policies in dispensing the funds should not be used to attract a 

business presently located within the state to relocate to another portion of the 
state unless the business is considering in good faith to relocate outside the state 
or unless the relocation is related to an expansion which will generate significant 
new job creation.  Jobs created as a result of other jobs in similar Iowa businesses 
being displaced shall not be considered direct jobs for the purpose of dispensing 
funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the requirements of Iowa Code 

Section 403.8 with respect to the transfer of property in an urban renewal area are satisfied insofar 
as the Development Property is being disposed of for the purpose of development of an industrial 
building (see Iowa Code Section 403.8(2)(b)), and because the terms of the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement satisfy the safe harbor contained in Iowa Code Section 403.8(3). 

 

67

Item 2.



 3 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  That the performance by the City of its obligations under the Agreement, 
including but not limited to conveyance of the Development Property to the Developer in 
connection with the development of the Development Property under the terms set forth in the 
Agreement, be and is hereby declared to be a public undertaking and purpose and in furtherance 
of the Urban Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the Agreement and the 
City's performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic development activities 
and objectives of the City within the meaning of chapters 403 and 15A of the Iowa Code, taking 
into account the factors set forth therein. 
 
 Section 2.  That the form and content of the Agreement, the provisions of which are 
incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby are in all respects authorized, 
approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Agreement for and on behalf of 
the City in substantially the form and content now before this meeting, and that from and after the 
execution and delivery of the Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as 
may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Agreement as executed, 
including but not limited to execution and delivery of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to the 
Development Property to the Developer. 
 
 Section 3.  That the form and content of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, the 
provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same are hereby in all 
respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content now 
before this meeting, and that from and after the execution and delivery of the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and 
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary 
to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, as executed. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this _____ day of ________________, 2022. 
 
 

     
 _________________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

68

Item 2.



 4 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 
 
 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution 

No. _____ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of 

____________________, 2022. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official 

seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2022. 

   

  
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 

69

Item 2.



ORDINANCE NO. 3020 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 16-24, FIREWORKS, OF ARTICLE I, IN 

GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 16, OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

CHANGING THE DATES AND TIMES OF ALLOWED USE OF CONSUMER 

FIREWORKS AND CHANGING THE PENALTY FOR VIOLATION TO A SIMPLE 

MISDEMEANOR. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Subsection 16-24(b), Prohibitions and Use, of Section 16-24, Fireworks, of Article I, In 

General, of Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Subsection 16-24(b), 

Prohibitions and Use, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

(b) Prohibitions and use. 

(1) It shall be unlawful for any person to use or explode any consumer fireworks within the 
corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls except on July 4 of each year between the hours of 
9:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m. Any additional days of allowed use may be designated by resolution 
of council if adopted between the dates of January 1 and March 1 of each year to apply to the 
same calendar year.  This section shall not apply to novelties. 

(2) The use of consumer fireworks that mimic display fireworks or rise to 150 decibels or to 210 
feet elevation is banned from use at all times within the corporate limits of the City of Cedar 
Falls unless the user has obtained a permit as provided in subsection 16-24(e).  

(3) Consistent with the Code of Iowa, use of fireworks within the corporate limits of the City of 
Cedar Falls  shall only occur on the user's owned real property or on real property where the 
owner has given consent prior to use. Use of fireworks, unless a permit has been obtained, is 
not allowed on city-owned property, public sidewalks, rights-of-way, streets, parks, or parking 
lots.  

(4) It is prohibited to direct the use of consumer fireworks in any direction other than onto the 
user's owned real property or the real property where the owner has given prior consent.  

(5) All consumer firework debris shall be removed from the user's real property or wherever such 
use has resulted in its debris being located.  

(c) Exceptions. This section shall not apply to the use of blank cartridges for a show or the theater, or 
for signal purposes in athletic sports or by railroads or trucks, for signal purposes, or by a 
recognized military organization. This section shall not apply to any substance or composition 
prepared and sold for medicinal or fumigation purposes. This section shall not apply to a person 
using or exploding fireworks under a valid permit as provided in subsection 16-24(e).  

(d) Enforcement. 

(1) Citations for violation of this section 16-24 shall be directed to the person observed/found to 
have violated this section or the owner of real property on which the evidence exists of 
violation of this section. Furthermore, where evidence of violation of noise or nuisance 
ordinances exists, such citations may also be written.  

70

Item 3.



(2) The vendors of fireworks shall be monitored during sales periods as to type of consumer 
fireworks sold and for compliance with subsection 16-24(f).  

(e) Display fireworks. The council may, upon application in writing, grant a permit for the use and 
explosion of display fireworks within the city limits by municipalities, fair associations, amusement 
parks, and other organizations or groups of individuals when the use and explosion of such display 
fireworks will be handled by a competent operator, and proof of liability insurance is shown. (See 
also section 9-20.)  

(f) Sales. A seller of consumer fireworks must possess a license from the state fire marshal. Any 
retailer or community group selling consumer fireworks must prominently display, at the entrance 
and exit sites, signs informing customers that the use of consumer fireworks is prohibited within 
the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls except on the dates and times authorized by this 
section.  

(g) Violation; Appeal. A person who violates this section commits a simple misdemeanor punishable by 
a fine of not less than two hundred fifty dollars.  

 

INTRODUCED:     November 7, 2022   

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:  November 7, 2022   

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:  November 21, 2022   

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 

 

 

___________________________ 

                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

71

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO. 30203019 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 16-24, FIREWORKS, OF ARTICLE I, IN 

GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 16, OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

CHANGING THE DATES AND TIMES OF ALLOWED USE OF CONSUMER 

FIREWORKS AND CHANGING THE PENALTY FOR VIOLATION TO A SIMPLE 

MISDEMEANOR. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Subsection 16-24(b), Prohibitions and Use, of Section 16-24, Fireworks, of Article I, In 

General, of Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Subsection 16-24(b), 

Prohibitions and Use, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

(b) Prohibitions and use. 

(1) It shall be unlawful for any person to use or explode any consumer fireworks within the 
corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls except on July 3 and July 4 of each year between the 
hours of 9:00 a.m. 12:00 noon and 11:00 10:30 p.m. Any additional days of allowed use may 
be designated by resolution of council if adopted between the dates of January 1 and March 1 
of each year to apply to the same calendar year.  This section shall not apply to novelties. 

(2) The use of consumer fireworks that mimic display fireworks or rise to 150 decibels or to 210 
feet elevation is banned from use at all times within the corporate limits of the City of Cedar 
Falls unless the user has obtained a permit as provided in subsection 16-24(e).  

(3) Consistent with the Code of Iowa, use of fireworks within the corporate limits of the City of 
Cedar Falls  shall only occur on the user's owned real property or on real property where the 
owner has given consent prior to use. Use of fireworks, unless a permit has been obtained, is 
not allowed on city-owned property, public sidewalks, rights-of-way, streets, parks, or parking 
lots.  

(4) It is prohibited to direct the use of consumer fireworks in any direction other than onto the 
user's owned real property or the real property where the owner has given prior consent.  

(5) All consumer firework debris shall be removed from the user's real property or wherever such 
use has resulted in its debris being located.  

(c) Exceptions. This section shall not apply to the use of blank cartridges for a show or the theater, or 
for signal purposes in athletic sports or by railroads or trucks, for signal purposes, or by a 
recognized military organization. This section shall not apply to any substance or composition 
prepared and sold for medicinal or fumigation purposes. This section shall not apply to a person 
using or exploding fireworks under a valid permit as provided in subsection 16-24(e).  

(d) Enforcement. 

(1) Citations for violation of this section 16-24 shall be directed to the person observed/found to 
have violated this section or the owner of real property on which the evidence exists of 
violation of this section. Furthermore, where evidence of violation of noise or nuisance 
ordinances exists, such citations may also be written.  

72

Item 3.



(2) The vendors of fireworks shall be monitored during sales periods as to type of consumer 
fireworks sold and for compliance with subsection 16-24(f).  

(e) Display fireworks. The council may, upon application in writing, grant a permit for the use and 
explosion of display fireworks within the city limits by municipalities, fair associations, amusement 
parks, and other organizations or groups of individuals when the use and explosion of such display 
fireworks will be handled by a competent operator, and proof of liability insurance is shown. (See 
also section 9-20.)  

(f) Sales. A seller of consumer fireworks must possess a license from the state fire marshal. Any 
retailer or community group selling consumer fireworks must prominently display, at the entrance 
and exit sites, signs informing customers that the use of consumer fireworks is prohibited within 
the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls except on the dates and times authorized by this 
section.  

(g) Violation; Appeal. A person who violates this section commits a simple misdemeanor punishable by 
a fine of not less than two hundred fifty dollars.  

 

INTRODUCED:     November 7October 17, 2022   

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:  November 7October 17, 2022   

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

 

___________________________ 

                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

73

Item 3.



Prepared by: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3021 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REMOVE A 2/3 MAJORITY VOTE BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL IN THE EVENT THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS DENIAL OF A COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN ADOPTION OR SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT BY 
AMENDING SECTION 18-23, POWERS AND DUTIES, UNDER 
ARTICLE II, PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, ALL WITHIN 
CHAPTER 18, PLANNING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council discussed changes to the Planning Chapter of the 

Municipal Code of Ordinances at the September 19, 2022 Community Development 
Committee meeting; 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held October 17, 2022 by the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved an amendment to Section 18-23 of the Code 

of Ordinances after public hearing. 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Subsection 5 of Section 18-23 Powers and Duties, within Article II, Planning and Zoning 

Commission, of Chapter 18, Planning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  
 

(5) For the purpose of making a comprehensive plan for the physical development of 
the city, the commission shall make careful and comprehensive studies of the 
present conditions and future growth of the city, with due regard to its relation to 
neighboring territory. The plan shall be made with the general purpose of guiding 
and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development of the 
city and its environs which will, in accordance with present and future needs, best 
promote health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare, as 
well as efficiency and economy in the process of development. Before adopting a 
comprehensive plan or any part of it, or any substantial amendment thereof, the 
commission shall hold at least one public hearing thereon, notice of the time of 
which shall be given by one publication in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the city, not less than seven and not more than 14 days before the hearing. The 
adopting of the plan or part or amendment thereof shall be by resolution of the 
commission carried by the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of all of the 
members of the commission. When such comprehensive plan has been adopted 

74

Item 4.



as provided for in this subsection, no substantial amendment or modification 
thereof shall be made without such proposed change being first referred to the 
commission for its recommendation. Amendments or modifications to the 
comprehensive plan shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of a 
majority of all the members of the city council. 

 

INTRODUCED:     November 7, 2022   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   November 7, 2022   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   November 21, 2022   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

75

Item 4.



Prepared by: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3021 ________ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REMOVE A 2/3 MAJORITY VOTE BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL IN THE EVENT THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS DENIAL OF A COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN ADOPTION OR SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT BY 
AMENDING SECTION 18-23, POWERS AND DUTIES, UNDER 
ARTICLE II, PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, ALL WITHIN 
CHAPTER 18, PLANNING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council discussed changes to the Planning Chapter of the 

Municipal Code of Ordinances at the September 19, 2022 Community Development 
Committee meeting; 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held October 17, 2022 by the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved an amendment to Section 18-23 of the Code 

of Ordinances after public hearing. 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Subsection 5 of Section 18-23 Powers and Duties, within Article II, Planning and Zoning 

Commission, of Chapter 18, Planning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  
 

(5) For the purpose of making a comprehensive plan for the physical development of 
the city, the commission shall make careful and comprehensive studies of the 
present conditions and future growth of the city, with due regard to its relation to 
neighboring territory. The plan shall be made with the general purpose of guiding 
and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development of the 
city and its environs which will, in accordance with present and future needs, best 
promote health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare, as 
well as efficiency and economy in the process of development. Before adopting a 
comprehensive plan or any part of it, or any substantial amendment thereof, the 
commission shall hold at least one public hearing thereon, notice of the time of 
which shall be given by one publication in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the city, not less than seven and not more than 14 days before the hearing. The 
adopting of the plan or part or amendment thereof shall be by resolution of the 
commission carried by the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds a majority 
vote of all of the members of the commission. When such comprehensive plan 

76

Item 4.



has been adopted as provided for in this subsection, no substantial amendment 
or modification thereof shall be made without such proposed change being first 
referred to the commission for its recommendation. Amendments or 
modifications to the comprehensive plan shall not become effective except by the 
favorable vote of a majority of all the members of the city council. 

 

INTRODUCED:     November 7, 2022   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   November 7, 2022   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   November 21, 2022   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

77

Item 4.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

 MEMORANDUM 
 Administration 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: October 10, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing for proposed amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-
4(c) of the Municipal Code of Ordinances 

 

 

The City Council directed staff to prepare amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-
4(c) of the Municipal Code of Ordinances.  Both sections pertain to a voting threshold by the 
City Council should the Planning & Zoning Commission recommend denial of said 
amendment. 
 
The City Council set the public hearing for October 17, 2022 at their October 3rd meeting. 
 
Background 
Chapter 18 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances is related to Planning.  Article II addresses 
the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Section 18-23 details their powers and duties.  In 
Section 18-23(5) it states that a comprehensive plan amendment must have a 2/3 majority 
vote by Council in the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial. 
 
Chapter 26 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances is the Zoning Ordinance.  Article I covers 
several general terms, with Section 26-4 addressing amendments to Chapter 26.  In Section 
26-4(c) it states that amendments require a favorable vote of at least 2/3 of the City Council in 
the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial.  Zoning amendments 
include both text amendments and map amendments of the zoning ordinance.  A text 
amendment is a change to a regulation, such as a change to building height or setback 
requirements. A map amendment is a change to the zoning map and is typically referred to as 
a rezoning.  An example would be a property owner asking to rezone their property from A-1 to 
R-1, to potentially subdivide the property for future homes and public infrastructure. If 
approved, the zoning map is amended to reflect the new zoning designation of R-1.  
 
In the Community Development Committee meeting on September 19, 2022, staff noted a 
history of local discussion on this topic of the Council’s voting threshold in the event the 
Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z) recommends denial.  It was first discussed by P&Z in 
late 1998.  At that time, P&Z felt the requirements were appropriate and no recommendation 
for change advanced to City Council. It was discussed again in 2002-2003.  The Planning & 
Zoning Commission recommended amending the comprehensive plan super majority to a 3/4 
vote to match the requirement on the zoning chapter of a 3/4 majority vote.  The City Council 
discussed and then passed an ordinance changing both sections to a simple majority vote by 

78

Item 4.



 
 

Council in the event P&Z recommended denial.  The Mayor vetoed these ordinances.  The City 
Council failed to override this veto and then unanimously passed an ordinance amending the 
zoning chapter to a 2/3 majority vote.  This is the ordinance in place today.  Both the zoning 
chapter and the planning chapter of our Municipal Code of Ordinances are consistent requiring 
a 2/3 majority vote in the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial. 
 
Following is recent research staff conducted on several Iowa communities regarding the voting 
threshold for Council when the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial of a zoning 
amendment. 
 

City 

Type of Zoning 
Amendment 
(Text or Map) 

Supermajority 
Vote 2/3 3/4 

Ames Any No   

Cedar Falls Any Yes    

Cedar 
Rapids 

Any No   

Des Moines 
Text No   

Map Yes  
 
  

Dubuque Any Yes    

Mason City 
Any No   

Iowa City Any No Joint meeting required 

Waterloo Any Yes    
 

 
Evaluation 
In the previous staff report dated September 23, 2002, it was noted that when the zoning 
ordinance was adopted in 1970 our local mandatory voting requirements were suspected to 
have matched an Iowa Code requirement.  Council requested additional investigation on this 
topic.  Our City Attorney reviewed several versions of Iowa Code not finding a change on this 
item since 1970.  Staff submitted a request to the Legislative Services Agency for further 
research.  Legislative Services researched 60-100 years of code finding no such provision in 
previous editions of the Iowa Code regarding a City Council voting threshold when the 
Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial. 
 
In 2003, Cedar Falls amended the zoning chapter to reduce the majority vote from 3/4 to 2/3.  
In reviewing additional materials from that amendment, the Mayor’s 2003 veto memo 
explained that the majority of municipalities surveyed used a super majority requirement for 
zoning issues (attached).     
 
Following is an updated listing on points of consideration staff identified related to the current 
proposal to amend to a simple majority vote on both comprehensive plan (§18-23(5)) and 
zoning amendments (§26-4(c)). 
 

 City Council’s vote is totally independent of P&Z in every situation (regardless of a 
recommendation for approval or denial).   

 Change aligns with State Code. 

 Change appears to align with some other Iowa communities. 

79

Item 4.



 
 

 P&Z’s role is devalued from its current status. (Often P&Z methodically reviews 
proposals over several meetings that typically include unlimited citizen comment periods 
and a thoughtful discussion among Commissioners and citizens.) 

 Changing at this time may be tied to a specific issue, not a documented trend over time. 

 Comprehensive Plans and Zoning Ordinances are intended to provide stability in the 
market due to the predictability their regulation can provide.  Sometimes changes can 
be contentious and a simple majority Council vote could lend to regulations more easily 
flipping back and forth with changes in Council.  Another scenario could be on-going 
discord on a matter, as a simple majority vote can be vetoed by the Mayor. 

 
A situation that continues to be in our Zoning Ordinance and mandated by Iowa Code applies 
to a protest petition by nearby residents.  Cedar Falls code states in Section 26-4(c): “.... In 
case a written protest against a proposed amendment, supplement or change is filed with the 
city clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or more of the area of the lots included in 
such proposed change, or by the owners of 20 percent or more of the property which is 
located within 200 feet of the exterior boundaries of the property for which the amendment, 
supplement or change is proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by 
the favorable vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council....”  
 
At the September 19, 2022 Committee meeting, concern was expressed that P&Z may not be 
engaged in the referral process or fully considering the referrals.  Following is a review of the 
referrals made related to the Downtown Character District in 2022 and P&Z’s consideration of 
them: 

 Eliminate Shared Parking – On January 18, 2022, Council specifically referred 
eliminating shared parking requirements in the CD-DT.  The Planning & Zoning 
Commission discussed the matter at their January 26, 2022 meeting and held a public 
hearing on February 9, 2022, recommending against eliminating it.  On March 7, 2022, 
the City Council vote did not meet the 2/3 super majority to override P&Z’s 
recommendation of denial, therefore it did not advance. 

 Increase private parking requirements for residential uses – On January 18, 2022, 
Council made a general referral to review the residential parking requirement, with 
consensus to have P&Z consider 1 parking space per bedroom and at least one space 
per unit.  P&Z discussed this, recommending a compromise to increase it from .5/BR to 
.75/BR but not less than 1 space per unit.  Council passed this ordinance change in 
April 2022. 

 Missing Middle Housing – Council discussed in March 2022, with no further referral on 
the topic. 

 Accessory Dwelling Units – Council discussed in March 2022, with no further referral on 
the topic. 

 Site Plan Review– On February 7, 2022, Council made a general referral to P&Z to 
further consider the appropriate cases for P&Z/Council site plan review vs. 
administrative (staff level) site plan review.  P&Z discussed this and the initial goals from 
the visioning process at a March meeting, directing staff to prepare an amendment for 
consideration.  On June 6, 2022, after considering five different options, P&Z 
recommended to add P&Z/Council review of new buildings in the UG, UG2 and 
Storefront frontages.  P&Z also asked staff for monthly reports on all other projects to 
monitor the types of cases and consider if any future changes may be needed.  At the 
July 18, 2022 Council meeting, this ordinance failed.  A motion was then made and 
passed to petition P&Z to add review of any site plan expanding the floor plan or where 

80

Item 4.



 
 

residential is being added. After initial discussion on August 10, 2022 and a public 
hearing on August 24th, P&Z recommended against making these additional changes to 
the review process. Council postponed setting a public hearing date for the revised 
ordinance until after considering whether to amend the voting threshold for Council 
when P&Z recommends denial.  

 Shared Parking – On February 21, 2022, Council referred to P&Z a discussion on the 
criteria of shared parking to restrict shared parking to on-site only. On March 7, 2022, 
Council voted to modify this referral by including discussion of the location of allowable 
shared parking.  June 6, 2022, Council added to that referral relative to shared parking 
downtown and to move discussion up on the committee schedule.  The Community 
Relations & Planning Committee discussed it July 18, 2022, with consensus that shared 
parking should be referred to P&Z with consideration including but not limited to the 
location and time of day rules for shared parking.  On August 1, 2022 it was referred 
back to Committee in order to clarify and be more specific about what Council was 
requesting P&Z to consider.  At the subsequent committee meeting on August 15th, a 
motion was passed to request that the Planning and Zoning Commission again consider 
eliminating requirements for shared parking and to increase the parking requirement for 
multi-unit residential to 1 space per bedroom.  The Planning & Zoning Commission held 
a public hearing on September 28, 2022, recommending against both amendments. 

 Vinyl siding – On March 21, 2022, Council referred to P&Z the following for consideration: 
1) Add an allowance for vinyl siding on any new SF dwelling, 2) Add an allowance for 
vinyl siding on any new residential building with less than 7 units. (duplexes, townhomes, 
small apartment buildings).  Due to the priority of other referrals and workload, these 
items have not been discussed by P&Z yet.  Upon completion of the above items, this will 
be the next topic for P&Z discussion. 

Due to the length of time and complexity of the discussions/referrals, this listing may 
inadvertently omit an item or action.  Descriptions of the discussion, actions or consensus 
utilize minutes from each of these meetings. 
 
 
Moving Forward  
Enclosed are proposed amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c) of the Municipal 
Code of Ordinances.  If Council decides to proceed with a change, staff asks for consideration 
of several additional changes to Section 18-23(5).  The first is to align the public notice period 
with those found in the zoning chapter, to be not less than 7 days and not more than 14 days 
notice before the hearing.  The second is, that upon removal of a Council super-majority, it 
does not seem necessary to dictate a super-majority Planning & Zoning Commission vote on a 
comprehensive plan amendment.  Currently this section states a 2/3 majority vote by P&Z is 
required.  There is no Iowa Code requirement on a voting threshold for the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 
 
The City Attorney has advised that to change the ordinances in question, a simple majority 
vote is all that is required. 
 
Attachments:  

 Redline version of proposed changes 

 Draft ordinances amending City Code Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c) 

 2003 Staff Report on amendments 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommendation to City Council (December 19, 2022) 

 June 11, 2003 Mayor veto memo 

81

Item 4.



 

Page 1 of 2 

Chapter 18 PLANNING 

ARTICLE II. PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Sec. 18-23. Powers and duties. 

The city planning and zoning commission shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such 
other powers as may be incidental to the successful carrying out of the powers vested in it in this section or such 
as may be expressly conferred upon it by law:  

(1) The commission shall make or cause to be made such surveys, studies, maps, plans or charts of the 
whole or any portion of the city and of any land outside thereof which, in the opinion of the 
commission, bears relation to a comprehensive plan, and shall submit such plans to the council with its 
studies and recommendations, and it may publish the plans.  

(2) The commission shall prepare a comprehensive plan regarding the height, number of stories and size of 
buildings and structures, the percentage of ground that may be occupied, the size of yards, courts and 
other open spaces, the density of population, and the location and use of buildings, structures and land 
for trade, industry, residence or other purposes, and shall prepare preliminary reports and hold public 
meetings and hearings and submit final reports thereon and recommendations to the council, and 
shall, further, recommend to the council from time to time, as conditions may require, amendments, 
supplements, changes or modifications in any comprehensive plan prepared by the commission.  

(3) All plans, plats or replats of subdivisions or resubdivisions of land in the city or adjacent thereto, laid 
out in lots or plats with the streets, alleys or other portions of the subdivision or resubdivision intended 
to be dedicated to the public in the city, and all proposals for the vacation of a street or partial vacation 
of a street, alley or public ground, shall first be submitted to the commission, and its recommendations 
obtained before approval by the city council.  

(4) No plan for any street, park, parkway, boulevard, trafficway, riverfront or other public improvement 
affecting the city plan shall be finally approved by the city, or the character or location thereof 
determined, unless such proposal shall first have been submitted to the commission and the 
commission shall have had 60 days within which to file its recommendations thereon.  

(5) For the purpose of making a comprehensive plan for the physical development of the city, the 
commission shall make careful and comprehensive studies of the present conditions and future growth 
of the city, with due regard to its relation to neighboring territory. The plan shall be made with the 
general purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development 
of the city and its environs which will, in accordance with present and future needs, best promote 
health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare, as well as efficiency and economy in 
the process of development. Before adopting a comprehensive plan or any part of it, or any substantial 
amendment thereof, the commission shall hold at least one public hearing thereon, notice of the time 
of which shall be given by one publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, not less 
than ten seven and not more than 20 14 days before the hearing. The adopting of the plan or part or 
amendment thereof shall be by resolution of the commission carried by the affirmative vote of not less 
than two-thirdsa majority vote of all of the members of the commission. When such comprehensive 
plan has been adopted as provided for in this subsection, no substantial amendment or modification 
thereof shall be made without such proposed change being first referred to the commission for its 
recommendation. Amendments or modifications to the comprehensive plan shall not become effective 
except by the favorable vote of a majority of all the members of the city council. may be approved by a 
majority vote of all of the members of the council.Passage of an ordinance, amendment, or resolution 
requires a majority vote of all of the members of the council.If the commission disapproves the 
proposed change, it may be adopted by the city council by an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of 
all the members of such council.  

Formatted: Not Highlight

82

Item 4.



 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 

(6) The commission may employ such technical assistance as it deems necessary, subject to budgetary 
limitations. Such assistance may be in the form of secretarial, consultant or legal service. The 
commission should, as a matter of policy, invite such assistants, the zoning administrator and the city 
engineer, or their representatives, to regularly attend meetings of the commission and to offer 
information or make suggestions regarding items under consideration.  

(7) The city council may annually appropriate a sum of money from the general funds for the payment of 
the expense of the commission. The commission shall have full, complete and exclusive authority to 
expend for and on behalf of the city all sums of money so appropriated.  

(8) The commission, each year, shall make a report to the mayor and city council of its proceedings, with a 
full statement of its receipts and disbursements and the progress of its work for the preceding fiscal 
year.  

(9) The commission shall adopt such rules and regulations governing its organization and procedure as 
may be deemed necessary.  

(10) The commission shall have all other powers and duties providing for planning and zoning commissions 
in Iowa Code ch. 414.  

(Code 2017, § 21-30) 

 

83

Item 4.



84

Item 4.



85

Item 4.



86

Item 4.



87

Item 4.



88

Item 4.



89

Item 4.



90

Item 4.



91

Item 4.



92

Item 4.



93

Item 4.



 
Prepared by: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3022 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REMOVE A 2/3 MAJORITY VOTE BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL IN THE EVENT THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS DENIAL OF AN AMENDMENT, 
SUPPLEMENT OR CHANGE BY AMENDING SECTION 26-4, 
AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER, UNDER ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL; 
ALL WITHIN CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council discussed changes to the Zoning Chapter of the 

Municipal Code of Ordinances at the September 19, 2022 Community Development 
Committee meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held October 17, 2022 by the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved an amendment to Section 26-4 of the Code 

of Ordinances after public hearing. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Subsection (c) of Section 26-4 Amendments to Chapter within Article I, In General, of 
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is 
hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  
 

(c) In case a written protest against a proposed amendment, supplement or change 
is filed with the city clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or more of the 
area of the lots included in such proposed change, or by the owners of 20 
percent or more of the property which is located within 200 feet of the exterior 
boundaries of the property for which the amendment, supplement or change is 
proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable 
vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council. Whenever any 
petition for an amendment, supplement or change of the zoning or regulations 
contained in this chapter or subsequently established shall have been denied by 
the city council, then no new petition covering the same property or the same 
property and additional property shall be filed with or considered by the city 
council until six months shall have elapsed from the date of the filing of the first 
petition. 

 

 

94

Item 5.



INTRODUCED:     November 7, 2022   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   November 7, 2022   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   November 21, 2022   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

95

Item 5.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

 MEMORANDUM 
 Administration 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: October 10, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing for proposed amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-
4(c) of the Municipal Code of Ordinances 

 

 

The City Council directed staff to prepare amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-
4(c) of the Municipal Code of Ordinances.  Both sections pertain to a voting threshold by the 
City Council should the Planning & Zoning Commission recommend denial of said 
amendment. 
 
The City Council set the public hearing for October 17, 2022 at their October 3rd meeting. 
 
Background 
Chapter 18 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances is related to Planning.  Article II addresses 
the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Section 18-23 details their powers and duties.  In 
Section 18-23(5) it states that a comprehensive plan amendment must have a 2/3 majority 
vote by Council in the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial. 
 
Chapter 26 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances is the Zoning Ordinance.  Article I covers 
several general terms, with Section 26-4 addressing amendments to Chapter 26.  In Section 
26-4(c) it states that amendments require a favorable vote of at least 2/3 of the City Council in 
the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial.  Zoning amendments 
include both text amendments and map amendments of the zoning ordinance.  A text 
amendment is a change to a regulation, such as a change to building height or setback 
requirements. A map amendment is a change to the zoning map and is typically referred to as 
a rezoning.  An example would be a property owner asking to rezone their property from A-1 to 
R-1, to potentially subdivide the property for future homes and public infrastructure. If 
approved, the zoning map is amended to reflect the new zoning designation of R-1.  
 
In the Community Development Committee meeting on September 19, 2022, staff noted a 
history of local discussion on this topic of the Council’s voting threshold in the event the 
Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z) recommends denial.  It was first discussed by P&Z in 
late 1998.  At that time, P&Z felt the requirements were appropriate and no recommendation 
for change advanced to City Council. It was discussed again in 2002-2003.  The Planning & 
Zoning Commission recommended amending the comprehensive plan super majority to a 3/4 
vote to match the requirement on the zoning chapter of a 3/4 majority vote.  The City Council 
discussed and then passed an ordinance changing both sections to a simple majority vote by 

96

Item 5.



 
 

Council in the event P&Z recommended denial.  The Mayor vetoed these ordinances.  The City 
Council failed to override this veto and then unanimously passed an ordinance amending the 
zoning chapter to a 2/3 majority vote.  This is the ordinance in place today.  Both the zoning 
chapter and the planning chapter of our Municipal Code of Ordinances are consistent requiring 
a 2/3 majority vote in the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial. 
 
Following is recent research staff conducted on several Iowa communities regarding the voting 
threshold for Council when the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial of a zoning 
amendment. 
 

City 

Type of Zoning 
Amendment 
(Text or Map) 

Supermajority 
Vote 2/3 3/4 

Ames Any No   

Cedar Falls Any Yes    

Cedar 
Rapids 

Any No   

Des Moines 
Text No   

Map Yes  
 
  

Dubuque Any Yes    

Mason City 
Any No   

Iowa City Any No Joint meeting required 

Waterloo Any Yes    
 

 
Evaluation 
In the previous staff report dated September 23, 2002, it was noted that when the zoning 
ordinance was adopted in 1970 our local mandatory voting requirements were suspected to 
have matched an Iowa Code requirement.  Council requested additional investigation on this 
topic.  Our City Attorney reviewed several versions of Iowa Code not finding a change on this 
item since 1970.  Staff submitted a request to the Legislative Services Agency for further 
research.  Legislative Services researched 60-100 years of code finding no such provision in 
previous editions of the Iowa Code regarding a City Council voting threshold when the 
Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial. 
 
In 2003, Cedar Falls amended the zoning chapter to reduce the majority vote from 3/4 to 2/3.  
In reviewing additional materials from that amendment, the Mayor’s 2003 veto memo 
explained that the majority of municipalities surveyed used a super majority requirement for 
zoning issues (attached).     
 
Following is an updated listing on points of consideration staff identified related to the current 
proposal to amend to a simple majority vote on both comprehensive plan (§18-23(5)) and 
zoning amendments (§26-4(c)). 
 

 City Council’s vote is totally independent of P&Z in every situation (regardless of a 
recommendation for approval or denial).   

 Change aligns with State Code. 

 Change appears to align with some other Iowa communities. 

97

Item 5.



 
 

 P&Z’s role is devalued from its current status. (Often P&Z methodically reviews 
proposals over several meetings that typically include unlimited citizen comment periods 
and a thoughtful discussion among Commissioners and citizens.) 

 Changing at this time may be tied to a specific issue, not a documented trend over time. 

 Comprehensive Plans and Zoning Ordinances are intended to provide stability in the 
market due to the predictability their regulation can provide.  Sometimes changes can 
be contentious and a simple majority Council vote could lend to regulations more easily 
flipping back and forth with changes in Council.  Another scenario could be on-going 
discord on a matter, as a simple majority vote can be vetoed by the Mayor. 

 
A situation that continues to be in our Zoning Ordinance and mandated by Iowa Code applies 
to a protest petition by nearby residents.  Cedar Falls code states in Section 26-4(c): “.... In 
case a written protest against a proposed amendment, supplement or change is filed with the 
city clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or more of the area of the lots included in 
such proposed change, or by the owners of 20 percent or more of the property which is 
located within 200 feet of the exterior boundaries of the property for which the amendment, 
supplement or change is proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by 
the favorable vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council....”  
 
At the September 19, 2022 Committee meeting, concern was expressed that P&Z may not be 
engaged in the referral process or fully considering the referrals.  Following is a review of the 
referrals made related to the Downtown Character District in 2022 and P&Z’s consideration of 
them: 

 Eliminate Shared Parking – On January 18, 2022, Council specifically referred 
eliminating shared parking requirements in the CD-DT.  The Planning & Zoning 
Commission discussed the matter at their January 26, 2022 meeting and held a public 
hearing on February 9, 2022, recommending against eliminating it.  On March 7, 2022, 
the City Council vote did not meet the 2/3 super majority to override P&Z’s 
recommendation of denial, therefore it did not advance. 

 Increase private parking requirements for residential uses – On January 18, 2022, 
Council made a general referral to review the residential parking requirement, with 
consensus to have P&Z consider 1 parking space per bedroom and at least one space 
per unit.  P&Z discussed this, recommending a compromise to increase it from .5/BR to 
.75/BR but not less than 1 space per unit.  Council passed this ordinance change in 
April 2022. 

 Missing Middle Housing – Council discussed in March 2022, with no further referral on 
the topic. 

 Accessory Dwelling Units – Council discussed in March 2022, with no further referral on 
the topic. 

 Site Plan Review– On February 7, 2022, Council made a general referral to P&Z to 
further consider the appropriate cases for P&Z/Council site plan review vs. 
administrative (staff level) site plan review.  P&Z discussed this and the initial goals from 
the visioning process at a March meeting, directing staff to prepare an amendment for 
consideration.  On June 6, 2022, after considering five different options, P&Z 
recommended to add P&Z/Council review of new buildings in the UG, UG2 and 
Storefront frontages.  P&Z also asked staff for monthly reports on all other projects to 
monitor the types of cases and consider if any future changes may be needed.  At the 
July 18, 2022 Council meeting, this ordinance failed.  A motion was then made and 
passed to petition P&Z to add review of any site plan expanding the floor plan or where 

98

Item 5.



 
 

residential is being added. After initial discussion on August 10, 2022 and a public 
hearing on August 24th, P&Z recommended against making these additional changes to 
the review process. Council postponed setting a public hearing date for the revised 
ordinance until after considering whether to amend the voting threshold for Council 
when P&Z recommends denial.  

 Shared Parking – On February 21, 2022, Council referred to P&Z a discussion on the 
criteria of shared parking to restrict shared parking to on-site only. On March 7, 2022, 
Council voted to modify this referral by including discussion of the location of allowable 
shared parking.  June 6, 2022, Council added to that referral relative to shared parking 
downtown and to move discussion up on the committee schedule.  The Community 
Relations & Planning Committee discussed it July 18, 2022, with consensus that shared 
parking should be referred to P&Z with consideration including but not limited to the 
location and time of day rules for shared parking.  On August 1, 2022 it was referred 
back to Committee in order to clarify and be more specific about what Council was 
requesting P&Z to consider.  At the subsequent committee meeting on August 15th, a 
motion was passed to request that the Planning and Zoning Commission again consider 
eliminating requirements for shared parking and to increase the parking requirement for 
multi-unit residential to 1 space per bedroom.  The Planning & Zoning Commission held 
a public hearing on September 28, 2022, recommending against both amendments. 

 Vinyl siding – On March 21, 2022, Council referred to P&Z the following for consideration: 
1) Add an allowance for vinyl siding on any new SF dwelling, 2) Add an allowance for 
vinyl siding on any new residential building with less than 7 units. (duplexes, townhomes, 
small apartment buildings).  Due to the priority of other referrals and workload, these 
items have not been discussed by P&Z yet.  Upon completion of the above items, this will 
be the next topic for P&Z discussion. 

Due to the length of time and complexity of the discussions/referrals, this listing may 
inadvertently omit an item or action.  Descriptions of the discussion, actions or consensus 
utilize minutes from each of these meetings. 
 
 
Moving Forward  
Enclosed are proposed amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c) of the Municipal 
Code of Ordinances.  If Council decides to proceed with a change, staff asks for consideration 
of several additional changes to Section 18-23(5).  The first is to align the public notice period 
with those found in the zoning chapter, to be not less than 7 days and not more than 14 days 
notice before the hearing.  The second is, that upon removal of a Council super-majority, it 
does not seem necessary to dictate a super-majority Planning & Zoning Commission vote on a 
comprehensive plan amendment.  Currently this section states a 2/3 majority vote by P&Z is 
required.  There is no Iowa Code requirement on a voting threshold for the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 
 
The City Attorney has advised that to change the ordinances in question, a simple majority 
vote is all that is required. 
 
Attachments:  

 Redline version of proposed changes 

 Draft ordinances amending City Code Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c) 

 2003 Staff Report on amendments 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommendation to City Council (December 19, 2022) 

 June 11, 2003 Mayor veto memo 

99

Item 5.



 

Page 1 of 2 

Chapter 26 - ZONING 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 26-4. Amendments to chapter. 

(a) The city council may, from time to time, on its own action or on petition, after public notice and hearings as 
provided by law, and after reports by the city planning and zoning commission, amend, supplement or 
change the boundaries or regulations established in this chapter or subsequently established. Such 
amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of a majority of all the members of the 
city council.  

(b) Prior to and in addition to the requirements of subsection (a) of this section, whenever any person desires 
that any amendment or change be made in this chapter as to any property in the city, there shall be 
presented to the city planning and zoning commission a petition requesting such change or amendment 
signed by the owners of at least 50 percent of the area of all the real estate included within the boundaries 
of the tract as described in the petition. The petition shall contain a legal description of the real estate for 
which rezoning is requested, the existing zoning classification and the requested zoning classification. The 
petition shall also have attached to it a plat which identifies the real estate for which rezoning is requested 
and which also shows all public streets and highways within a distance of 300 feet; the platted addition, if 
any, or the government section number and quarters in which the real estate is located; the existing zoning 
classification; and the requested zoning classification. Such plats shall be of a scale of not less than 300 feet 
to one inch. Within 30 days after the filing of such petition, the city planning and zoning commission, acting 
as a commission or acting through its chairperson, vice-chairperson or other authorized agent, shall fix a 
time, date and place of hearing on the petition, which date shall be no more than 60 days after the filing of 
such petition. The petitioner for such change or amendment shall thereafter cause a notice of hearing to be 
published once in a newspaper of general circulation published within the city, at least seven but not more 
than 14 days before the date fixed for such hearing. Such notice shall contain the time, date and place of the 
hearing, the existing zoning classification, the requested zoning classification and a reproduction of the plat 
attached to the petition, and shall be signed by the petitioners. The city planning and zoning commission 
may, upon the unanimous approval of the members present at a meeting, act upon a petition for rezoning or 
initiate a zoning change or amendment without the necessity of such a plat, notice or hearing.  

(c) In case the proposed amendment, supplement or change is disapproved by the city planning and zoning 
commission, such amendment, supplement or change shall not become effective except by the favorable 
vote of at least two-thirds of all the members of the city council. In case a written protest against a proposed 
amendment, supplement or change is filed with the city clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or 
more of the area of the lots included in such proposed change, or by the owners of 20 percent or more of the 
property which is located within 200 feet of the exterior boundaries of the property for which the 
amendment, supplement or change is proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by the 
favorable vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council. Whenever any petition for an 
amendment, supplement or change of the zoning or regulations contained in this chapter or subsequently 
established shall have been denied by the city council, then no new petition covering the same property or 
the same property and additional property shall be filed with or considered by the city council until six 
months shall have elapsed from the date of the filing of the first petition.  

(d) Unless any lot, tract or parcel of land hereafter zoned to a less restrictive classification than as provided in 
this chapter has been used or developed for such less restrictive classification within two years from such 
rezoning, or unless there exists an unexpired building permit for the development thereof at the end of such 
two years, the city planning and zoning commission may, prior to the bona fide commencement of the use or 
development of the land in its less restrictive classification, after seven days' notice, in writing, to the then 
record owner of the land providing a reasonable opportunity to be heard, initiate and recommend to the city 
council that the land be rezoned to its zoning classification as established at the date of the passage of the 
ordinance from which this chapter is derived.  

100

Item 5.

https://library.municode.com/ia/cedar_falls/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH26ZO


 

Page 2 of 2 

(e) Before any action has been taken as provided in this section, the party proposing or recommending a change 
in district regulations or district boundaries shall deposit with the city clerk such sum as established by the 
council from time to time to cover the costs of this procedure. The fee will be nonrefundable.  

(Ord. No. 2922, § 1(29-4), 5-7-2018) 

 

101

Item 5.



102

Item 5.



103

Item 5.



104

Item 5.



105

Item 5.



106

Item 5.



107

Item 5.



108

Item 5.



109

Item 5.



110

Item 5.



111

Item 5.



112

Item 6.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 

  

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: November 23, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Historic Preservation Commission Appointments 

 REF: (a) Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, §2-343: Historic Preservation Commission 

  (b) CFD 1201.22d: Mayor’s Appointment Process for Boards & Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the requirements of reference (a), I am pleased to appoint the 

following community members to the Historic Preservation Commission: 

a. Dr. Lindi Roelofse, for a three-year term ending on March 31, 2025.  

b. Dr. James O’Loughlin for a three-year term ending on March 31, 2025. 

2. Candidates were interviewed by a Selection Panel consisting of Councilor Gil Schultz, 

Committee Chair Julie Etheridge, and Planning & Community Services Manager Karen 

Howard, who determined these members to be the best qualified using my criteria 

expressed in reference (b). 

3. Thank you for your consideration; please contact me with any questions. 

Encl: (1) General Applications and Candidate Questionnaires for Roelofse & O’Loughlin 

XC:  City Administrator 

 Director, Community Development 

 Manager, Planning & Community Services 

 Staff Liaison, Historic Preservation Commission 

 Chair, Historic Preservation Commission 

113

Item 7.



114

Item 7.



115

Item 7.



116

Item 7.



117

Item 7.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

  

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: November 28, 2022 

 SUBJECT: CFD 1244: Appointment of City Council Student Liaison 

 REF: (a) Cedar Falls City Council Resolution #20,502 Appointing a Student 
Liaison to the City Council for an Indefinite Term dated April 17, 2017 

 

1. In accordance with the requirements of reference (a), I hereby appoint Mr. Noah 

Hackbart, Government Relations Director for the Northern Iowa Student 

Government (NISG), as the UNI Student Liaison to the City Council for a term 

beginning upon council approval and ending April 30, 2023. 

 

2. I have interviewed Mr. Hackbart to discuss the Council’s expectations for the role of 

the Student Liaison; from this conversation I am satisfied that he meets the 

qualifications required by the City Council in reference (a).  

 

xc:  City Clerk   

 Northern Iowa Student Government 

 
# 

 
 
 
 
 
 

118

Item 8.



119

Item 9.



120

Item 9.



121

Item 10.



122

Item 10.



123

Item 10.



124

Item 10.



125

Item 10.



126

Item 10.



127

Item 10.



128

Item 10.



129

Item 10.



130

Item 10.



131

Item 10.



132

Item 10.



133

Item 10.



134

Item 10.



135

Item 10.



136

Item 10.



137

Item 10.



138

Item 10.



139

Item 10.



140

Item 10.



141

Item 10.



142

Item 10.



143

Item 10.



144

Item 10.



145

Item 10.



146

Item 10.



147

Item 10.



148

Item 10.



149

Item 10.



150

Item 10.



151

Item 10.



152

Item 10.



153

Item 10.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  November 28, 2022 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no 
records that would prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Cedar Falls Family Restaurant, 2627 Center Street, Class B beer - renewal. 

b) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - 
renewal. 

c) Lifestyle Inn, 5826 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

d) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service 
- renewal. 

e) Hy-Vee Fast and Fresh, 6527 University Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine – 
change in ownership. 

f) Hansen's Dairy, 123 East 18th Street, Class B retail alcohol - new. 
 

154

Item 11.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Human Resources Division 

 TO: Mayor Green, City Council 

 FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

 DATE: November 28, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  Personnel Policy Changes 
 
 

Attached to this Memorandum please find proposed changes to Personnel Policies 809, Disciplinary 

Procedures; and 903, Grievance Procedure.  This memorandum will serve to generally explain the 

proposed changes.  Reference to the policies themselves is recommended for review of specific 

language.  The changes are presented in red line form for ease of review. 

 

Personnel Policy 809, Disciplinary Procedures. 

While it may appear that the proposed changes are extensive, many of the changes are simplifications of 

language. The major changes are explained as follows. 

 

 Specification that the employee’s supervisor, the Human Resources Manager, or an outside party 

conducts the initial investigatory interview. 

 Improved explanation of the disciplinary process involving departments working with the Human 

Resources Manager to review the investigation and recommend disciplinary action to the City 

Administrator, and the City Administrator reviewing and approving all recommendations of 

discipline prior to final action. 

 Updated “reprimand” verbiage to “warning” to reflect current practice. 

 Removal of references to discipline procedure from the individual forms of action since the 

discipline procedure is stated earlier in the policy.  

 Removal of “demotion” from forms of action to its own stand-alone section.  

 Improved verbiage on how employees may utilize the grievance procedure for disciplinary 

matters that are considered appropriate grievances as explained in 903: Grievance Procedure. 

 

Personnel Policy 903, Grievance Procedure. 

The main proposed change removes the Mayor and Administration Committee of the City Council from 

the grievance procedure, and therefore closed session verbiage was also removed. This change to the 

policy was recommended by the Mayor. The Grievance Panel in “Step Three” is now comprised of 

Department Directors with the exception of the Department Director involved in the grievance. Appeals 

that move to “Step Four” are now heard by the City Administrator.  Lastly, you will notice a few minor 

language corrections as well.  

 

 

Staff recommends approval of these personnel policy changes. Please feel free to contact HR Manager, 

Bailey Schindel, at 319-268-5531 if you have any questions.  

 

155

Item 13.



809:     DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES 

 

Policy: 

 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that all employees are expected to comply with 

the City's standards of behavior and performance and that any noncompliance with these 

standards must be remedied. Discipline shall be at the discretion of the City.  

 

Comment: 

 

(1) An employee who fails to maintain proper standards of conduct as set forth in these 

Policies and Procedures or in departmental rules and regulations, shall be subject to disciplinary 

action up to and including discharge.  Examples of transgressions non-compliance that may 

result in disciplinary action include, but are not limited to, neglect of duties, disobedience of 

orders, willful misconduct, failure to cooperate with internal investigations, violation of any 

policies or departmental rules, or failure to properly perform the duties of the employee’s 

position.  The suspension, demotion or discharge of an employee holding Civil Service rights 

may be appealed to the Civil Service Commission as provided in Chapter 400 of the Code of 

Iowa.  Non-Civil Service employees may appeal disciplinary actions through the grievance 

procedures.  (See 903: Grievance Procedures.) 

 

(2) Under normal circumstances, the City endorses a policy of The City shall normally 

use progressive discipline in which it attempts to provide employees with notice of deficiencies 

and an opportunity to improve.  It does, however, retain the right to administer discipline in any 

manner it sees fit.  This policy does not modify or in any way restrict the The City’s reserves the 

right to bypass the progressive disciplinary procedures suggested as required by the situation.   

 

(3) The purpose of progressive discipline is to provide the opportunity for an employee to 

modify behavior to conform to standards of performance or conduct.  Progressive discipline is a 

principle, and nothing in this policy shall be construed to mean that all steps of progressively 

serious discipline must be followed in every case.  The seriousness of each offense and the 

record of the employee shall be judged on their own merits, and discipline applied accordingly. 

 

(4 3)    If suspension, demotion or discharge of an employee Before disciplinary action is 

contemplated, an investigatory hearing interview with the employee must shall be held 

conducted by the employee’s supervisor, the Human Resources Manager, or by an outside party.  

At any investigatory interview conducted for the purpose of determining the facts involved in 

any suspected violation of City rules and regulations, the following procedures shall normally 

should apply: 

 

(a) Prior to the interview, the employee who is suspected of violating City rules and 

regulations will be told in general terms what the interview is about.  The 

employee shall be advised that they will have the opportunity to defend their 

position. 

 

(b) If the employee is represented by a union, the employee has the right to have a 

156

Item 13.



809:     DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES 

 
 

 

 

2 

union representative present at the interview, provided the employee requests 

such representation. 

 

(c) If the employee is not represented by a union, the employee may have a 

coworker present at the interview, provided the employee requests such 

representation. 

   

(4 5)    The Director of Finance & Business Operations, Department Director and City 

Attorney must review and approve all recommendations for discipline before any final action is 

taken.  The Mayor and City Administrator must be advised of all disciplinary actions involving 

suspension, demotion or discharge.Departments shall work with the Human Resources Manager 

to review the results of the investigation and to recommend any disciplinary action to the City 

Administrator.  

 

(5) The City Administrator shall review and approve all recommendations of discipline 

before any final action is taken.  

 

(6)  Forms of Action.  All of the following forms of discipline including oral 

reprimandsverbal warnings will be documented in the employee’s personnel file.  Any of the 

following procedures may be implemented whether employee is experiencing the same problem 

repeatedly or a series of unrelated problems. 

 

(a) Oral ReprimandVerbal Warning.  The supervisor shall issue an oral reprimand 

verbal warning which shall be documented to put the employee on notice that 

the employee’s performance or conduct is substandard and to advise the 

employee of the expected improvement of conduct.  Following an oral 

reprimand verbal warning, continued substandard conduct or performance may 

warrant a higher degree of discipline.  

 

(b) Written Reprimand Warning.  In the case of a more serious offense or in the 

case where an employee’s performance or conduct has not improved as a result 

of one or more oral reprimandsverbal warnings, the supervisor shall issue a 

written reprimand warning.  This written record puts the employee on formal 

notice that the employee’s performance or conduct is unacceptable.  It also 

documents the specific acts or omissions upon which the discipline is based as 

well as the expected corrective action.  Following written reprimands warnings, 

continued substandard conduct or performance may warrant a higher degree of 

discipline. 

 

(c) Suspension.  In the case of serious or intentional transgression, or in the case 

where an employee’s performance or conduct has not improved as a result of 

prior discipline, an employee may be suspended without pay.  With the approval 

of the Department Director (or City Administrator if a director position) and 

157

Item 13.



809:     DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES 

 

 

 

 

3 

Mayor, when required by Civil Services Rules and Regulations, an employee 

may be suspended without pay.  The employee shall receive a written notice of 

the suspension which documents the specific acts or omissions upon which the 

discipline is based as well as the expected corrective action.  Following 

suspension, continued substandard conduct or performance may warrant a 

higher degree of discipline.  Employees suspended from work for more than 

five (5) working days shall not accrue any employee benefits during the 

suspension.   All employees, regardless of whether or not they are exempt under 

the Fair Labor Standards Act, shall be subject to suspension of one or more 

workdays without pay for violation of these policies. 

 

(d) Demotion.  The Department Director (or City Administrator if a director 

position) may approve the demotion of an employee.  In unusual circumstances, 

a demotion may be warranted. An employee who is demoted must possess the 

minimum qualifications for the lower position.  The employee shall be given 

timely written notice of the demotion and the reasons for the action. 

 

The employee may be allowed to retain the same rate of pay in the lower 

position as was held in the higher position before the demotion, providing that 

the employee’s rate of pay is not higher than the maximum rate of pay for the 

lower position.  Upon the dDepartment dDirector’s recommendation and with 

the approval of the Director of Finance & Business Operations, further 

reduction in pay may be ordered. 

 

(de) Discharge.  This may occur after several of the above forms of discipline have 

been implemented or it may occur immediately in cases involving serious 

misconduct. 

 

(7) Demotion.  In unusual circumstances, a demotion may be warranted. An employee 

who is demoted must possess the minimum qualifications for the lower position.  The employee 

shall be given timely written notice of the demotion and the reasons for the action. 

 

The employee may be allowed to retain the same rate of pay in the lower position as was 

held in the higher position before the demotion, providing that the employee’s rate of pay is not 

higher than the maximum rate of pay for the lower position.  Upon the Department Director’s 

recommendation and with the approval of the Director of Finance & Business Operations, further 

reduction in pay may be ordered. 

 

(78) Employees who believe that they have been disciplined too severely or who question 

the reason for discipline may utilize the grievance procedure if they believe the imposed 

disciplinary action was the result of any matter that may be considered an appropriate grievance 

as set forth in 903: Grievance Procedure. 

Commented [BS1]: Moving content down below to 

new number 7 

158

Item 13.



809:     DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES 

 
 

 

 

4 

 

(89) Documented reasons and rationale for final disciplinary action imposed on an 

employee resulting in resignation in lieu of discharge, demotion or discharge may be a public 

record. 

 

(910) Probationary, temporary, seasonal and special purpose employees may be terminated 

immediately at any time without regard to the procedures set forth above. 

 

 

 
Amended:  1/1/05 

        6/1/15 

           7/18/16 

  3/1/19 

  12/05/22 

159

Item 13.



903:     GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 

Policy: 
 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that employees should have an opportunity to 

present their work-related complaints and to appeal management decisions through a dispute 

resolution or grievance procedure.  The City will attempt to resolve promptly all grievances that 

are appropriate for handling under this policy. 

 

Comment: 

 

(1) An appropriate grievance is defined as an employee's expressed dissatisfaction 

concerning any interpretation or application of a work-related policy by management, supervisors, 

or other employees.  Examples of matters that may be considered appropriate grievances under 

this policy include: 

 

(a) A belief that City policies, practices, rules, regulations, or procedures have been 

applied in a manner arbitrarily detrimental to an employee; 

 

(b) Treatment considered unfair by an employee, such a coercion, reprisal, 

harassment, or intimidation; 

 

(c) Alleged discrimination because of race, color, sex, age, religion, national origin, 

military status, or disability; and 

 

(d) Improper or unfair administration of employee benefits or conditions of 

employment such as scheduling, vacations, fringe benefits, promotions, 

holidays,  job classification, pay band assignment, or seniority. 

 

(2) Employees covered by a union contract may not utilize this grievance procedure to 

the extent the matter is addressed by the union contract and/or its grievance procedures. 

  

(3) Employees should notify the City, in a timely fashion, of any grievance considered 

appropriate for handling under this policy.  The grievance procedure is the exclusive remedy for 

employees with appropriate grievances.  However, if an employee files a claim with the civil 

service commission based upon the same facts and circumstances, any grievance brought under 

this policy shall be immediately dismissed with no further action taken by the City.  

 

(4)     The grievance procedure has a maximum of four steps, but grievances may be 

resolved at any step in the process.  Grievances are to be fully processed until the employee is 

satisfied, does not file a timely appeal, or exhausts the right to appeal.  A decision becomes binding 

on all parties whenever the employee does not file a timely appeal or when a decision is made in 

the final step and the right to appeal no longer exists. 

 

 

(4) Employees who believe they have an appropriate grievance shall proceed as                   

160

Item 14.



903:  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
 

 

 

2 

   follows: 

 

(a) Step One – Within five working days of the date of the event giving rise to 

the grievance, employee shall deliver the written grievance to the Division 

Manager.  The written grievance shall explicitly outline the (1) facts and 

background of the grievance; (2) alleged violation by management; (3) denied 

action/resolution.  The Division Manager shall, within five working days of 

receipt of the grievance, meet and discuss the grievance with the employee.  

The Division Manager shall provide a written response to the grievance within 

five working days of the meeting.  (If the grievance is against the Division 

Manager, the grievance may be filed with the Department Director.) 

 

(b) Step Two – If the Division Manager’s decision fails to resolve the grievance, 

the employee may, within five working days of receipt of the Division 

Manager’s decision, file a written appeal with the Department Director.  The 

Department Director shall, within five working days, meet and discuss the 

grievance with the employee. Within five working days of this meeting, the 

Department Director shall provide a written response to the employee.  (If the 

grievance is against the Department Director, or if Step One was handled by 

the Department Director, the grievance shall be filed with the City 

Administrator.) 

 

(c) Step Three – Within five working days of receipt of the Department 

Director’s response, the employee may appeal the decision to the Grievance 

Panel.  The Grievance Panel shall consist of the Mayor, the City 

Administrator, rand all Department Directors, or the Department Director’s 

designated alternate, with the exception of the Department Director involved 

in the grievance.  The Grievance Panel shall hold a hearing within 10 business 

days of receipt of the appeal, unless the time period is extended by the 

Grievance Panel for good cause.  The Grievance Panel will take the necessary 

steps to review and investigate the grievance and will issue a written, final and 

binding decision based upon the majority vote of those Panel members who 

heard the appeal.  If the grievance is filed by the City Administrator, it shall 

move directly to Step 4. 

 

(d) Step Four – Within five working days of receipt of the Grievance Panel’s 

response, the employee may appeal the decision to the Administration 

Committee of the City Council City Administrator.  The City Administrator 

Administration Committee shall hold a hearing within fifteen business days of 

receipt of the appeal, unless the time period is extended by the Administration 

Committee Chair City Administrator for good cause.  The City Administrator 

Administration Committee will take the necessary steps to review and 

investigate the grievance and will issue a written, final, and binding decision. 

161

Item 14.



903:     GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

 

3 

 

(e) Time frame for City response:  The time frame for the City’s response shall 

normally be five working days unless the City elects to extend the time frame 

in which to respond. The grieving party will be notified of any necessary time 

extensions. 

 

(f) Closed Session:  The grievance hearing in Step Four may be closed pursuant to 

Iowa Code § 21.5(1)(i).  The closed session will only be held upon an 

affirmative public vote of either two-thirds of the members of the body or all the 

members present at a meeting.  A closed session may be held only to the extent 

it is necessary to evaluate the professional competency of an individual whose 

appointment, hiring, performance or discharge is being considered when 

necessary to prevent needless and irreparable injury to that individual’s 

reputation and that individual requests a closed session. 

 

(6) The Finance & Business Operations Department Human Resources Manager will 

provide coordinate training and support to supervisors, managers, and department directors in 

dealing with employee grievances.  In addition, employees should be are encouraged to consult 

with the Human Resources Manager Finance & Business Operations Department, their 

supervisors, or other members of management, on a less formal basis regarding employee 

complaints or disputes when appropriate. 

 

(7) Final decisions on grievances will not be precedent-setting or binding on future 

grievances unless they are officially stated as City policy.  When appropriate, the decisions will 

be retroactive to the date of the employee's original grievance. 

 

(8) Information concerning an employee grievance is confidential.  Supervisors, 

managers, department directors, and other members of management who investigate a grievance 

are to discuss it only with those individuals who have a need to know about it or who supply 

necessary background information or advice.    

 

(9) Time spent by employees in grievance discussions with management during their 

normal working hours will be considered hours worked for pay purposes. 

 

(10) Employees are not to be penalized for proper use of the grievance procedure.  

However, it is not considered proper procedure if an employee raises grievances in bad faith or 

solely for the purpose of delay or harassment, or repeatedly raises meritless unfounded 

grievances.  Implementation of the grievance procedure by an employee does not limit the right 

of the City to proceed with any disciplinary action that is not in retaliation for the proper use of 

the grievance procedure. 

 

(11) The City may, at its discretion, refuse to proceed with any complaint it determines 

is improper under this policy. 

162

Item 14.



903:  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
 

 

 

4 

 

 
Amended 7/1/06, 6/1/15, 3/1/19, 1/6/20, 12/05/22 

163

Item 14.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Human Resources Division 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

 DATE: November 28, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Principal Engineer Recruitment Agreement  

 

Attached for your approval is an agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and The 
Greg Prothman Company for a recruitment agreement for the Principal Engineer 
position. An additional Principal Engineer position was approved for FY23. The 
engineering job market is very competitive/limited; therefore, we are utilizing a 
recruitment firm to maximize quantity and quality of candidates.   
 
If you have questions regarding the attached, feel free to contact me at 319-268-5531. 
 
Attachment 

164

Item 15.



165

Item 15.



166

Item 15.



167

Item 15.



168

Item 15.



169

Item 15.



170

Item 15.



171

Item 15.



172

Item 15.



173

Item 15.



174

Item 15.



175

Item 15.



176

Item 15.



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
         TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
   FROM: Kelly Stern, Library Director 
     DATE: November 28, 2022 
SUBJECT: Contract with IFC for Library Branding Project 
 

The Cedar Falls Public Library will be embarking on a branding project, as the library has never 

been branded before.  This project was identified as a priority in the library’s strategic plan for 

2020-2025 to increase community awareness and engagement with the library.  

 

In response to our RFP issued in September, two bids were received, with IFC’s being the lowest 

and most comprehensive of the two, including creation of a logo, tagline, branding guide, and 

redesign of the library’s website, to name a few of the deliverables.  

 

The project will be funded by the Cedar Falls Community Foundation: Robert and Shirley Berg 

Fund for use by the Library. The total cost of the project is $45,000. 

 

At their November 2, 2022 meeting, the Library Board of Trustees approved awarding the 

contract to IFC and recommends Council approval as well. 

 
 

177

Item 16.



1 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

SERVICE/PRODUCT AGREEMENTS 

 

This Agreement is by and between IFC Studios (“Contractor”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“City”), and is to be 

effective on the date last signed by the Contractor or the City below. 

1.0.       Contractor’s Services 

1.1.       Contractor’s services shall consist only of the services and/or products provided or supplied by Contractor as 

defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit “A” attached.  (“Services” or “Scope of Services”) 

1.2.       Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until 

authorized in writing by the City.  No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the 

Contractor and the City in writing.  Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively 

presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such 

work, has been agreed to in advance.  If Exhibit “A” includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall 

not be performed until written authorization is given by the City.  

1.3.       Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby 

warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services 

required by this Agreement.  Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the 

Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement, 

unless otherwise approved in writing by the City.  In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced, 

Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as 

approved by the City. 

1.4.       Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in 

Exhibit “A”.  The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor’s performance 

under this Agreement.         

1.5.       Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any 

third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services to 

the City.  Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the 

provision of Services, at Contractor’s cost. 

1.6.       The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has 

full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor. 

2.0.       Compensation 

2.1.       All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars.  All prices must remain firm for the duration of this 

Agreement. 

2.2.       After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in 

accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit “B”.  The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall 

be the amount set forth in Exhibit “B”, unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which 

case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly.   

2.3.       Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days 

of receipt of a proper invoice.  The invoice shall include, at a minimum, the name and address of the Contractor, the 

invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or 

178

Item 16.



2 

goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid.  The invoice shall be mailed 

or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below. 

2.4.       Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit “B”. 

2.5.       If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must 

provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made. 

2.6.       If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest 

on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid.  In addition, Contractor may, after giving at least seven 

(7) days written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full. 

2.7.       Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for 

faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other claims against any Services, including products. 

3.0.       Taxes. 

3.1.       The City is exempt from all federal, State of Iowa, and other states’ taxes on the purchase of products and 

services used by the City within the State of Iowa.  The City shall provide tax exemption certification as requested.   

3.2.       Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.  

4.0.       Ownership and Use of Documents 

4.1.       All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery, or innovation 

(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the 

Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual 

property rights.  To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, title 

and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and trade secret rights.  Upon the 

City’s request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership 

rights.   

4.2.       Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and 

other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services. 

4.3.       Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also 

known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor.  Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or 

of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor.  Any 

conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor’s sole risk. 

4.4.       During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor 

and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in 

providing Services under this Agreement.  The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such 

information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5) 

years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this 

Agreement, whichever date is latest.  No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or 

inspection by the City or designee.  

5.0.       Termination. 

5.1.       The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the 

Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days 

before the effective date of termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials 

prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City’s property.  If the Agreement 

is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized, 

179

Item 16.



3 

approved and provided up to the effective date of termination.  The City will not be subject to any termination fees 

from the Contractor. 

5.2.       Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the 

other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 

initiating the termination. 

6.0.       Warranties. 

6.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the 

standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application.   

6.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each 

component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall 

meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services.  If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by 

the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15 

days after notification by the City, at Contractor’s expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete 

satisfaction of the City.  

6.3.       Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all 

Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary 

as a result of Contractor’s acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor’s Services. 

6.4.       Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor’s 

acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or 

remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions. 

6.5.       Contractor’s obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the 

availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor.  None of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City’s right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of 

Contractor’s fault or breach. 

7.0.       Warranties – Intellectual Property.   

7.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon 

any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or 

entity. 

7.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City’s use of the same, and the exercise by the 

City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or 

privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity. 

7.3.       Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the 

Services contemplated by this Agreement. 

8.0.       Disputes. 

8.1.       Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such 

dispute.  Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes. 

8.2.       Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out 

all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make 

payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement.  Should the Contractor fail to 

continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs 

incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor. 

180

Item 16.



4 

8.3.       Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in 

mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party.  The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties 

except that each party shall be responsible for that party’s own expenses and attorney fees associated with 

mediation.  The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute. 

9.0.       Indemnification. 

9.1.       Contractor (including, for purposes of this Section, Contractor’s agents, employees, subcontractors or others 

working on behalf of Contractor) shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and its elected and appointed 

officers, its employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, from any and all liability, loss, cost, damage and 

expense (including reasonable attorney fees and court costs) resulting from, arising out of, or related in any way to 

any claims, demands, actions or suits based upon or alleging personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and 

property damages, arising out of or in any way connected or associated with the Contractor’s performance under this 

Agreement. 

9.2.       Contractor’s duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor’s breach 

or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

9.3.       It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any 

member of the public, any third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to 

maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage.        

10.0.       Insurance. 

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit “C” 

unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section. 

Insurance requirement waived:  _______________________________________________(Signature and title of 

authorized City employee or officer)   

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance. 

11.0.       Compliance with Laws and Regulations. 

11.1.       Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, 

state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations. 

11.2.       Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under 

applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet (“SDS”) with the initial shipment of such 

chemicals.  Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its 

delivery may be refused.  It is also the Contractor’s responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SDS 

as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City. 

12.0.       Independent Contractor. 

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents, 

employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be 

deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever. 

13.0.       Non-Collusion. 

13.1.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or 

procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in 

connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement. 

181

Item 16.



5 

13.2.       Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied, 

contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in 

such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.  

13.3.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered 

into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free 

competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement. 

14.0.       Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. 

14.1.       Contractor will not in the performance of this Agreement unlawfully discriminate against any employee or 

applicant for employment because of race, sex, color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, 

disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification 

protected by federal, state, or local law.   

14.2.       Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this 

nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with 

the same. 

15.0.       No Conflict of Interest, 

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this 

Agreement that is a conflict of interest under Iowa law.  No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall 

participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.  

Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of 

Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any 

additional costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums 

yet due to Contractor. 

16.0.       Force Majeure. 

16.1.       Force majeure shall be any of the following events:  acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any 

order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as 

such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or 

labor disputes; public health emergency; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or 

referred to in this Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected.  A delay in or failure of 

performance by either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any 

claim for damages, if and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

16.2.       The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to 

exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other 

party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy 

such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties. 

16.3.       If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this 

Agreement may be terminated by either party. 

17.0.       Assignment. 

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the 

City.  The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor’s assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if 

approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be 

bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

18.0.       Governing Law.   

182

Item 16.



6 

18.1.       This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 

18.2.       Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa.        

19.0.       Discrepancy.   

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor’s bid or 

quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor’s bid or quote is incorporated into this 

Agreement. 

20.0       Public Record. 

20.1.      This Agreement as well as Contractor’s bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote 

shall become public documents subject to Iowa Code Chapter 22, the Iowa Open Records Law.  By submitting the 

bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this 

and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on 

behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted. 

20.2.       Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and 

agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or 

information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process. 

20.3.       Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any 

submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information.  Should the submitting party wish to 

designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked.  The City shall make no determination as 

to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under Iowa Code Chapter 22.  Rather, the City shall 

endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for 

asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order.  As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify 

the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City’s elected and appointed officers, the City’s 

employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such 

disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or 

occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence.  

21.0.       Debarment. 

21.1.       Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently 

debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 

Agreement by any federal agency. 

21.2.       Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of Iowa. 

22.0        Confidentiality of Shared Information. 

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed 

confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing.  If 

designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary 

for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating 

party, or as required by law, or by an order of court or administrative agency.  In the event of a dispute over the 

confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information 

until the issue of confidentiality is resolved.  The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive 

the termination of this Agreement. 

23.0.       Entire Agreement. 

183

Item 16.



7 

23.1.       This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the 

entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no 

representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall 

be of any force or effect. 

23.2.       No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 

and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced. 

24.0.       Additional Terms. 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

25.0.       Notices. 

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or 

provided to: 

City:                                                                                               Contractor: 

Name: Kelly Stern________________                                         Name: Tony Kraayenbrink_____________ 

Title: Library Director_______________                                      Title: President______________________ 

Address: 524 Main Street___________                                       Address: 206A Main Street_____________ 

              Cedar Falls, IA 50613______                                                       _Cedar Falls, IA 50613_________ 

Telephone: 319-268-5541__________                                       Telephone: _970-324-7210______________ 

Email: director@cedarfallslibrary.org__                                       Email: _tony@ifcstudios.com_____________  

 

In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed 

below. 

 

CONTRACTOR 

(Name of Contractor)____________________________ 

By: __________________________________________ 

Its: __________________________________________                    Date: ___________________ 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

By: __________________________________ 

184

Item 16.

DanielsT
Rectangle



CONTRACTOR

Tony Kraayenbrink____________________________

By: __________________________________________

Its: President____________________________________ Date: _11/28/22____________

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

By: __________________________________

Robert M. Green, Mayor

Attest: ________________________________                                      Date: _____________________

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

8
185

Item 16.



9 

EXHIBIT A: Service Schedule 

As understood from the proposal request, IFC Studios sees this project as having a series of essential components 

that fall under what we’re calling “Phase One.” We also recommend considering a “Phase Two” for website 

development. We would be able to achieve both phases for the Cedar Falls Public Library while also staying within 

your budget. Take a look.  

PHASE ONE 

01 Conduct Audit. We will audit CFPL’s print and digital communications to determine points of improvement in 

messaging. 

02 Messaging. We will work with CFPL to develop messaging that will speak to their primary audience, while also 

area newcomers to partake in library resources. 

03 Branding. We will align the visual communication with the messaging for a cohesive, inviting brand. 

04 Marketing Recommendations. We will make marketing plan recommendations for implementation by the CFPL 

marketing staff. 

05 Setup and Support. We will set up systems and provide resources to make marketing and communication efforts 

easier, less time consuming, and more efficient. 

PHASE TWO (RECOMMENDED) 

06 Website Research. One of the first steps in this process would be customer and employee research to determine 

what is working (or not), what is missing, and what could be improved. 

07 Website Development. At this point, we’ll take the new, approved branding and design a beautiful and functional 

website that fully utilizes your new look and feel. 

08 Training. We will also provide CFPL employee training on how to edit and maintain the new site.  

Messaging Plan 

01 Develop a “Messaging Guide.” A guide that lays out several important categories of messaging that makes your 

brand inviting to customers. This guide will also contain tips for how and where messaging can be deployed even 

after the conclusion of the website project. 

02 Homepage Copy. Copy that clearly and concisely answers the questions: what is the problem you solve, how do 

you solve it, how does someone purchase your product/service, and what is the value that you are bringing to the life 

of a client. Copywriting from seed copy for additional pages can be added for a discounted rate of $90/hour. 

Branding Plan 

01 Branding Research. IFC Studios will meet with key stakeholders to discuss the identity of CFPL as it stands today, 

understand the current limitations, and deploy a strategy for Brand Ideation, Conceptualization, and Design. 

02 Branding Development. IFC Studios will execute aforementioned strategy, creating and presenting brand concepts 

to key stakeholders. Revisions will take place as needed. 

03 Branding Approval. Once IFC Studios and CFPL achieve an approved primary logo, we will finalize all elements.  

04 Brand Lockups. IFC will produce a suite of logos in a variety of formats: raster (JPG, PNG, etc) and vector (PDF, 

SVG, EPS, etc) file types, along with color alternates, and primary, horizontal, stacked, and icon-only lockups for use 

in a wide variety of applications. 

186

Item 16.



10 

05 Mascot. We will develop the CFPL mascot in conjunction with your brand and identity, making sure to capture the 

heart and soul of CFPL in a meaningful (and fun!) way. 

06 Visual Branding Elements. Fonts, colors, and textures to be used in conjunction with your logo and on the website.  

07 Brand/Style Manual. Documentation that provides guidelines for the way your brand should be presented. This 

allows multiple contributors to always present your branding in a way that is consistent with your vision. 

Marketing Plan 

01 Marketing Research. IFC Studios will have an in-depth discussion with key stakeholders about current marketing 

practices at the library. We will then evaluate findings and determine areas for improvement. At that point, we will 

decide which are the best platforms based on who CFPL is trying to reach, and examine what other libraries and 

indie bookstores are doing on their platforms to attract new community members. 

02 Optimized Workflow. IFC Studios will work with the library team to create a workflow that maximizes the time of 

the part-time marketing individual, and is easy to use for all library personnel when that person is unavailable. 

03 Templates Creation. IFC Studios will design and develop templates for you to use on your social channels, as well 

as aid in producing print collateral. These templates will be based off the finalized, approved brand for CFPL, and be 

organized for consistency and cohesion for a unified visual presence. These templates will include designs for social 

media, printable flyers, postcards, handouts, as well as designs for swag, such as totebags, mugs, and more. 

04 Systems and Support. Once the templates are formatted and set up in Canva, IFC will provide training to library 

staff for best use practices. We will also recommend and set up social media management tools/calendar, along with 

“iPhone photo” training to staff and/or library community as a whole. All of this will help to ensure that your marketing 

efforts look as professional as possible. 

Marketing Strategies 

01 Community Involvement. Getting feedback and opinions from your patrons in a public setting is vital for raising 

interest and awareness. For example: host a “Vote for the CFPL Mascot!” campaign, in which case community 

membors, cardholders, and donors alike can vote on their favorite direction for the library’s new mascot; give “bonus 

points” for user-submitted video entries on social media; create a campaign hashtag (e.g. #CFPLMascot) to collect 

entries so that people’s votes can be seen and heard by the community; and so on. 

02 Downtown Visibility. Another element we think should be considered is talking with CF Downtown about updating 

banners on Main St. Once your new branding “goes live,” we’ll want to make sure residents know about it. 

03 Local Partnerships. We would also want to look at local organizations that cater to members of your target 

audiences. For example: if they are coffee drinkers, maybe explore getting a drink at Cup of Joe named after you. If 

they are entrepreneurs, maybe producing pens or notebooks for the UNI Entrepreneurial Center. 

04 Advertisements. Other areas for potential coverage: billboards, local ads, residential mailers, and more. IFC will 

work within your budget to brainstorm creative, cost-effective means of getting the word out there. 

Website Design & Development 

01 Construct a WordPress development environment on chosen hosting package. Our team will spin up a non-

indexable, live WordPress installation that can be used as our sandbox for building out the site and sharing updates.  

02 Install Oxygen Builder and other required plugins. At IFC, security and page speed are our top priorities. Any 

plugins used will be IFC-approved or thoroughly vetted before use. 

03 Build out home page. Using our approved design template IFC will build out the Cedar Falls Public Library home 

page. 

187

Item 16.



11 

04 Build out advanced interior pages. Any pages that require unique or advanced functionality will follow. These will 

be interactive throughout the development process. 

05 Build out a variety of subpage templates. IFC will build multiple templates that can easily be applied to new or 

existing pages according to the needs of Cedar Falls Public Library. These templates will be built in a way that allow 

for Cedar Falls Public Library staff to easily create new landing pages as needed on their template of choice. 

06 Evaluate all pages for consistency in tone, messaging, and syntax. IFC will review all content for consistency 

across your website. 

07 Schedule an initial website presentation. IFC will present the initial design to stakeholders. 

08 First round of feedback/revisions. Stakeholders will review website and provide a first round of feedback and 

revisions. 

09 Website presentation round two. IFC will present the updated website to stakeholders, with emphasis on recent 

updates. 

10 Second round of feedback/revisions. If required, Stakeholders will provide a second round of feedback and 

revisions. 

11 Website presentation round three. If required, IFC will present a final version of the website to Cedar Falls Public 

Library stakeholders. 

12 Finalize development work and schedule an initial training session. At this time an initial training session will be 

scheduled to train Cedar Falls Public Library staff on content management and updates. 

Site Launch 

01 Migrate over existing analytics and tracking snippets. This includes Google Analytics, Facebook pixels, and so on.  

02 Build out 301 redirects. This will ensure that any pages moved, consolidated, or deleted will automatically direct 

traffic to their new or updated location. This is necessary for search engines as well, and is a best practice for SEO.  

03 Point the domain to our hosting server. This will likely be an A record change so no other services are interrupted.  

04 Submit new XML sitemap to search engines. This will help Google, Bing, and more be made aware of any page 

structure changes quickly. 

05 Final pre-flight check. Everything gets another review for issues, typos, and anything else that needs attention. 

Some may say we’re a little OCD when it comes to site launches. We prefer to think of it passionate professionalism.  

06 Pop the champagne. We did it! Let’s all get together and celebrate a job well-done. Drinks are on us!  

Training & Ongoing Support 

01 Daily WordPress and plugin updates. The most important factor to keeping a WordPress website secure is being 

100% certain everything is up-to-date. Through our partnership with WP Engine and as part of your hosting package, 

we have an automated tool that will keep all plugins updated on a daily basis. If even one pixel is altered after an 

update is applied, the site will automatically revert to a pre-update state, and allow our team to determine the best 

course of action. If any plugins present a potential vulnerability, we are immediately notified by WP Engine’s security 

scanning software, and will patch manually. 

02 Website manual will be created and shared. A website manual is your guide to managing content. At IFC we will 

build out a comprehensive manual, with links to screen recordings, to be sure you can pass off your website 

management to any staff member with confidence. 

188

Item 16.



12 

03 Ongoing trainings to be scheduled as needed. If your staff ever requires an additional training with an IFC team 

member, we are ready and available as needed. 

04 Technical support, whenever you need it. IFC’s web team will be available during regular business hours all year 

long. Additionally, premium live support will be available 24/7/365. 

05 Support for future features or web changes. For the lifetime of our partnership, IFC will support Cedar Falls Public 

Library’s need for any future web updates that fall outside the scope of this project. This is available via two ways: a) 

a la carte, billed at our standard WordPress Development rate of $125/hour, or b) as part of a retainer subscription, 

billed at a discounted rate each month. 

Timeline 

We can execute on both project phases within CFPL’s proposed timeline of December 2022 to April 2023. 

December-January – Project kickoff and research. 

January-February – Branding, messaging concepts. 

February-April – Website design and development 

 - Brand, messaging completed, marketing strategy execution. 

March-April – Website launch, training. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

189

Item 16.



13 

EXHIBIT B: Payment Terms 

 

Net 60 days.  The total one-time cost will be invoiced on the date of the project kickoff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

190

Item 16.



14 

EXHIBIT C: Insurance Requirements 

SMALL SERVICES – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 

Commercial General Liability 

  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 

  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 

  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 

  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 

  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 

  Medical Payments  $       5,000 

  
If a $2M general aggregate cannot be provided, a $1M general aggregate shall apply on a per 

project basis. 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                  
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned and 
hired vehicles. 
 
Umbrella:  $1,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if the 
Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same endorsements 
as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions): $1,000,000 
 
Required Endorsements: 

 Waiver of Subrogation 

 30-Day Cancellation and Material Change  
 
 
 

191

Item 16.



192

Item 16.



193

Item 16.



194

Item 16.



The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

11/18/2022

PDCM Insurance
P.O. Box 2597
Waterloo IA 50704

Lynette Sugden
319-234-8888 319-234-7702

lsugden@pdcm.com

Chubb Group of Ins Co
INFORMC-01

In Form Creations LLC dba IFC Studios
206A Main Street
Cedar Falls IA 50613

1300603181

A X 1,000,000
X 1,000,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

Y D94378618 10/1/2022 10/1/2023

2,000,000

A 1,000,000

XX

D94378618 10/1/2022 10/1/2023

A X X 1,000,000

0

D98349157

X
1,000,000

11/14/2022 10/1/2023

A Y 71770202 10/1/2022 10/1/2023 X X
500,000

500,000

500,000
A Errors & Omissions/Cyber D98345036 11/15/2022 11/15/2023 Limit

Deductible
1,000,000
2,500

RE: City of Cedar Falls Public Library Project
When required in a written contract, City of Cedar Falls will be provided a waiver of subrogation under the General Liability and Workers Compensation. Carrier
will endeavor to provide 30 Day Notice of Cancellation.

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls IA 50613

195

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Recreation Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council 

 FROM: Mike Soppe, Recreation & Community Programs Manager 

 DATE: November 29, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Recreation Fee Proposal 

         

Attached are the Recreation Team’s proposed fees.  If adopted, any fee changes would go into 
effect for any program or service January 1, 2023.  
 
On the attached sheets is a list of current proposed fees. Any fee changed from the previous 
year is highlighted in yellow for easy identification. Outdated lines items have been lined out and 
can be removed. 
 
The reduction in the Falls Season Passes, were to encourage daily users to register with us and 
be more committed into maintaining a positive culture at the Falls. Management feels these 
rates will also keep us where we need to be financially.  
 
Proposed changes are as follow:  
 

 Page 1 
o Small increases in registrations to keep pace with program costs 
o Added new programs or flexibilities in existing programs 

 

 Page 2 
Small increases in youth sports registrations to keep pace with program costs  

 

 Page 3-4 
o Flag Football increases cover a jersey price increase 
o Small increases in youth sports registrations to keep pace with program costs  
o An increase of $25 for the single week option of Camp CF and matching increase 

for whole summer options 
o Increases for Falls Daily Drop ins 
o A removal of the Family Season Pass Rate at the Falls as we are changing to 

individual passes removing disputes about the definition of family 
o Adjustments to other pass rates to be comparable to the newly created various 

individual passes  
o Small increases in aquatics registrations to keep pace with program costs  
o Increases in rental fees to keep pace with program costs 

 

196

Item 17.



 Page 5 
o Small increases in membership fees and sports registrations to keep pace with 

facility and operations costs  
o Added new option: Locker Rental 
             

Thank you in advance for considering this proposal.  Please let me know if you have any 
questions or need additional information.  

 

197

Item 17.



City of Cedar Falls  2023 Rec Fees.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

 
ADULT PROGRAMS

Basketball Leagues $370.00 Each team 10 games (plus tax)  
Basketball Call Your Own League $120.00 Each team 10 games (plus tax)
Couples Volleyball Class $29.00 Per person 8 weeks REMOVE
Volleyball League $140.00 Each team 14 games (plus tax) Previously $125
Spring Volleyball $80.00 Each team 6 games (plus tax) Previously $75  (Changed Mini to Spring)
Softball Leagues – 12 games
Registration $355.00 Each team (plus tax)
Player Fees $70.00 Each team (plus tax)
Mixed League Softball Plus $25.00 (plus tax) Fall or Summer
Softball Call Your Own League 12 games $175.00 (plus tax) new
Player Fees $50.00 (plus tax) new
Mixed League Softball REMOVE
Registration $200.00 Each team REMOVE
Player Fees $50.00 Each team REMOVE
Ball Field Rental (field as is) $6.00 per hr (plus  tax)
Youth Games Ball Field Rental - Non-profit REMOVE
   501C3 Field Rental  REMOVE
      Week Day Evening $20.00 (plus tax)
      Multiple Rentals (Max. 75 per season) $500 Max (plus tax)
Fall Softball League – 10 games $255.00 (plus tax)
Players Fees $60.00 (plus tax)

Fall Softball League (Call your own) – 10 games $160.00 (plus tax) new

Player Fees $40.00 Each team (plus tax) new
Softball Field Rental

  One Field - One Day (with lights or on weekend) $50.00 (plus tax)

Complex (weekend 1 & 2 day) $130.00 (plus tax)
Plus any additional staff cost over the initial field 
preparation

Pfeiffer (weekend 1 & 2 day) $130.00 (plus tax)
Plus any additional staff cost over the initial field 
preparation

Kickball League $75.00 (plus tax)
Player Fee $10.00 (plus tax) new
Flag Football League – 4 on 4 $100.00 Each team

Player Fee $15.00 Each player
Dodgeball $80.00 (plus tax) Previously $75
Golf Lessons – 4 lessons N/A REMOVE
Tennis Lessons – 8 lessons N/A REMOVE
Tournaments Cost Plus $20.00
Beach House (all day) N/A

Weekend (Friday-Sunday, Holidays) N/A
     Full Facility $275.00
Weekday (Monday-Thursday)
     Full Facility $175.00
     Deposit $500.00

Shelter Rental - All Day $25.00
Up to 6 hours N/A
Over 6 hours N/A

Gateway Shelter (10am-10:30pm)
Monday - Thursday $70.00
Friday-Sunday & Holidays $110.00
     Deposit $75.00

Orchard Hill Pickleball Court
     Single Court Per Hour $10.00 (plus tax)
     Whole Complex Per Hour $80.00 (plus tax)
Racquetball League – 11 games
     Singles $35.00 (plus tax)
Racquetball Lessons – 6 lessons $33.00
Table Tennis League $16.00 (plus tax)

Bags League $45.00 (plus tax) new
EXERCISE CLASSES

Specialty Classes
Instructor + 

$10.00
Exercise Tryouts N/A
Fitness Pass w/o Rec Membership

4 months unlimited N/A
1 month unlimited N/A

Fitness Pass w/ Rec Membership
4 months unlimited N/A
1 month unlimited N/A

Circuit Weight Training
w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

ADOPTED RATE

RECREATION DIVISION PROGRAM FEES
CHAPTER 17, CEDAR FALLS PARKS AND RECREATION

Page 1
198

Item 17.



City of Cedar Falls  2023 Rec Fees.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATIONADOPTED RATE
2 x Per Week - Per Month $32.00

Circuit Weight Training
w/ Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

2 x Per Week - Per Month $16.00
Cardio Cycling - Per Month
w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week - Per Month $44.00
Cardio Cycling - Per Month
w/ Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week - Per Month $22.00
Rec Xfit - Monthly
w/Fitness Pass/Rec Membership
3 x Per Week $29.00
Rec Xfit - Monthly
w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership
3 x Per Week $58.00
Special Fitness Classes (without FP or RCM)
2 x Per Week Per Month

$60.00

Special Fitness Classes (with FP or RCM)
2 x Per Week Per Month

$30.00

Teen Weight Lifting Training
(2) 2-hour classes $28.00

*RCM - Rec Center Membership
*FP - Fitness Pass
YOUTH PROGRAMS

Boys Baseball T-ball
Registration $40.00
Sponsor $250.00

Boys Baseball 1
Registration $45.00
Sponsor $250.00

Boys Baseball 2-3
Registration $50.00
Sponsor $500.00

Boys Baseball 4-5
Registration $50.00
Sponsor $600.00

Girls Softball T-ball
Registration $40.00
Sponsor $250.00

Girls Softball Kind. & 1
Registration $45.00
Sponsor $250.00

Girls Softball 2-3
Registration $45.00
Sponsor $500.00

Girls Softball 4-6
Registration $50.00
Sponsor $500.00

Kindergarten Basketball
Registration $39.00 Previously $34
Sponsor $200.00

Boys Basketball 5-6
Registration $44.00
Sponsor $500.00

Boys Basketball 3-4
Registration $39.00
Sponsor $300.00

Boys Basketball 1-2
Registration $39.00 Previously $34
Sponsor $300.00

Girls Basketball 5-6 (format change)
Registration $39.00
Sponsor $250.00

Girls Basketball 3-4
Registration $39.00
Sponsor $300.00

Girls Basketball 1-2
Registration $39.00 Previously $34
Sponsor $300.00

Summer Track
Registration $50.00
Sponsor $300.00

Volleyball 3-6 (format change) (8 weeks)

Page 2
199

Item 17.



City of Cedar Falls  2023 Rec Fees.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATIONADOPTED RATE
Registration $46.00 Previously $44
Sponsor $400.00

Flag Football K-2 (8 weeks)
Registration $51.00 Jersey incerease Previously $44
Sponsor $200.00

Flag Football 3-4
Registration $51.00 Jersey incerease Previously $44
Sponsor $300.00

Flag Football 5-6
Registration $51.00 Jersey incerease Previously $44
Sponsor $500.00
Baseball Club - Wrecking Crew $60.00 Previously $50
Softball Club - Wrecking Crew $60.00 Previously $50
Baseball Shortstops $35.00
Softball Shortstops $35.00

Soccer K, 1 & 2
Registration $39.00 Previously $35
Sponsor $350.00

Golf Lessons N/A
Tennis Lessons N/A now contracted
Tot Lot 

One Week $32.00
Six Weeks $150.00
One Day $9.00

Open Gym in schools No Charge
Special Events Cost Plus $5.00
Tournaments Cost Plus 0-10%
Indoor Park, 1-5 years $28.00

Full Session (18- 22 times) $40.00
Mini Session $18.00
Daily $3.00

Chew & View – 2 hours $6.00 REMOVE
Parents Night Out – 2 hours $8.00 REMOVE
Birthday Party $125.00 REMOVE
Birthday Party - Theme Package $155.00 REMOVE
   Add Pizza $30.00 REMOVE
3 on 3 Basketball Tourney $30.00 Per Team
Soccer Tournament $20.00  
Hot Shot Basketball $5.00 REMOVE
Free Throw Contest $5.00
Karate $32.00
New Sports & Active Programs Charge Comparable
Sack Lunch Days $28.00
Tumbling - 5 sessions $32.00
Hockey – Inline REMOVE

Registration N/A REMOVE
Sponsor N/A REMOVE

Camp Cedar Falls
One Week $150.00 Previously $125
Full Summer 8 weeks (1 week free) $1,050.00 Previously $840
Full Summer 9 weeks (1 week free) $1,200.00 Previously $960
Whole Summer (weeks x $150) REMOVE
Pre and Post Care

Daily $5.00
Weekly $20.00

Note: Sponsorship determined by cost of t-shirts 
adjusted up to the nearest $50.00 increment.

 

SWIM POOL FEES  
Daily Admission – Indoor

Infant (under 2) $3.00
Youth (3-17) $5.00
Adult (18 & Up) $5.00

Daily Admission – THE FALLS
Infant (under 2) $3.00
Youth (3-17) $12.00 (sales tax included) Previously $8
Adult (18 & Up) $10.00 (sales tax included) Previously $8

Summer
Memorial Day-1st Day of School

REMOVE

Family Season Pass
Resident** N/A Previously $210 
Non-Resident** N/A Previously $260

Page 3
200

Item 17.



City of Cedar Falls  2023 Rec Fees.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATIONADOPTED RATE
*1 adult & 4 or less children or 2 adults and 3 or 
less children. Ea. Additional child in the family 
will be $10.00

REMOVE

Child Care Provider Pool Pass - Mon-Fri $40.00 (plus tax) Previously $70
Adult Season Pass

Resident $40.00 (plus tax) Previously $130
Non-Resident $60.00 (plus tax) Previously $160

Youth Season Pass REMOVE SR 85 & UP
Resident $50.00 (plus tax) Previously $125
Non-Resident $60.00 (plus tax) Previously $155

Lap Swim – Indoor
Resident $40.00 (plus tax) Previously $85
Non-Resident $60.00 (plus tax) Previously $95

Winter  InDoor

Family Season Pass
Resident $135.00 (plus tax)
Non-Resident $145.00 (plus tax)

Adult Season Pass
Resident $100.00 (plus tax)
Non-Resident $105.00 (plus tax)

Youth Season Pass - 17 & Under
Resident $80.00 (plus tax)
Non-Resident $85.00 (plus tax)

*RCM - Rec Center Membership
Swim Lesson – Youth $36.00 Previously $34
Swim Lesson – Adult $38.00
WSI N/A
Aqua Trim $36.00 Previously $34
Deep Water Aqua Trim $36.00 Previously $34
Aqua Trim Tryout $5.00
Stretching Aqua Trim $36.00 Previously $34
Lap Swim – Daily Indoor $5.00 Or Pass
Life Guarding $135.00 Previously $125
Lifeguard Recertification $86.00
Scuba Diving Cost Plus $10.00
Pool Rental ID, 1-75 people $75/hr (plus tax) Previously $65
Pool Rental ID, 76 or more people $90/hr (plus tax) Previously $80
Pool Rental OD

Zero Depth – 2 hours $240.00 (plus tax) Previously $220
Zero Depth / Lazy River /
2 Waterslides -- 2 hours

$465.00 (plus tax) Previously $445

Lap Pool / Lazy River /
2 Waterslides – 2 hours

$565.00 (plus tax) Previously $545

Lap Pool – 2 hours $365.00 (plus tax) Previously $345
Entire Facility – 2 hours

No Concessions $665.00 (plus tax) Previously $645
Concessions Sold $45.00/hr (plus tax) Previously $35 per hr

Cost - Programs that are listed, as cost will be 
charged on the basis of direct program costs 
excluding administration and office costs.

New programs will be charged a comparable fee 
to other similar activities
Sponsor fee may change in some cases 
depending on the registration, program 
changes or sponsor charge.
** Summer Family Swim Pass - Resident & Non-
Resident - Will be the fee listed for 1 adult or 4 
or less children or 2 adults and 3 or less 
children.  

REMOVE

Each additional child in the family will be 
$10.00.  Implemented Spring 2012.

REMOVE

RECREATION CENTER
Admission

Daily Resident
24 & Under $5.00 (sales tax included)
Adult 25 & Over $10.00 (sales tax included)
Senior Citizen $5.00 (sales tax included)
Veteran $5.00 (sales tax included)
Holiday Special Event Admission $3.00 (sales tax included) Per person – Any age

Resident Yearly Memberships**  
Individual

12 Grade & Under $115.00 (plus tax)
Adult $175.00 (plus tax)

Page 4
201

Item 17.



City of Cedar Falls  2023 Rec Fees.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATIONADOPTED RATE
Senior Citizen $155.00 (plus tax)
Veteran $155.00 (plus tax)

Family $260.00 (plus tax)
Non-Resident Yearly Memberships**

Individual
12 Grade & Under $210.00 (plus tax)
Adult $355.00 (plus tax)
Senior Citizen $290.00 (plus tax)
Veteran $290.00 (plus tax)

Family $465.00 (plus tax)
Monthly Membership - Resident

18 & Under $20.00 (plus tax) Previously $15
University Student (19-23) $25.00 (plus tax) Previously $20
Adult 19 & Over $30.00 (plus tax) Previously $25
Family $45.00 (plus tax) Previously $40
Senior Citizen $25.00 (plus tax) Previously $20
Veteran $20.00 (plus tax)

Monthly Membership - Non-Resident
18 & Under $35.00 (plus tax) Previously $30
Adult 19 & Over $55.00 (plus tax) Previously $50
Family $70.00 (plus tax) Previously $65
Senior Citizen $40.00 (plus tax)
Veteran $40.00 (plus tax)

Replace I.D. Card $9.00 (plus tax)
Corporate Rate

Individual $235.00 (plus tax)
Family $310.00 (plus tax)

Racquetball
Drop-in, per hour $0.00 Each
Reservation, per hour $2.00 Each
10 Punch Card $17.00 to $20.00 Value

Child Care
2-hour stay $3.00
20-Punch Card $40.00

Rentals
Resident Non-profit Organizations

Entire facility w/ adequate approved adult 
supervision 1:20 ratio

Per Hour $125.00 (plus tax)
Each additional hour N/A
Maximum cost (12 hr. max.) N/A

Meeting Room $10.00 Per hour + staff cost (plus tax)
Multi-Purpose Room $25.00 Per hour (plus tax)

Gym Rental
Fit Gym $40.00 Per hour + staff cost (plus tax)
Main Gym
     Half $40.00 Per hour + staff cost (plus tax)
     All $75.00 Per hour + staff cost (plus tax)

Activity Room $25.00 Per hour + staff cost (plus tax)
Locker Rental Month $5.00 new 
Locker Rental Year $50.00 new 
*s.c. - Staff Cost (if needed) $25.00
** Memberships include free towel usage and 
all drop-in fitness classes.

CITY EMPLOYEE WELLNESS RATES
Recreation Center Membership

Individual $30.00 (plus tax)
Family $40.00 (plus tax)

Summer Swim Pass, purchased after May 1 REMOVE
Individual $75.00 (plus tax)
Family $115.00 (plus tax)

*1 adult & 4 or less children or 2 adults and 3 
or less children. Ea. Additional child in the 
family will be $10.00

Indoor Lap Swim Pass $45.00  (plus tax) -EE Retires, Veterans 
Winter Swim Pass, purchased after August 15

Individual w/RCM $12.50 (plus tax)
Family w/RCM $25.00 (plus tax)
Individual w/o RCM $47.50 (plus tax)
Family w/o RCM $65.00 (plus tax)

A full list of drop in fitness classes now included 
under the membership can be found the web at 
www.cedarfalls.com/fitness

Page 5
202

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE, Principal Engineer 

 DATE: 11/22/2022 

 SUBJECT: Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities - Grant Administration  
  Project Number ST-000-3306 – Subaward Agreement  
 
 
In December 2021, the City submitted a request to FEMA under the Building Resilient 
Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant program.  The program seeks to fund 
research-supported, proactive investment in community resilience.  They offer two types 
of grants: scoping (studies and planning) and mitigation projects (infrastructure).  The 
City added drainage studies to the Capital Improvements Plan in 2018.  Such studies fit 
with the BRIC “scoping” funding.   
 
The City has been awarded a grant for 85% of the total project.  $220,502.98 in federal 
and state funds, and 15% of local funds (City: $38,912.31) comprise the total project 
cost of $259,415.29.  The next steps are to select a consultant to complete this sub 
watershed stormwater master plan.  The master plan will use current technology model 
stormwater impacts to identify and prioritize drainage problems.  These improvements 
will be broken down into a chronological (downstream to upstream) list of projects that 
can be incorporated into street reconstruction projects or be stand-alone projects 
themselves, as conditions warrant. Each project will have a construction cost estimate. 
This stormwater master plan will then be used to identify storm water projects for the 
Capital Improvements Plan each year. 
 
The anticipated study areas are shown in the attached exhibit. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends the City Council 
accept this subaward from the Iowa Department of Homeland Security and authorize 
the Mayor to sign the agreement.  
 
 
Xc:   Stephanie Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

203

Item 18.



 

  STATE OF IOWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7900 HICKMAN ROAD / SUITE 500 / WINDSOR HEIGHTS, IOWA 50324-4402 / 515-725-3231 
http://www.homelandsecurity.iowa.gov 

KIM REYNOLDS 
GOVERNOR 

 

ADAM GREGG 
LT. GOVERNOR 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

JOHN BENSON, HOMELAND SECURITY ADVISOR 

AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR 

  
 
 
November 16, 2022 
 
Stephanie Sheetz 
Director of Community Development 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay St 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613-2726 
 
SUBJECT:  BRIC-2021-IA-0003, Stormwater Resilience Planning 
 
Dear Stephanie Sheetz, 
 
City of Cedar Falls has been awarded federal assistance under the Building Resilience 
Infrastructure and Communities, 2021 in accordance with the scope of work and budget that 
were included in the application package submitted to and approved by Iowa Department of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEMD) and the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA). 
 
I have included one original Subaward Agreement for review, approval and signature. Please 
scan and email the signed copy to your project officer (Hanna Henscheid, 
Hanna.Henscheid@iowa.gov) and BRIC finance officer (Emily Novak, 
Emily.Novak@iowa.gov).  Any modifications to the scope of work or budget must have prior 
approval by HSEMD and FEMA. Please notify me if there are any anticipated changes.    
 
If you have any questions or need assistance, please do not hesitate to call me at 515-314-1603, 
or e-mail me at Emily.Novak@iowa.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Emily Novak 
BRIC Finance Officer 
 
Enclosure 

204

Item 18.



SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 
 

Between 
 

Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management  
 

And 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
 

 
PROJECT TITLE: Stormwater Resilience Planning  
 
SUBAWARD AGREEMENT NO:    EMK-2021-BR-041-0003 
 
UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER (UEI):   EGCPJFKF3NC9 
 
FEDERAL AWARD IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (FAIN): EMK-2021-BR-041 
 
ASSISTANCE LISTING NUMBER:  97.047 
 
FEDERAL AWARD DATE:    9/13/2022  
 
PERFORMANCE PERIOD START DATE:  9/14/2022 
 
PERFORMANCE PERIOD END DATE:  03/12/2024 
 
FEDERAL FUNDS OBLIGATED AMOUNT:  $207,532.22 
      
I. SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
This Subaward Agreement (AGREEMENT) is to provide the City of Cedar Falls 
(SUBRECIPIENT) with federal assistance from the Building Resilient Infrastructure and 
Communities (BRIC) Program. The total subaward is $272,386.05.   
 
Project Costs - The federal share shall not exceed $194,561.46 or 75% of actual allowable 
subaward costs, whichever is less. The state share shall not exceed $25,941.52 or 10% of the 
actual allowable subaward costs, whichever is less. The SUBRECIPIENT shall provide at least 
$38,912.31 or 15% through local non-federal (cash and/or in-kind) sources for actual allowable 
subaward costs.   
 
Management Costs – Management costs shall not exceed $12,970.76 or the actual allowable 
costs, whichever is less.  Management costs are 100% federal and are not included in the project 
cost total or cost share calculation. 
 
These funds are to assist the SUBRECIPIENT with completing the approved scope of work in 
accordance with the work schedule, milestones, and budget that were submitted to and approved 
by Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEMD) and the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  See Exhibit A: FEMA Award Notification 
and Exhibit B: Approved Scope of Work and Budget. 
 

205

Item 18.



Any modifications to the approved scope and/or budget must be submitted to and approved by 
HSEMD prior to executing the changes. This includes all change orders. The SUBRECIPIENT is 
required to obtain all necessary permits before any construction begins.   
 
II. AGREEMENTS 
 
HSEMD will provide financial oversight and management in the role of recipient/pass-through 
entity based on the grant guidance in 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.332, the grant 
financial guide and other state and federal guidelines.  HSEMD will provide technical assistance 
and direction to the SUBRECIPIENT on programmatic and financial requirements.  HSEMD will 
provide all appropriate documents and forms and make payments to the SUBRECIPIENT to 
complete the approved scope of work. 
 
HSEMD is responsible for monitoring the SUBRECIPIENT’s activities to provide reasonable 
assurance that the SUBRECIPIENT administers this subaward in compliance with federal and 
HSEMD requirements. Responsibilities include reviewing the SUBRECIPIENT’s records that 
support receipts and expenditures, financial records are maintained and adequate for audit, proper 
cash management, and expenditures are eligible and allowable. A pre-award risk assessment is 
completed for each subrecipient to assist HSEMD in determining the minimum level of 
monitoring that will be needed throughout the life of this subaward in accordance with 2 CFR, 
Part 200. See Exhibit C: Pre-Award Risk Assessment. 
 
Additionally, the SUBRECIPIENT will be monitored periodically by HSEMD to ensure that the 
program goals, objectives, timelines, budgets, and other related program criteria are being met.  
Monitoring will be accomplished through a combination of office-based and on-site monitoring 
visits. Monitoring will involve the review and analysis of the financial, programmatic, and 
administrative records relative to each program, and will identify areas where technical assistance 
and other support may be needed. 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT will allow HSEMD and auditors to access any necessary records and 
financial information as indicated in 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.334 through 
Section 200.338. 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT will pass appropriate resolutions to assure HSEMD that it is participating, 
and will continue to participate, in the National Flood Insurance Program, if mapped. 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT must disclose in writing any potential conflicts of interest to HSEMD in 
accordance with applicable FEMA policy and 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.112. 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT must disclose in writing to HSEMD all violations of Federal criminal law 
involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the federal subaward in 
accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200, Section 200.113. Failure to make required disclosures can 
result in any of the remedies described in 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.339 through 
Section 200.343, Remedies for noncompliance. (See also 2 CFR, Part 180, Suspension and 
Debarment, and 31 U.S.C. 3321) 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT and the SUBRECIPIENT’s authorized representative agree to provide all 
supervision, inspection, accounting, and other services necessary to complete the scope of work 
from inception to closeout with the requirements set forth below. 
 
 

206

Item 18.



III. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 
 
The approved Period of Performance for this subaward is from 09/14/2022 through 03/12/2024.  
All work must be completed prior to the end of the Period of Performance.  HSEMD will not 
reimburse the SUBRECIPIENT for costs that are obligated or incurred outside of the Period of 
Performance. 
 
If a time extension is needed, one must be requested at least 90 days prior to the end of the 
Period of Performance.  All requests must be supported by adequate justification submitted to 
HSEMD in order to be processed.  This justification is a written explanation of the reason or 
reasons for the delay; an outline of remaining funds available to support the extended 
performance period; milestones that are unmet; and a description of performance measures 
necessary to complete the subaward.  The SUBRECIPIENT shall request time extensions through 
EMGrantsPro, HSEMD’s web-based grant management system, and include justification of the 
request. Without the justification, time extension requests will not be processed.   
  
IV.    AUTHORITIES AND REFERENCES   
 
The SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations.  A non-exclusive list 
of laws and regulations commonly applicable to FEMA grants follows hereto for reference only.   
 

 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards set forth at 2 CFR, Part 200 - 2 CFR Part 200 

 Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, Public Law 93-288, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. 5121 et seq.  

 Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) - Part 80 - Property Acquisition and 
Relocation for Open Space, if applicable 

 Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) - Part 9 - Floodplain Management and 
Protection of Wetlands, if applicable 

 Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) - Part 201 - Mitigation Planning  
 Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) - Part 206 - Federal Disaster Assistance 
 Title 31 CFR 205.6 Funding Techniques 
 Hazard Mitigation Assistance Guidance, February 27, 2015 
 SUBRECIPIENT’s application that was received and approved by HSEMD and FEMA 
 Federal Agreement Articles (see Addendum 1) and Subaward-Specific Terms and 

Conditions specific to subrecipent (see Addendum 2) to this AGREEMENT 
 Any other applicable Federal Statutes including the Transparency and Recovery Act 

 
V. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 
To ensure federal funds are awarded and expended appropriately, the SUBRECIPIENT will 
establish and maintain a financial management system as outlined in 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, 
Section 200.302, and internal controls in Section 200.303. The standards for SUBRECIPIENT 
organizations stem from the Office of Management and Budget’s (OMB) uniform administrative 
requirements and the cost principles in 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart E.  State, local and tribal 
organizations must follow the uniform administrative requirements standards in 2 CFR Part 200. 
These standards combined with the audit standards provided within 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart F, 
plus the requirements of the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles constitute the basis for all 
policies, processes and procedures set forth in this financial management system for the 
SUBRECIPIENT. 

207

Item 18.



 
The SUBRECIPIENT’s financial management system must include:  

 internal controls based on the American Institute for Certified Public Accountants 
(AICPA) definitions and requirements in the government-wide administrative 
requirements and cost principles 

 a chart of accounts that includes a separate cost center, fund, or accounting codes for each 
federal grant, program, or funding source  

 procedures to minimize cash on hand in compliance with the Cash Management 
Improvement Act (CMIA) and good business processes 

 the ability to track expenditures on a cash or accrual basis 
 the ability to track expenditures in both financial and program budgets 
 procedures to document all grant-related expenditures, broken down by budget line items 
 procedures to ensure expenditures are eligible and allowable 
 the ability to fulfill government-required financial reporting forms 

 
VI.  PROCUREMENT  
 
This AGREEMENT requires that all procurement be executed by the SUBRECIPIENT within 
the guidelines of 2 CFR, Part 200 Subpart D, Section 200.318 through Section 200.327, including 
Appendix II.  Procurement standards must be in accordance with the written adopted procedures 
of the SUBRECIPIENT, provided that the local procurement standards conform to applicable 
State and Federal law and the standards identified in 2 CFR, Part 200. The SUBRECIPIENT 
must maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest as outlined in 2 CFR, 
Part 200 Subpart D, Section 200.318. The SUBRECIPIENT will ensure that every purchase order 
or other contract includes clauses required by Federal statutes and executive orders and their 
implementing regulations.  The SUBRECIPIENT must submit copies of its own written 
procurement guidelines, written conflict of interest guidelines, bid documents and contract 
documents to HSEMD prior to awarding or executing contracts.  No contract will be 
accepted without HSEMD’s prior review. 
 
In addition to the guidelines of 2 CFR, Part 200, Section 200.318 through Section 200.327, the 
SUBRECIPIENT will need to adhere to 2 CFR, Part 200, Section 200.216, 200.471 and 
Appendix II as well as section D.13a of the NOFO regarding prohibitions on covered 
telecommunications equipment or services. 
 
 
VII.  AUDIT  

 
The SUBRECIPIENT must comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments 
of 1996 and 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart F. Reference: Assistance Listing (formerly known as the 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)) 97.047, Building Resilient Infrastructure and 
Communities (BRIC) Program. 
  
VIII.  PAYMENT REQUEST PROCESS  
 
The SUBRECIPIENT may submit a payment request up to 30 days prior to an anticipated 
expenditure or disbursement.  The SUBRECIPIENT must be able to account for the receipt, 
obligation, and expenditure of funds.  If interest is earned, the SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply 
with the federal requirements from 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.305. The 
SUBRECIPIENT may keep interest earned on Federal grant funds up to $500 per fiscal year. 208

Item 18.



This maximum limit is not per subaward; it is inclusive of all interest earned as a result of all 
federal grant program funds received per year.  Subrecipients are required to report all interest 
earned at least quarterly to HSEMD.  HSEMD will provide instructions to the SUBRECIPIENT 
for the disposition of reported interest earned.   
 
Payments to subrecipients are based on eligible expenditures that are specifically related to the 
approved subaward budget and scope of work.  The SUBRECIPIENT has two options available 
to them when requesting payments from HSEMD.  Subrecipients can request Reimbursement 
for allowable expenditures already paid, or request an Advance for expenditures to be paid 
within 30 days. 
 
Payments shall be limited to the documented cash requirements submitted by the 
SUBRECIPIENT.  The SUBRECIPIENT must submit a completed Request for Reimbursement 
(RFR) through EMGrantsPro and provide supporting documentation of eligible subaward costs to 
receive payment of funds.   
 

 Reimbursement requests must include payment verification (i.e. paid invoices, receipts, 
payroll records with personnel activity reports, cancelled checks, general ledger print 
outs, etc.). HSEMD reserves the right to request that the SUBRECIPIENT submit 
additional expenditure documentation upon request. 

 
Additional documentation for Acquisitions: Purchase Offers, HUD Settlement 
Statements, and copies of tax assessment records, copies of appraisals if used as the basis 
for pre-flood fair market value, invoices, and copies of all payments.   
 

 Advance payment requests must include the detailed costs the SUBRECIPIENT is 
obligated to pay (i.e. invoices, accepted quotes, executed contracts, or other documents).  
Payment verification documents (same documents required for a Reimbursement request) 
for the advance must be submitted to HSEMD within 30 days after the advance, and 
before future advances are made.  If the SUBRECIPIENT is unable to demonstrate the 
willingness to maintain written procedures that minimize the time elapsing between the 
transfer of funds and disbursement by HSEMD, a financial management system that 
meets the standards for fund control and accountability as established in 2 CFR, Part 200, 
or is considered a High Risk subrecipient, then reimbursement requests will be required. 

 
No more than thirty (30) days shall elapse between the date of receipt of a warrant and 
pay out of the funds by the SUBRECIPIENT.  All supporting documentation must be 
submitted to HSEMD immediately following the SUBRECIPIENT’s pay out of the funds. 
If the SUBRECIPIENT has incurred the costs within the 30 days but is unable to 
pay out the funds on the 30th day, the SUBRECIPIENT shall provide written 
communication to HSEMD of when the proof of payment will be provided and 
receive approval from HSEMD before the 30 days expires. All other support 
documents are required to be submitted on time.   
 
If the SUBRECIPIENT requested funds in excess of the costs incurred from the 
advance payment, two options will be available to the SUBRECIPIENT: 

o HSEMD can apply the overpayment to the next request from the 
SUBRECIPIENT, as long as the request is received by HSEMD within the 30 
days and the SUBRECIPIENT provides written notification to HSEMD to 
apply the overpayment to the new request, or  209

Item 18.



o The SUBRECIPIENT shall promptly return overpayments to HSEMD 
within the 30 days. 

 
Required documents prior to payments from HSEMD.  Payment of funds will not be made to 
the SUBRECIPIENT until HSEMD has on file the following documents: 
  

 FEMA Award Notification (attached to this AGREEMENT) 
 Pre-Award Risk Assessment (attached to this AGREEMENT) 
 Signed Subaward Agreement 
 Substitute W9/Vendor Update Form (if not already on file at HSEMD) 
 Chart of Accounts verifying that unique revenue and expenditure accounts, cost centers or 

account codes have been established within the SUBRECIPIENT’s cash 
management/accounting system for each program included in this AGREEMENT. 

 Procurement documents: written procurement and conflict of interest documents, method 
of procurement, bid specifications reviewed by HSEMD, copy of approved and executed 
contracts between the SUBRECIPIENT and contractor.  

 Signed certification from the SUBRECIPIENT’s authorized representative for the 
payment request as outlined in 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.305. 

 
Expenditures must be in accordance with the approved scope of work and budget and in 
accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D.  The SUBRECIPIENT’s contributions must be 
verifiable from the SUBRECIPEINT’S records; not be included as contributions for any other 
Federal subaward; be necessary and reasonable, allowable, and allocable under the grant program 
and must comply with all Federal requirements and regulations. 
 
Cash match can be money contributed to the SUBRECIPIENT by the SUBRECIPIENT, other 
public agencies and institutions, private organizations and individuals as long as it comes from a 
non-federal source.  Cash spent must be for allowable subaward costs in accordance with the 
SUBRECIPIENT’s approved scope of work and budget and must be applicable to the period to 
which the cost sharing or matching requirement applies.  Documentation can be copies of the 
SUBRECIPIENT’s checks to the third parties and a copy of the SUBRECIPIENT’s general 
ledger for revenues and expenses clearly showing the federal and non-federal cash sources. 
 
In-kind match must comply with the requirements of 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, Section 
200.306, entitled “Cost sharing or matching”.  The value of in-kind contributions is also 
applicable to the period to which the cost sharing or matching requirement applies.  The in-kind 
match provided must be documented by the third party contributing the in-kind services.  The in-
kind match must be specifically stated in the SUBRECIPIENT’s scope of work and budget 
before in-kind match will be allowed to match this subaward.  Documentation can be a letter (on 
letterhead) from the third party stating the scope of their work, what is being contributed as it 
relates to the scope of work, dates of service/donation, record of donor, the value (rates of 
staffing, equipment usage, supplies, etc.) a statement to the effect that the value is normally 
charged, deposit slips for cash contributions and a statement that the value is being waived on 
behalf of the SUBRECIPIENT to meet the matching requirements to the SUBRECIPIENT’s 
subaward.  Such documentation must be kept on file by the SUBRECIPIENT. 
 
If the local match is insufficient to satisfy the local match requirements for receiving all available 
federal funds, the awarded federal funds will be reduced accordingly so as not to exceed the 
maximum federal share allowed under this subaward. 
 210

Item 18.



The SUBRECIPIENT must maintain records and documentation showing how the value placed 
on third-party in-kind contributions is derived.  Regulations are in 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D 
Section 200.306, and Subpart E Section 200.434. 
 
IX. PROGRAM INCOME 
 
Program income, as defined in the 2 CFR, Part 200, Section 200.1, that is directly generated by 
this subaward, must comply with 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.305 and Section 
200.307.  Program income must be deducted from the subaward’s total allowable costs.  All 
program income must be reported in the quarterly financial progress reports in the quarter it is 
earned. 
 
X.           REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Quarterly programmatic and financial reports are required on the progress relative to the 
approved scope of work as outlined in 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.328 through 
Section 200.330.  Subrecipients are required to complete the quarterly progress report forms that 
are provided by HSEMD and submit them by the due dates stated by HSEMD.  Due dates are 
January 15, April 15, July 15, and October 15. The first report is due following the end of 
the reporting period in which the subaward was awarded by FEMA. The reporting periods 
are January-March, April-June, July-September, and October-December. 
 
XI.         CLOSE OUT 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT must prepare and submit by the end of the Period of Performance, and/or 
within 60 days of the completion of the approved scope of work, whichever comes first, all 
required financial, performance and other reports as outlined in 2 CFR, Part 200 Subpart D, 
Section 200.344 and Section 200.345.  The SUBRECIPIENT must liquidate all obligations 
incurred under the subaward by the end of the Period of Performance or upon completion of the 
scope of work, whichever comes first.  The SUBRECIPIENT must dispose of property purchased 
with subaward funds and dispose of or return government-furnished property no longer being 
used for subaward-related activities.  All accounts must be settled, including reimbursements for 
any remaining allowable costs and refunds to HSEMD of any unobligated cash that was 
advanced in accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.346. 
 
XII.  RECORD RETENTION 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT must retain records pertinent to the Federal subaward for three (3) years 
from the date of HSEMD’s closeout notification to the SUBRECIPIENT. If, however, there is 
any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, request for information, or other action involving this 
subaward that starts after that date, the records must be retained until completion of the action 
and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the 3-year period, whichever is 
later as outlined in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart D, section 200.334. 
  
XIII.    WAIVERS 
 
No conditions or provisions of this AGREEMENT can be waived unless approved by HSEMD 
and the SUBRECIPIENT, in writing.  Unless otherwise stated in writing, HSEMD's failure to 
insist upon strict performance of any provision of this AGREEMENT, or to exercise any right 
based upon a breach, shall not constitute a waiver of any right or obligation specified under this 
AGREEMENT. 

211

Item 18.



 
XIV.     AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS 
 
This AGREEMENT may be amended or modified in reference to the subaward funds provided, 
administrative procedures, or any other necessary matter, but not to take effect until approved, in 
writing, by HSEMD and the SUBRECIPIENT. 
 
XV.     COMPLIANCE, TERMINATION AND OTHER REMEDIES 
 
Unless otherwise stated in writing, HSEMD requires strict compliance by the SUBRECIPIENT 
and its authorized representative(s) with the terms of this AGREEMENT, and the requirements of 
any applicable local, state and federal statute, rules, regulations; particularly those included in the 
Assurances in the Application which was submitted to FEMA by HSEMD. 
 
HSEMD may suspend or terminate any obligation to provide funding or demand return of any 
unused funds, following notice from HSEMD, if the SUBRECIPIENT fails to meet any 
obligations under this AGREEMENT or fails to make satisfactory progress toward administration 
or completion of said subaward. The SUBRECIPIENT is responsible for repayment of funds as a 
result of subsequent refunds, corrections, overpayments, or disallowed costs for ineligible 
expenditures. 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that HSEMD may enforce the terms of this 
AGREEMENT by any combination or all remedies available to HSEMD under this 
AGREEMENT, or under any other provision of law, common law, or equity. 
  
XVI.     INDEMNIFICATION 
 
It is understood and agreed by HSEMD and the SUBRECIPIENT and its agents that this 
AGREEMENT is solely for the benefit of the parties to this subaward and gives no right to any 
other party.  No joint venture or partnership is formed as a result of this AGREEMENT. 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT, on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, agrees to protect, save, 
and hold harmless HSEMD and the State of Iowa, and their authorized agents and employees, 
from all claims, actions, costs, damages, or expenses of any nature whatsoever by reason of the 
negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the SUBRECIPIENT or its authorized representative, its 
contractors, subcontractors, assigns, agents, licensees, arising out of or in connection with any 
acts or activities authorized by this AGREEMENT.  The SUBRECIPIENT’s obligation to 
protect, save, and hold harmless as herein provided shall not extend to claims or causes of action 
for costs, damages, or expenses caused by or resulting from the negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions of HSEMD, the State of Iowa, or any of their authorized agents or employees. 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT further agrees to defend HSEMD, the State of Iowa, and their authorized 
agents and employees against any claim or cause of action, or to pay reasonable attorney’s fees 
incurred in the defense of any such claim or cause of action, as to which the SUBRECIPIENT is 
required to protect, save, or hold harmless said parties pursuant to paragraph 2 of this part.  The 
SUBRECIPIENT’s obligation to defend, or to pay attorney’s fees for the defense of such claims 
or causes of action as herein provided, shall not extend to claims or causes of action for costs, 
damages, or expenses caused by or resulting from the negligent acts, errors, or omissions of 
HSEMD, the State of Iowa, or any of their authorized agents or employees. 
 
 

212

Item 18.



XVII.     ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
The SUBRECIPIENT shall include, in any public or private release of information regarding the 
activities supported by this subaward, language that acknowledges the funding contribution by 
HSEMD and FEMA. 
 
XVIII.    INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS OF APPLICANT  
 
The SUBRECIPIENT, its officers, employees, agents and council members shall all perform 
their obligations under this AGREEMENT as an independent contractor and not in any manner as 
officers, employees or agents of HSEMD or the State of Iowa.  All references herein to the 
SUBRECIPIENT shall include its officers, employees, city council/board members, and agents.   
HSEMD shall not withhold on behalf of any such officer, employee, city council/board member, 
or agent, or pay on behalf of any such person, any payroll taxes, insurance, or deductions of any 
kind from the funds paid to the SUBRECIPIENT for administrative purposes. 
 
XIX.       GOVERNING LAW, VENUE AND SEVERABILITY 
 
The laws of Iowa shall govern this AGREEMENT and venue for any legal action hereunder shall 
be in the Polk County District Court of Iowa.  If any provision under this AGREEMENT or its 
application to any person or circumstances is held invalid by any court of rightful jurisdiction, 
said invalidity does not affect other provisions of this AGREEMENT which can be given effect 
without the invalid provision. 
 
XX.     NOTICES  
 
The SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with all public notices or notices to individuals as required by 
applicable state and federal laws, rules, and regulations and shall maintain a record of such 
compliance. 
 
XXI.     RESPONSIBILITY FOR SUBAWARD 
 
While HSEMD undertakes to provide technical assistance to the SUBRECIPIENT and its 
authorized representative in the administration of the subaward, said subaward remains the sole 
responsibility of the SUBRECIPIENT in accomplishing subaward objectives and goals.  HSEMD 
undertakes no responsibility to the SUBRECIPIENT, or any third party, other than what is 
expressly set out in this AGREEMENT. 
 
  

213

Item 18.



XXII.     NOTICES AND COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN HSEMD AND   
               SUBRECIPIENT 
 
All written notices and communications to the SUBRECIPIENT by HSEMD shall be to: 
 
    Stephanie Sheetz 
    Director of Community Development 
    City of Cedar Falls 
    220 Clay St 
    Cedar Falls, IA 50613-2726 
   
All written communications to HSEMD by the SUBRECIPIENT and its authorized 
representative shall be to: 
 
    Jonathan Pogones 
    Mitigation Bureau Chief 
    Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
    7900 Hickman Road, Suite 500 
    Windsor Heights, IA 50324 
 
 
  

214

Item 18.



ENTIRE SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 
 
This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire AGREEMENT between HSEMD and the 
SUBRECIPIENT with respect to subject matter hereof.  Commitments, warranties, 
representations and understandings or agreements not contained, or referred to, herein or 
amended thereto shall not be binding on either HSEMD or the SUBRECIPIENT.  Except as may 
be expressly provided herein, no alteration of any of the terms or conditions of this 
AGREEMENT will be effective without written consent of both parties. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, HSEMD and the SUBRECIPIENT have executed this 
AGREEMENT by the signatures of authorized persons of both entities and on the dates indicated 
below: 
 
Iowa Department of Homeland Security City of Cedar Falls: 
and Emergency Management: 
 
 
_________________________________ __________________________________________ 
Dennis Harper, Division Administrator Rob Green, Mayor 
 
 
_________________________________ __________________________________________ 
Date      Date 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative (optional) 
 
       
      __________________________________________ 
      Date 
 
 
 
Attachments: Addendum 1: Federal Agreement Articles 
  Addendum 2: Subaward-Specific Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit A: FEMA Award Notification 
Exhibit B: Approved Scope of Work and Budget 
Exhibit C: Pre-Award Risk Assessment 

  

215

Item 18.



Addendum 1: Federal Agreement Articles 
 

 
Article 1 

 
Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
Representations and Certifications 
I. DHS financial assistance subrecipients must complete either the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Standard Form 424B Assurances – Non- 
Construction Programs, or OMB Standard Form 424D Assurances – Construction 
Programs, as applicable. Certain assurances in these documents may not be 
applicable to your program, and the DHS financial assistance office (DHS FAO) may 
require applicants to certify additional assurances. Applicants are required to fill out 
the assurances as instructed by the awarding agency. II. DHS financial assistance 
subrecipients are required to follow the applicable provisions of the Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards located at Title 2, Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) Part 200 and 
adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R.Part 3002. III. By accepting this agreement, 
subrecipients, and their executives, as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 170.315, certify that 
their policies are  in accordance with OMB’s guidance located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, 
all applicable federal laws, and relevant Executive guidance. 

 
Article 2 

 
General Acknowledgements and Assurances 
All recipients, subrecipients, successors, transferees, and assignees must 
acknowledge and agree to comply with applicable provisions governing DHS access 
to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. I. Subrecipients 
must cooperate with any DHS compliance reviews or compliance investigations 
conducted by DHS. II. Subrecipients must give DHS access to examine and copy 
records, accounts, and other documents and sources of information related to the 
federal financial assistance award and permit access to facilities or personnel. III. 
Subrecipients must submit timely, complete, and accurate reports to the appropriate 
DHS officials and maintain appropriate backup documentation to support the reports. 
IV. Subrecipients must comply with all other special reporting, data collection, and 
evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law, or detailed in program guidance. V. 
Recipients (as defined in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 and including recipients acting as pass-
through entities) of federal financial assistance from DHS or one of its awarding 
component agencies must complete the DHS Civil Rights Evaluation Tool within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of the Notice of Award for the first award under which this term 
applies. Recipients of multiple awards of DHS financial assistance should only submit 
one completed tool for their organization, not per award. After the initial submission, 
recipients are required to complete the tool once every two (2) years if they have an 
active award, not every time an award is made. Recipients should submit the 
completed tool, including supporting materials, to CivilRightsEvaluation@hq.dhs.gov. 
This tool clarifies the civil rights obligations and related reporting requirements 
contained in the DHS Standard Terms and Conditions. Subrecipients are not required 
to complete and submit this tool to DHS. The evaluation tool can be found at 
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/dhs-civil-rights- evaluation-tool. The DHS Office for 
Civil Rights and Civil Liberties will consider, in its discretion, granting an extension if 
the recipient identifies steps and a timeline for completing the tool. Recipients should 
request extensions by emailing the request to CivilRightsEvaluation@hq.dhs.gov 
prior to expiration of the 30-day deadline. 

 
Article 3 

 
Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS 
Subrecipients must acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing 
statements, press releases, requests for proposal, bid invitations, and other 
documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with federal 
funds. 

216

Item 18.



 
Article 4 

 
Activities Conducted Abroad 
Subrecipients must ensure that project activities performed outside the United 
States are coordinated as necessary with appropriate government authorities and 
that appropriate licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained. 

 
Article 5 

 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of 
1975, Public Law 94-135 (1975) (codified as amended at Title 42, U.S. Code, § 
6101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in any program or 
activity receiving federal financial assistance. 

 
Article 6 

 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of Titles I, II, and III of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, Pub. L. 101-336 (1990) (codified as amended at 42 
U.S.C. §§ 12101– 12213), which prohibits subrecipients from discriminating on the 
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation 
systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities. 

 
Article 7 

 
Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information 
Subrecipients who collect personally identifiable information (PII) are required to 
have a publicly available privacy policy that describes standards on the usage and 
maintenance of the PII they collect. DHS defines PII as any information that permits 
the identity of an individual to be directly or indirectly inferred, including any 
information that is linked or linkable to that individual. Subrecipients may also find 
the DHS Privacy Impact Assessments: Privacy Guidance and Privacy Template as 
useful resources respectively. 

 
Article 8 

 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 – Title VI 
Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), which provides that no 
person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. 
DHS implementing regulations for the Act are found at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 
C.F.R. Part 7. 

 
Article 9 

 
Civil Rights Act of 1968 
Subrecipients must comply with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, Pub. L. 90- 
284, as amended through Pub. L. 113-4, which prohibits subrecipients from 
discriminating in the sale, rental, financing, and advertising of dwellings, or in the 
provision of services in connection therewith, on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, religion, disability, familial status, and sex (see 42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.), as 
implemented by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development at 24 
C.F.R. Part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination includes the requirement 
that new multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units—i.e., the public and 
common use areas and individual apartment units (all units in buildings with 
elevators and ground-floor units in buildings without elevators)—be designed and 
constructed with certain accessible features. (See 24 C.F.R. Part 100, Subpart D.) 

217

Item 18.



 
Article 10 

 
Copyright 
Subrecipients must affix the applicable copyright notices of 17 U.S.C. §§ 401 or 
402 and an acknowledgement of U.S. Government sponsorship (including the 
award number) to any work first produced under federal financial assistance 
awards. 

 
Article 11 

 
Debarment and Suspension 
Subrecipients are subject to the non-procurement debarment and suspension 
regulations implementing Executive Orders (E.O.) 12549 and 12689, which are at 2 
C.F.R. Part 180 as adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part 3002. These regulations 
restrict federal financial assistance awards, subawards, and contracts with certain 
parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for 
participation in federal assistance programs or activities. 

 
Article 12 

 
Drug-Free Workplace Regulations 
Subrecipients must comply with drug-free workplace requirements in Subpart B (or 
Subpart C, if the recipient is an individual) of 2 C.F.R. Part 3001, which adopts the 
Government-wide implementation (2 C.F.R. Part 182) of Sec. 5152-5158 of the 
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. §§ 8101-8106). 

 
Article 13 

 
Duplication of Benefits 
Any cost allocable to a particular federal financial assistance award provided for in 2 
C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E may not be charged to other federal financial assistance 
awards to overcome fund deficiencies; to avoid restrictions imposed by federal 
statutes, regulations, or federal financial assistance award terms and conditions; or 
for other reasons. However, these prohibitions would not preclude subrecipients 
from shifting costs that are allowable under two or more awards in accordance with 
existing federal statutes, regulations, or the federal financial assistance award terms 
and conditions. 

 
Article 14 

 
Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act) – 
Title IX 
Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, Pub. L. 92-318 (1972) (codified as amended at 20 U.S.C. § 
1681 et seq.), which provide that no person in the United States will, on the basis of 
sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any educational program or activity receiving federal financial 
assistance. DHS implementing regulations are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 
C.F.R. Part 19. 

 
Article 15 

 
Energy Policy and Conservation Act 
Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the Energy Policy and 
Conservation Act, Pub. L. 94- 163 (1975) (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. § 6201 
et seq.), which contain policies relating to energy efficiency that are defined in the 
state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with this Act. 

218

Item 18.



 
Article 16 

 
False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies 
Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. 
§§3729- 3733, which prohibit the submission of false or fraudulent claims for 
payment to the Federal Government. (See 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801-3812, which details 
the administrative remedies for false claims and statements made.) 

 
Article 17 

 
Federal Debt Status 
All subrecipients are required to be non-delinquent in their repayment of any 
federal debt. Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes, 
audit disallowances, and benefit overpayments. (See OMB Circular A-129.) 

 
Article 18 

 
Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving 
Subrecipients are encouraged to adopt and enforce policies that ban text 
messaging while driving as described in E.O. 13513, including conducting 
initiatives described in Section 3(a) of the Order when on official government 
business or when performing any work for or on behalf of the Federal Government. 

 
Article 19 

 
Fly America Act of 1974 
Subrecipients must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers (air carriers 
holding certificates under 49 U.S.C.) for international air transportation of people and 
property to the extent that such service is available, in accordance with the 
International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974, 49 U.S.C. § 
40118, and the interpretative guidelines issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States in the March 31, 1981, amendment to Comptroller General Decision 
B-138942. 

 
Article 20 

 
Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990 
Subrecipients must ensure that all conference, meeting, convention, or training 
space funded in whole or in part with federal funds complies with the fire prevention 
and control guidelines of Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, 
15 U.S.C. § 2225a 

 
Article 21 

 
John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act of Fiscal Year 2019 
Recipients, subrecipients, and their contractors and subcontractors are subject to 
the prohibitions described in section 889 of the John S. McCain National Defense 
Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019, Pub. L. No. 115-232 (2018) and 2 C.F.R. §§ 
200.216, 200.327, 200.471, and Appendix II to 2 C.F.R. Part 200. Beginning August 
13, 2020, the statute – as it applies to DHS recipients, subrecipients, and their 
contractors and subcontractors – prohibits obligating or expending federal award 
funds on certain telecommunications and video surveillance products and 
contracting with certain entities for national security reasons 

219

Item 18.



 
Article 22 

 
Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI) 
Subrecipients must comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (42 U.S.C. § 
2000d et seq.) prohibition against discrimination on the basis of national origin, 
which requires that recipients of federal financial assistance take reasonable steps 
to provide meaningful access to persons with limited English proficiency (LEP) to 
their programs and services. For additional assistance and information regarding 
language access obligations, please refer to the DHS Recipient Guidance: 
https://www.dhs.gov/guidance- published-help-department- supported- 
organizations-provide-meaningful-access-people-limited and additional resources 
on http://www.lep.gov. 

 
Article 23 

 
Lobbying Prohibitions 
Subrecipients must comply with 31 U.S.C. § 1352, which provides that none of the 
funds provided under a federal financial assistance award may be expended by the 
subrecipient to pay any person to influence, or attempt to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any federal 
action related to a federal award or contract, including any extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment, or modification. 

 
Article 24 

 
National Environmental Policy Act 
Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the National Environmental 
Policy Act of 1969, (NEPA) Pub. L. 91-190 (1970) (codified as amended at 42 
U.S.C. § 4321 et seq. and the Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ) Regulations 
for Implementing the Procedural Provisions of NEPA, which require subrecipients to 
use all practicable means within their authority, and consistent with other essential 
considerations of national policy, to create and maintain conditions under which 
people and nature can exist in productive harmony and fulfill the social, economic, 
and other needs of present and future generations of Americans 

 
Article 25 

 
Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations 
It is DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith-based organizations in social 
service programs administered or supported by DHS or its component agencies, 
enabling those organizations to participate in providing important social services to 
beneficiaries. Subrecipients must comply with the equal treatment policies and 
requirements contained in 6 C.F.R. Part 19 and other applicable statues, 
regulations, and guidance governing the participations of faith- based organizations 
in individual DHS programs. 

 
Article 26 

 
Non-Supplanting Requirement 
Subrecipients receiving federal financial assistance awards made under programs 
that prohibit supplanting by law must ensure that federal funds do not replace 
(supplant) funds that have been budgeted for the same purpose through non-federal 
sources. 

 
Article 27 

 
Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements 
All the instructions, guidance, limitations, and other conditions set forth in the Notice 
of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for this program are incorporated here by reference 
in the award terms and conditions. All subrecipients must comply with any such 
requirements set forth in the program NOFO. 

220

Item 18.



 
Article 28 

 
Patents and Intellectual Property Rights 
Subrecipients are subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, 35 U.S.C. § 200 et seq, unless 
otherwise provided by law. Subrecipients are subject to the specific requirements 
governing the development, reporting, and disposition of rights to inventions and 
patents resulting from federal financial assistance awards located at 37 C.F.R. Part 
401 and the standard patent rights clause located at 37 C.F.R. § 401.14. 

 
Article 29 

 
Procurement of Recovered Materials 
States, political subdivisions of states, and their contractors must comply with 
Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, Pub. L. 89-272 (1965), (codified as 
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6962.) The 
requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines 
of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the 
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition. 

 
Article 30 

 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Pub. L. 93-112 (1973), (codified as amended at 29 
U.S.C. § 794,) which provides that no otherwise qualified handicapped individuals 
in the United States will, solely by reason of the handicap, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under 
any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. 

 
Article 31 

 
Reporting of Matters Related  to  Subrecipient  Integrity  and  Performance 
General Reporting Requirements: If the total value of any currently active grants, 
cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts from all federal awarding 
agencies exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of time during the period of 
performance of this federal award, then the subrecipients must comply with the 
requirements set forth in the government-wide Award Term and Condition for 
Subrecipient Integrity and Performance Matters located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, 
Appendix XII, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the award 
terms and conditions. 

 
Article 32 

 
Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation 
Reporting of first tier subawards. Subrecipients are required to comply with the 
requirements set forth in the government-wide award term on Reporting Subawards 
and Executive Compensation located at 2 C.F.R. Part 170, Appendix A, the full text 
of which is incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions. 

 
Article 33 

 
Required Use of American Iron, Steel, Manufactured Products, and 
Construction Materials 
Recipients and subrecipients must comply with the Build America, Buy America Act 
(BABAA), which was enacted as part of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act 
§§ 70901-70927, Pub. L. No. 117-58 (2021); and Executive Order 14005, Ensuring 
the Future is Made in All of America by All of America’s Workers. See also Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB), Memorandum M-22-11, Initial Implementation 
Guidance on Application of Buy America Preference in Federal Financial Assistance 
Programs for Infrastructure. Recipients and subrecipients of federal financial 
assistance programs for infrastructure are hereby notified that none of the funds 

221

Item 18.



provided under this award may be used for a project for infrastructure unless: (1) all 
iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States--this means all 
manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of 
coatings, occurred in the United States; (2) all manufactured products used in the 
project are produced in the United States—this means the manufactured product  
was manufactured in the United States; and the cost of the components of the 
manufactured product that are mined, produced, or manufactured in the United 
States is greater than 55 percent of the total cost of all components of the 
manufactured product, unless another standard for determining the minimum  
amount of domestic content of the manufactured product has been established  
under applicable law or regulation; and (3) all construction materials are 
manufactured in the United States—this means that all manufacturing processes for 
the construction material occurred in the United States. The Buy America   
preference only applies to articles, materials, and supplies that are consumed in, 
incorporated into, or affixed to an infrastructure project. As such, it does not apply to 
tools, equipment, and supplies, such as temporary scaffolding, brought to the 
construction site and removed at or before the completion of the infrastructure 
project. Nor does a Buy America preference apply to equipment and furnishings, 
such as movable chairs, desks, and portable computer equipment, that are used at 
or within the finished infrastructure project, but are not an integral part of the structure 
or permanently affixed to the infrastructure project. When necessary, subrecipients 
may apply for, and the agency may grant, a waiver from these requirements. (a) 
When the federal agency has made a determination that one of the following 
exceptions applies, the awarding official may waive the application of the domestic 
content procurement preference in any case in which the agency determines that: (1) 
applying the domestic content procurement preference would be inconsistent with the 
public interest; (2) the types of iron, steel, manufactured products, or construction 
materials are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available 
quantities or of a satisfactory quality; or (3) the inclusion of iron, steel, manufactured 
products, or construction materials produced in the United States will increase the 
cost of the overall project by more than 25 percent. A request to waive the application 
of the domestic content procurement preference must be in writing. The agency will 
provide instructions on the format, contents, and supporting materials required for 
any waiver request. Waiver requests are subject to public comment periods of no 
less than 15 days and must be reviewed by the OMB Made in America Office. There 
may be instances where an award qualifies, in whole or in part, for an existing waiver 
described. For awards by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), 
existing waivers are   available and the waiver process is described at 'Buy America' 
Preference in FEMA Financial Assistance Programs for Infrastructure | FEMA.gov. 
For awards by other DHS components, please contact the applicable DHS FAO. To 
see whether a particular DHS federal financial assistance program is considered an 
infrastructure program and thus required to include a Buy America preference, 
please either contact the applicable DHS FAO, or for FEMA awards, please see 
Programs and Definitions: Build America, Buy America Act | FEMA.gov. 

 
Article 34 SAFECOM 

Subrecipients receiving federal financial assistance awards made under programs that 
provide emergency communication equipment and its related activities must comply 
with the SAFECOM Guidance for Emergency Communication Grants, including 
provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance interoperable 
communications. 

222

Item 18.



 
Article 35 

 
Terrorist Financing 
Subrecipients must comply with E.O. 13224 and U.S. laws that prohibit transactions 
with, and the provisions of resources and support to, individuals and organizations 
associated with terrorism. Subrecipients are legally responsible to ensure 
compliance with the Order and laws. 

 
Article 36 

 
Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA) 
Trafficking in Persons. Subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the 
government-wide financial assistance award term which implements Section 106 (g) 
of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), codified as amended at 22 
U.S.C. § 7104. The award term is located at 2 C.F.R. § 175.15, the full text of which 
is incorporated here by reference. 

 
Article 37 

 
Universal Identifier and System of Award Management 
Requirements for System for Award Management and Unique Entity Identifier 
Subrecipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth in the 
government- wide financial assistance award term regarding the System for Award 
Management and Universal Identifier Requirements located at 2 C.F.R. Part 25, 
Appendix A, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference. 

 
Article 38 

 
USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 
Subrecipients must comply with requirements of Section 817 of the Uniting and 
Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and 
Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA PATRIOT Act), which amends 18 U.S.C. §§ 
175–175c. 

 
Article 39 

 
Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags 
Subrecipients must obtain permission from their DHS FAO prior to using the DHS 
seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials, 
including use of the United States Coast Guard seal, logo, crests or reproductions of 
flags or likenesses of Coast Guard officials. 

 
Article 40 

 
Whistleblower Protection Act 
Subrecipients must comply with the statutory requirements for whistleblower 
protections (if applicable) at 10 U.S.C § 2409, 41 U.S.C. § 4712, and 10 U.S.C. § 
2324, 41 U.S.C. §§ 4304 and 4310. 

223

Item 18.



 
Article 41 

 
Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) Review DHS/FEMA 
funded activities that may require an Environmental Planning and Historic 
Preservation (EHP) review are subject to the FEMA EHP review process. This 
review does not address all federal, state, and local requirements. Acceptance of 
federal funding requires the subrecipient to comply with all federal, state, and local 
laws. DHS/FEMA is required to consider the potential impacts to natural and cultural 
resources of all projects funded by DHS/FEMA grant funds, through its EHP review 
process, as mandated by the National Environmental Policy Act; National Historic 
Preservation Act of 1966, as amended; National Flood Insurance Program 
regulations; and any other applicable laws and executive orders. In order to initiate 
EHP review of your project(s), you must submit a detailed project description along 
with supporting documentation. The EHP review process must be completed before 
funds are released to carry out the proposed project; otherwise, DHS/FEMA may not 
be able to fund the project due to noncompliance with EHP laws, executive orders, 
regulations, and policies. If ground disturbing activities occur during construction, 
applicant will monitor ground disturbance, and if any potential archeological 
resources are discovered the applicant will immediately cease work in that area and 
notify the pass-through entity, if applicable, and DHS/FEMA. 

 
Article 42 

 
Applicability of DHS Standard Terms and Conditions to Tribes 
The DHS Standard Terms and Conditions are a restatement of general requirements 
imposed upon recipients and flow down to subrecipients as a matter of law, 
regulation, or executive order. If the requirement does not apply to Indian tribes or 
there is a federal law or regulation exempting its application to Indian tribes, then the 
acceptance by Tribes of, or acquiescence to, DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 
does not change or alter its inapplicability to an Indian tribe. The execution of grant 
documents is not intended to change, alter, amend, or impose additional liability or 
responsibility upon the Tribe where it does not already exist. 

 
Article 43 

 
Acceptance of Post Award Changes 
In the event FEMA determines that changes are necessary to the award document 
after an award has been made, including changes to period of performance or terms 
and conditions, subrecipients will be notified of the changes in writing. Once 
notification has been made, any subsequent request for funds will indicate 
subrecipient acceptance of the changes to the award. Please call the FEMA/GMD 
Call Center at (866) 927- 5646 or via e-mail to ASK-GMD@fema.dhs.gov if you have 
any questions. 

 
Article 44 

 
Disposition of Equipment Acquired Under the Federal Award 
For purposes of original or replacement equipment acquired under this award by a 
non-state recipient or non-state subrecipients, when that equipment is no longer 
needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or 
previously supported by a federal awarding agency, you must request instructions 
from FEMA to make proper disposition of the equipment pursuant to 2 C.F.R.  
section 200.313. State recipients and state subrecipients must follow the disposition 
requirements in accordance with state laws and procedures. 

224

Item 18.



 

 

Page 21 of 24 

 
Article 45 

 
Prior Approval for Modification of Approved Budget 
Before making any change to the FEMA approved budget for this award, you must 
request prior written approval from FEMA where required by 2 C.F.R. section 
200.308. For purposes of non-construction projects, FEMA is utilizing its discretion to 
impose an additional restriction under 2 C.F.R. section 200.308(f) regarding the 
transfer of funds among direct cost categories, programs, functions, or activities. 
Therefore, for awards with an approved budget where the federal share is greater 
than the simplified acquisition threshold (currently $250,000), you may not transfer 
funds among direct cost categories, programs, functions, or activities without prior 
written approval from FEMA where the cumulative amount of such transfers exceeds 
or is expected to exceed ten percent (10%) of the total budget FEMA last approved. 
For purposes of awards that support both construction and non- construction work, 
FEMA is utilizing its discretion under 2 C.F.R. section 200.308(h) 
(5) to require the subrecipient to obtain prior written approval from FEMA before 
making any fund or budget transfers between the two types of work. You must report 
any deviations from your FEMA approved budget in the first Federal Financial Report 
(SF-425) you submit following any budget deviation, regardless of whether the 
budget deviation requires prior written approval. 

 
Article 46 

 
Indirect Cost Rate 
2 C.F.R. section 200.211(b)(15) requires the terms of the award to include the 
indirect cost rate for the federal award. If applicable, the indirect cost rate for this 
award is stated in the budget documents or other materials approved by FEMA and 
included in the award file. 

 
 
 
  

225

Item 18.



 

 

Page 22 of 24 

Addendum 2: Subaward-Specific Terms and Conditions 
 
 

This subaward does not have additional specific terms and conditions to meet. 

226

Item 18.



Exhibit A: FEMA Award Notification 
 
 
 

 

227

Item 18.



 

 

 

Exhibit B: Approved Scope of Work and Budget 
 

 
Scope of Work 

 
 

228

Item 18.



 

 

 

 
 

229

Item 18.



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Budget 
 

Type Description Amount 

  Engineering cost estimate (College Hill)  $       32,348.32  

  Engineering cost estimate (Sunnyside Circle)  $       56,186.53  

  Engineering cost estimate (Downtown)  $     119,330.74  

  Engineering cost estimate (Bergstrom Blvd)  $       51,549.70  

      

Total Project    $     259,415.29  

      

Management Costs    $       12,970.76  

      

Total Award    $     272,386.05  
 
 

230

Item 18.



 

 

 

Exhibit C: Pre-Award Risk Assessment 
 

Conducted by HSEMD 
 

231

Item 18.



Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Recovery Division 

Subrecipient Pre‐Award Risk Assessment 
 
 

Revised 12/15/21 ldonahe 

Applicant	Information	

Applicant:         City of Cedar Falls         

Applicant UEI (12 Character alphanumeric number):      EGCPJFKF3NC9         

Applicant Authorized Representative1:       Stephanie Sheetz         

Applicant Authorized Representative Phone:       319-268-5151       

Applicant Authorized Representative Email:    stephanie.sheetz@cedarfalls.com           

HSEMD Recovery Division Assessment Completed by:     Tammy Grittmann       

Assessment Date:   Tammy Grittmann       

Total Risk Assessment Score:   12   of 15.  Risk Level*:  LOW     
 
NOTE TO SUBRECIPIENT: If a written procurement policy is not in place at the time the pre‐award risk assessment is conducted, 
the subrecipient will be placed at a “High” risk level. If a written procurement policy is in place but does not meet the minimum 
federal standards, the subrecipient should expect a “Medium” risk level or higher. 

Financial	Stability	points  4   (maximum of 4)	
Yes/No 

☐  ☒  Turnover in key staff in the past 12 months (i.e. city clerk, financial manager, superintendent, etc.)       

    (Y=‐1 point, N=1 point) 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Yes/No 

☐  ☒  Special investigations performed by the Iowa State Auditor in the past five (5) years.                                 

    (Y=‐1 point, N=1 point) 

Notes for ISHSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

                                                            
1 2 CFR §200.415 requires that fiscal reports (including subrecipient agreements, payment requests, etc.) be “signed by an official who is authorized 
to legally bind the non‐Federal entity”. 

232

Item 18.



HSEMD Recovery Division: Risk Assessment 
Page 2 of 7 

 

Revised 12/15/21 ldonahe 

 

Yes/No 

☒  ☐  For each Federal subaward, the applicant’s accounting system has the ability to track revenues and 

expenditures separately from other expenditure and revenue sources. (Including applicant matching 

funds) (I.e. separate accounts/work orders for each approved project)2 Attach chart of accounts/work 

order listing with particular accounts/work orders noted. (Y=1 point, N=‐1 point) 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title‐2/subtitle‐A/chapter‐II/part‐200#200.302 

 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Yes/No 

☒  ☐  For each Federal subaward, the applicant’s accounting system has the ability to tie revenues and   

    expenditures to approved subaward budget(s) and scope(s) of work. (Y=1 point, N=‐1 point) 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Yes/No 

☒  ☐  Establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal subaward to provide assurance the 

entity is managing the award in compliance with Federal statutes, regulations and terms and 

conditions.3 Attach associated procedures. (Y=1 point, N=‐1 point)  

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title‐2/subtitle‐A/chapter‐II/part‐200/subpart‐D/section‐200.303 

 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

	
   

                                                            
2 2 CFR §200.302(3) requires that records must adequately identify the source and application  of federally‐funded activities. 
3 Required per 2 CFR §200.303(a); Internal Controls  

233

Item 18.



HSEMD Recovery Division: Risk Assessment 
Page 3 of 7 

 

Revised 12/15/21 ldonahe 

 

Quality	Management	Systems	points  4  (maximum of 5) 

 

Procurement Policies. Attach procurement policies. 

Yes/No 

☒  ☐  Includes documentation to ensure that contractor/vendor is not suspended or disbarred from federally‐ 

    funded projects.4 (Y=1 point, N=‐1 point)  

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title‐2/subtitle‐A/chapter‐II/part‐200/subpart‐C/section‐200.214 

 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Yes/No 

☒  ☐  Includes procedure to document affirmative solicitation of small and minority businesses, and women’s 

  business enterprises.5 (Y=1 point, N=‐1 point)  
    https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title‐2/subtitle‐A/chapter‐II/part‐200/subpart‐D/subject‐group‐ECFR45ddd4419ad436d/section‐200.321 

 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Yes/No 

☒  ☐  Includes Contract Provisions for Non‐Federal Entity Contracts under Federal Awards6  

(Y=1 point, N=‐1 point)  
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title‐2/subtitle‐A/chapter‐II/part‐200/appendix‐Appendix%20II%20to%20Part%20200 

 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

   

                                                            
4 Must include documentation of check of contractor/vendor on Excluded Parties List System (EPLS) (https://www.sam.gov) (2 CFR 200.214) (2 CFR 
part 180)  
5 2 CFR § 200.321; Listing available at https://www.sam.gov 
6 2 CFR §200 Appendix II 

234

Item 18.



HSEMD Recovery Division: Risk Assessment 
Page 4 of 7 

 

Revised 12/15/21 ldonahe 

 

Yes/No 

☒  ☐  Written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest.7 Attach associated standards.  

(Y=1 point, N= ‐1 point)  
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title‐2/subtitle‐A/chapter‐II/part‐200/subpart‐D/subject‐group‐ECFR45ddd4419ad436d/section‐200.318 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Yes/No 

☒  ☐  Procedures for accounting for the entirety of employee time by individual Federal subaward and other  

    non‐Federally funded work (Personnel Activity Reports or similar). Attach employee time keeping  

    procedures and examples of associated documentation. (Y=1 point, N=‐1 point) 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Yes/No 

☐  ☒  Follow the prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment  

    outlined in 2 CFR 200.216. (Y=1 point, N=‐1 point)  

    https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title‐2/subtitle‐A/chapter‐II/part‐200/subpart‐C/section‐200.216 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

	 	

                                                            
7  2 CFR 200.318 (c)(1)(2) 

235

Item 18.



HSEMD Recovery Division: Risk Assessment 
Page 5 of 7 

 

Revised 12/15/21 ldonahe 

 

Performance	History points   4   (maximum of 4) 

Yes/No 

☐  ☒  New applicant (Y=‐1 point, N=1 point) 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Yes/No 

☐  ☒  Applicant has an outstanding balance (pending resolution or outstanding refund) with HSEMD  

(Y=‐1 point, N=1 point) 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Yes/No 

☒  ☐  Applicant is not suspended or disbarred from federal awards.4 (Y=1 point, N=‐1 point) 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Prior	HSEMD	Subawards	(list only previous 4 programs)   

(1 point for each grant in which all projects are completed and closed on or under budget) 

Assistance Listing # 
(Sam.gov) 

# of Projects  Total $ Obligated  Total $ Expended 
# of Projects 

Completed and 
Closed 

# of Quarterly 
Reports 

Completed 

# of issues 
identified 

97.039  1  1,605,348.28  1,605,348.28  1  11  0 

97.036  5  692,171.04  691753.59  5  5  0 

97.036  2  57,098.08  57,098.08  2  2  0 

97.036  7  543,381.29  543,381.29  7  0  0 

	
	 	

236

Item 18.



HSEMD Recovery Division: Risk Assessment 
Page 6 of 7 

 

Revised 12/15/21 ldonahe 

 

Prior	Subaward	Monitoring	Actions	by	HSEMD	(list only 5 most recent)  

(‐1 point for each identified issue) 
Desk Review or Site Visit 

(Select One) 
Date 

Assistance Listing # 
(Sam.gov)  

# of Projects 
Monitored 

# of Issues Identified 

NONE         

         

         

         

         

Prior	Subaward	Audit	Findings 	
Review two (2) most recent audits of Federal Awards, and document findings on Federal awards.8 
(‐1 point for each audit finding on a Federal award) 

Fiscal Year Audited 
Assistance Listing # 

(Sam.gov) 

Auditor Opinion 
(Qualified, Unqualified, 
Disclaimer, or Adverse) 

(Select One) 

Finding Type(s) 
(Internal Control, 

Material Weakness, 
Significant Deficiency) 

# of Findings  # of Findings Resolved 

2021  SEVERAL   INDEPENDENT   NONE  0  0 

2020  SEVERAL   INDEPENDENT  NONE  0  0 

           

           

           

 
  	

                                                            
8 Audit information is available at: https://facdissem.census.gov/  or https://www.auditor.iowa.gov/reports/audit‐reports/  

237

Item 18.



HSEMD Recovery Division: Risk Assessment 
Page 7 of 7 

 

Revised 12/15/21 ldonahe 

 

Statutory	and	Regulatory	Requirement	Implementation points  0  (maximum of 2) 

 

Yes/No 

☐  ☒  Procedures for reporting all violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity  

    violations possibly affecting Federal awards.9 Attach associated policies (Y=1 point, N=‐1 point)    

    https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title‐2/subtitle‐A/chapter‐II/part‐200/subpart‐B/section‐200.113 

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

 
NONE 

 

Yes/No 

☒  ☐  Policies and procedures to safeguard personally identifiable information (i.e. Social Security numbers,  

    dates of birth, medical information, etc.)10 Attach associated policies (Y=1 point, N=‐1 point)  

Notes for HSEMD staff: 

NONE 

 

 

 

   

*Risk	Level:	
(Note: Attachments must be included in order for the points to be awarded) 

Points  Level  Actions 

<0‐5  High  Site Monitoring Visit or Desk Review, regular site visit and administrative reviews by HSEMD staff. 

6‐10  Medium 
Desk Review upon closeout of projects as needed; continued quarterly progress  report monitoring and 
project closeout monitoring. 

11‐15  Low  Continued quarterly progress report monitoring and project closeout monitoring. 

 

                                                            
9 2 CFR §200.113 requires that all non‐Federal entities and applicants for a Federal award must disclose in a timely manner and in writing to the 
Federal awarding agency or pass‐through entity any violations that may affect the Federal award. 
10 2 CFR §200.303(e) 

238

Item 18.



Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA,
USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

0 4,500 9,0002,250
Feet

±

Stormwater Master Planning Areas

1. Downtown

3. Bergstrom Boulevard

Cedar Falls City Limits
Stormwater Study Areas
UNI

2. College Hill 4. Sunnyside Circle

239

Item 18.



Ma
in 

St

W 1st St

W 8th St

W 4th St

Cla
y S

t

W 12th St

W 7th St

W 3rd St Wa
lnu

t S
t

W 2nd St

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

E 1st St

Hwy 58

W 9th St
Ol

ive
 S

t

W 11th St

Co
lle

ge
 S

t

Iow
a S

t

Sta
te 

St

W 16th St

W 10th St

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

Lincoln St

W 13th St

W 14th St

W 15th St

Div
isi

on
 S

t

Fra
nk

lin
 St

W 17th St

Grant St

Cla
rk 

Dr

Grand Blvd

Gr
ov

e S
t

Center St

Ell
en

 S
t

E 9th St

N 
Ell

en
 S

t

E 11th St

Higby Dr
De

lta
 D

r

Hwy 58 SB Off Ramp

N 
Fr

an
cis

 St

S Park Rd

W 6th St

N 
Di

vis
ion

 S
t

Pe
arl

 St

W 5th St

Beech Ave

E 7th St

Ea
st 

St

E 10th St

Bluff St
Ca

the
rin

e S
t

Hig
hla

nd
 D

r

Utility
 Pkwy

E M
ain

 St

Fra
nc

is 
St

E 4th St

E 14th St

Newman Ave

Cr
es

ce
nt 

Dr

Summit Dr

E 12th St

Br
en

ton
 D

r

N Highland Dr

E 15th St

Co
lum

bia
 D

r

N 
Co

lle
ge

 S
t A S

t

Ro
os

ev
elt

 S
t

B S
t

E 13th St

Ca
rria

ge
 Ln

Mc
Kin

ley
 S

t

Laurel Cir

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t
Parkway Ave

E 6th St

Shelden Ave

E 5th St

E 3rd St

Ch
ate

au
 C

t

E 2nd St

Linda Dr

E 16th St

Ba
rrin

gto
n D

r

Gr
ee

ley
 St

Horty St
Ba

rba
ra 

Dr

E 14th Ct

Ell
en

 S
t

W 5th St Fra
nk

lin
 St

Blu
ff S

t

Ell
en

 S
t

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Ol
ive

 S
t

Hwy 58

Sta
te 

St

W 6th St
Pe

arl
 St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d Iow
a S

t

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

±

Stormwater Master Planning Area 1: Downtown

Frequent Flooding at 
Walnut/2nd St Intersection

Undersized Storm Sewer
Along Main Street

Large Gaps in Storm
Sewer Network

240

Item 18.



W 18th St

Ma
in 

St

Hw
y 5

8

Ol
ive

 S
t

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Co
lle

ge
 S

t

Cla
y S

t

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Fra
nk

lin
 St

W 16th St

W 22nd St

W 14th St

W 15th St

Sta
te 

St

W 19th St Iow
a S

t
University Ave

W 17th St

W 21st St

W 23rd St

Me
rne

r A
ve

W 27th St

W 26th St

Cla
rk 

Dr

Pa
nth

er 
Pk

wy

Ca
mp

us
 St

W Seerley Blvd

W 28th St

E 18th St

Wi
sc

on
sin

 S
t

Gr
ov

e S
t

Hw
y 5

8 N
B O

ff R
am

p

E Seerley Blvd

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

Su
mm

it D
r

De
lta

 D
r E 14th St

W 20th St

Hwy 58 NB On Ramp
E 15th St

Columbia Dr

Br
en

ton
 D

r

E 20th St

Waterloo Rd

Illin
ois

 S
t

S M
ain

 St

Blu
ff S

tLaurel Cir

Redeker Dr

Ne
bra

sk
a S

t

Ca
the

rin
e S

t
Mi

ss
ou

ri S
t

E 21st St

Shelden Ave
E 16th St

Floral Ct

W 25th St

Mi
nn

es
ota

 S
t

Library Dr

Ca
mp

us
 St Hw

y 5
8

W 20th St
Ca

mp
us

 St

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

W 22nd St

W 23rd St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Iow
a S

t

W 20th St

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

0 750 1,500375
Feet

±

Stormwater Master Planning Area 2: College Hill

Storm Sewer
Floodplain

100-yr
500-yr
FLOODWAY

Gap in Storm 
Sewer Network

Gap in Storm 
Sewer Network

241

Item 18.



Orchard Dr

Lilac Ln

S M
ain

 St

Ro
wn

d S
t

E Greenhill Rd

Briarwood Dr

Ca
rlto

n D
r

Hwy 58

Ma
ryh

ill 
Dr

Ea
stp

ark
 R

d

Sp
ruc

e H
ills

 D
r

Kn
oll

 R
idg

e D
r

S L
aw

n R
d

Elmridge Dr

Mc
Cla

in 
Dr

Calumett Dr

Green Creek Rd

Da
lla

s D
r

Prairie Pkwy

Maplewood Dr

Primrose Dr

Tu
cs

on
 D

r

Os
ter

 Pk
wy

Bo
uld

er 
Dr

Bluebell Rd

Heritage Rd

Balboa Ave

Stu
rgis

 Dr

Greenhill Dr

Valley High Dr

Oregon Rd

Da
ina

 D
r

Bergstrom Blvd

Maucker Rd

De
en

a D
r

Me
len

dy
 Ln

Cordoba Ave

Stanwood Dr

Bonita Blvd
Co

nva
ir L

n
Windsor Dr

Ja
me

s D
r

Wild Rye Way

Cr
es

tvi
ew

 D
r

Ste
wa

rt L
n

Faithway Dr

W Greenhill Rd

Or
ch

ard
 H

ill 
Dr

Pr
air

ie 
Do

ck
 R

d

Bluegrass Cir

Bluegrass Ct

Colorado Rd

Utah Rd

Pr
ide

mo
re 

Dr

La
tha

m 
PlDevl

in C
ir

Co
ron

ad
o C

t

Es
tat

e D
r

Prairie Ct

Ca
rlto

n D
r

Maplewood Dr

Hwy 58

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

0 750 1,500375
Feet

±

Stormwater Master Planning Area 3: Bergstrom Avenue

Houses along Bergstrom Blvd. are now in 
Floodplain after recent FEMA update

Confluence of Tributary 
and Dry Run Creek 

South Branch

Approximate Watershed Boundary of a 
Tributary to Dry Run Creek South 
Branch that floods Bergstrom Ave.

242

Item 18.



Rainbow Dr

Lilac Ln

Ro
wn

d S
t

University Ave

Pleasant Dr

Ne
ola

 S
t

Maplewood Dr

Hawthorne Dr

Loma St

Madison St

Waterloo Rd

Vic
tor

y D
r

Parker St

Melrose Dr
Sunnyside Dr

As
hla

nd
 Av

e

Va
lle

y P
ark

 D
r

Pin Oak Dr

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 D

r

Vir
gil

 S
t

Wi
llo

w 
Ln

Ala
me

da
 S

t

Terrace Dr

Mc
Cla

in 
Dr

Sunset Blvd

Ga
rde

n A
ve

Grand Blvd

Ro
ya

l D
r

E Seerley Blvd

Be
lle

 Av
e

Ca
rlto

n D
r

Ru
ss

ell
 D

r

Hil
lcr

es
t D

r

Acorn Ln

Hic
ko

ry 
Ln

Ho
me

wa
y D

r

Ed
wa

rds
 Av

e Timber Dr

Holiday Rd

Greenwood Ave

Ca
lifo

rni
a S

t

Pri
de

mo
re 

Dr

Cadillac Dr

Pa
rk 

Dr

Oa
kla

nd
 Av

e

Su
nn

y L
n

Sh
ad

y L
n

W 
Rid

ge
wo

od
 DrE 18th St

S Oak Ave

Bicentennial Dr

Bir
ch

 S
t

Oak Ave

Edge
wood

 Dr

Gi
bs

on
 S

t

Hig
hv

iew
 C

t

Tilton Dr

La
uri

e A
veSunnyside Cir

Elm
wo

od
 Av

e

Bla
ck

ha
wk

 Vl
g

Wh
ite

 W
ay

Ga
llo

wa
y A

ve

Terrace Dr

Madison St

McClain
 Dr

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

0 750 1,500375
Feet

±

Stormwater Master Planning Area 4: Sunnyside Circle

Approximate Watershed Boundary for 
Sunnyside Circle Flooding Area

Storm Sewer
Floodplain

100-yr
500-yr
FLOODWAY

243

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE, Principal Engineer 

 DATE: 11/22/2022 

 SUBJECT: Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities - Grant Administration  
  Project Number ST-000-3306 – INRCOG Contract 
 
 
     In December 2021, the City submitted a request to FEMA under the Building 
Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant program.  The program seeks to 
fund research-supported, proactive investment in community resilience.  They offer two 
types of grants: scoping (studies and planning) and mitigation projects (infrastructure).  
The City added drainage studies to the Capital Improvements Plan in 2018.  Such 
studies fit with the BRIC “scoping” funding. 
 
     The City has been awarded a grant for 85% of the total project.  $220,502.98 in 
federal and state funds, and 15% of local funds (City: $38,912.31) comprise the total 
project cost of $259,415.29.  The next steps are to select a consultant to complete this 
sub watershed stormwater master plan.  The master plan will use current technology to 
model stormwater impacts to identify and prioritize drainage problems.  These 
improvements will be broken down into a chronological (downstream to upstream) list of 
projects that can be incorporated into street reconstruction projects or be stand-alone 
projects themselves, as conditions warrant. Each project will have a construction cost 
estimate. This stormwater master plan will then be used to identify storm water projects 
for the Capital Improvements Plan each year. 
 
The anticipated study areas are shown in the attached exhibit.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving this 
contract for program administration services with INRCOG.  Their support helps us 
meet federal requirements with the grant. The contract totals $12,970.76. Attached is 
the proposed agreement with all required attachments. 
 
 
Xc:   Stephanie Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

244

Item 19.



Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA,
USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

0 4,500 9,0002,250
Feet

±

Stormwater Master Planning Areas

1. Downtown

3. Bergstrom Boulevard

Cedar Falls City Limits
Stormwater Study Areas
UNI

2. College Hill 4. Sunnyside Circle

245

Item 19.



Ma
in 

St

W 1st St

W 8th St

W 4th St

Cla
y S

t

W 12th St

W 7th St

W 3rd St Wa
lnu

t S
t

W 2nd St

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

E 1st St

Hwy 58

W 9th St
Ol

ive
 S

t

W 11th St

Co
lle

ge
 S

t

Iow
a S

t

Sta
te 

St

W 16th St

W 10th St

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

Lincoln St

W 13th St

W 14th St

W 15th St

Div
isi

on
 S

t

Fra
nk

lin
 St

W 17th St

Grant St

Cla
rk 

Dr

Grand Blvd

Gr
ov

e S
t

Center St

Ell
en

 S
t

E 9th St

N 
Ell

en
 S

t

E 11th St

Higby Dr
De

lta
 D

r

Hwy 58 SB Off Ramp

N 
Fr

an
cis

 St

S Park Rd

W 6th St

N 
Di

vis
ion

 S
t

Pe
arl

 St

W 5th St

Beech Ave

E 7th St

Ea
st 

St

E 10th St

Bluff St
Ca

the
rin

e S
t

Hig
hla

nd
 D

r

Utility
 Pkwy

E M
ain

 St

Fra
nc

is 
St

E 4th St

E 14th St

Newman Ave

Cr
es

ce
nt 

Dr

Summit Dr

E 12th St

Br
en

ton
 D

r

N Highland Dr

E 15th St

Co
lum

bia
 D

r

N 
Co

lle
ge

 S
t A S

t

Ro
os

ev
elt

 S
t

B S
t

E 13th St

Ca
rria

ge
 Ln

Mc
Kin

ley
 S

t

Laurel Cir

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t
Parkway Ave

E 6th St

Shelden Ave

E 5th St

E 3rd St

Ch
ate

au
 C

t

E 2nd St

Linda Dr

E 16th St

Ba
rrin

gto
n D

r

Gr
ee

ley
 St

Horty St
Ba

rba
ra 

Dr

E 14th Ct

Ell
en

 S
t

W 5th St Fra
nk

lin
 St

Blu
ff S

t

Ell
en

 S
t

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Ol
ive

 S
t

Hwy 58

Sta
te 

St

W 6th St
Pe

arl
 St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d Iow
a S

t

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

±

Stormwater Master Planning Area 1: Downtown

Frequent Flooding at 
Walnut/2nd St Intersection

Undersized Storm Sewer
Along Main Street

Large Gaps in Storm
Sewer Network

246

Item 19.



W 18th St

Ma
in 

St

Hw
y 5

8

Ol
ive

 S
t

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Co
lle

ge
 S

t

Cla
y S

t

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Fra
nk

lin
 St

W 16th St

W 22nd St

W 14th St

W 15th St

Sta
te 

St

W 19th St Iow
a S

t
University Ave

W 17th St

W 21st St

W 23rd St

Me
rne

r A
ve

W 27th St

W 26th St

Cla
rk 

Dr

Pa
nth

er 
Pk

wy

Ca
mp

us
 St

W Seerley Blvd

W 28th St

E 18th St

Wi
sc

on
sin

 S
t

Gr
ov

e S
t

Hw
y 5

8 N
B O

ff R
am

p

E Seerley Blvd

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

Su
mm

it D
r

De
lta

 D
r E 14th St

W 20th St

Hwy 58 NB On Ramp
E 15th St

Columbia Dr

Br
en

ton
 D

r

E 20th St

Waterloo Rd

Illin
ois

 S
t

S M
ain

 St

Blu
ff S

tLaurel Cir

Redeker Dr

Ne
bra

sk
a S

t

Ca
the

rin
e S

t
Mi

ss
ou

ri S
t

E 21st St

Shelden Ave
E 16th St

Floral Ct

W 25th St

Mi
nn

es
ota

 S
t

Library Dr

Ca
mp

us
 St Hw

y 5
8

W 20th St
Ca

mp
us

 St

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

W 22nd St

W 23rd St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Iow
a S

t

W 20th St

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

0 750 1,500375
Feet

±

Stormwater Master Planning Area 2: College Hill

Storm Sewer
Floodplain

100-yr
500-yr
FLOODWAY

Gap in Storm 
Sewer Network

Gap in Storm 
Sewer Network

247

Item 19.



Orchard Dr

Lilac Ln

S M
ain

 St

Ro
wn

d S
t

E Greenhill Rd

Briarwood Dr

Ca
rlto

n D
r

Hwy 58

Ma
ryh

ill 
Dr

Ea
stp

ark
 R

d

Sp
ruc

e H
ills

 D
r

Kn
oll

 R
idg

e D
r

S L
aw

n R
d

Elmridge Dr

Mc
Cla

in 
Dr

Calumett Dr

Green Creek Rd

Da
lla

s D
r

Prairie Pkwy

Maplewood Dr

Primrose Dr

Tu
cs

on
 D

r

Os
ter

 Pk
wy

Bo
uld

er 
Dr

Bluebell Rd

Heritage Rd

Balboa Ave

Stu
rgis

 Dr

Greenhill Dr

Valley High Dr

Oregon Rd

Da
ina

 D
r

Bergstrom Blvd

Maucker Rd

De
en

a D
r

Me
len

dy
 Ln

Cordoba Ave

Stanwood Dr

Bonita Blvd
Co

nva
ir L

n
Windsor Dr

Ja
me

s D
r

Wild Rye Way

Cr
es

tvi
ew

 D
r

Ste
wa

rt L
n

Faithway Dr

W Greenhill Rd

Or
ch

ard
 H

ill 
Dr

Pr
air

ie 
Do

ck
 R

d

Bluegrass Cir

Bluegrass Ct

Colorado Rd

Utah Rd

Pr
ide

mo
re 

Dr

La
tha

m 
PlDevl

in C
ir

Co
ron

ad
o C

t

Es
tat

e D
r

Prairie Ct

Ca
rlto

n D
r

Maplewood Dr

Hwy 58

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

0 750 1,500375
Feet

±

Stormwater Master Planning Area 3: Bergstrom Avenue

Houses along Bergstrom Blvd. are now in 
Floodplain after recent FEMA update

Confluence of Tributary 
and Dry Run Creek 

South Branch

Approximate Watershed Boundary of a 
Tributary to Dry Run Creek South 
Branch that floods Bergstrom Ave.

248

Item 19.



Rainbow Dr

Lilac Ln

Ro
wn

d S
t

University Ave

Pleasant Dr

Ne
ola

 S
t

Maplewood Dr

Hawthorne Dr

Loma St

Madison St

Waterloo Rd

Vic
tor

y D
r

Parker St

Melrose Dr
Sunnyside Dr

As
hla

nd
 Av

e

Va
lle

y P
ark

 D
r

Pin Oak Dr

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 D

r

Vir
gil

 S
t

Wi
llo

w 
Ln

Ala
me

da
 S

t

Terrace Dr

Mc
Cla

in 
Dr

Sunset Blvd

Ga
rde

n A
ve

Grand Blvd

Ro
ya

l D
r

E Seerley Blvd

Be
lle

 Av
e

Ca
rlto

n D
r

Ru
ss

ell
 D

r

Hil
lcr

es
t D

r

Acorn Ln

Hic
ko

ry 
Ln

Ho
me

wa
y D

r

Ed
wa

rds
 Av

e Timber Dr

Holiday Rd

Greenwood Ave

Ca
lifo

rni
a S

t

Pri
de

mo
re 

Dr

Cadillac Dr

Pa
rk 

Dr

Oa
kla

nd
 Av

e

Su
nn

y L
n

Sh
ad

y L
n

W 
Rid

ge
wo

od
 DrE 18th St

S Oak Ave

Bicentennial Dr

Bir
ch

 S
t

Oak Ave

Edge
wood

 Dr

Gi
bs

on
 S

t

Hig
hv

iew
 C

t

Tilton Dr

La
uri

e A
veSunnyside Cir

Elm
wo

od
 Av

e

Bla
ck

ha
wk

 Vl
g

Wh
ite

 W
ay

Ga
llo

wa
y A

ve

Terrace Dr

Madison St

McClain
 Dr

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

0 750 1,500375
Feet

±

Stormwater Master Planning Area 4: Sunnyside Circle

Approximate Watershed Boundary for 
Sunnyside Circle Flooding Area

Storm Sewer
Floodplain

100-yr
500-yr
FLOODWAY

249

Item 19.



250

Item 19.



251

Item 19.



252

Item 19.



253

Item 19.



254

Item 19.



255

Item 19.



256

Item 19.



257

Item 19.



    

Exhibit A 
 

Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEMD) 
Fiscal Year 2021 Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) Project 

Scoping Project 
City of Cedar Falls 

Project Number: ST-000-3306  

 

   
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
HSEMD CITY OF CEDAR FALL’S BRIC 2021 PROJECT SCOPING 

 
Overview 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) is proposing to 
complete grant administrative services to meet the requirements related to the HSEMD 
Grant Award for the BRIC Project Scoping Project. 
 
 
Qualifications 

 

Experience 
 
As a public agency created under Chapter 28E of the Iowa Code, INRCOG serves a six-
county area. The City of Cedar Falls is a member in good standing our staff has built a 
solid relationship with the City’s staff. We are located in close proximity to Cedar Falls 
City Hall, and we are very familiar with the community, including its infrastructure, 
services and its elected and appointed officials.   
 
Our agency is proud of the working relationships we have built with numerous federal 
and state departments, as we have administered numerous programs on behalf of our 
local government members. Included amongst those agencies are the US Department of 
Commerce, Economic Development Administration; US Department of Agriculture; 
Federal Highway and Federal Transit Administrations; Federal Emergency Management 
Agency; Iowa Economic Development Authority; Iowa Department of Transportation; 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources; Iowa Homeland Security and Emergency 
Management; and the Iowa Finance Authority. INRCOG also provides staff and 
oversight for several regional bodies including the Black Hawk County Metropolitan 
Transportation Organization; Regional Transportation Authority; Regional Transit 
Commission; Regional Economic Development Commission; and Regional Housing 
Council. Further, our agency has acted as the procurement and fiscal agent for multi-
county emergency management regions. Through our work, our agency has developed 
relationships with several non-profit organizations, including administration of housing-
related grants which involves working directly with several entities such as The Salvation 
Army, Iowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity, Cedar Valley Friends of the Family, 
Operation Threshold, Exceptional Persons, Inc., Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging; 
Northeast Iowa Community Action Corporation; Community Based Services; and House 
of Hope. 

258

Item 19.



 

  BRIC Grant Administration Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. ST-000-3306 
 

 
INRCOG staff has written and administered HSEMD grants for our member local 
governments, and we perform all administrative tasks relative to construction, financial 
reimbursement, and professional service functions associated with the project award.  
We have completed all HSEMD basic and updated trainings associated with 
administering their funds, specifically those associated with environmental assessments, 
Davis-Bacon (prevailing wage) compliance, federal reporting, fraud and financial abuse 
prevention training, and contractor procurement. INRCOG is accustomed to developing 
the necessary contracts, developing file and program management techniques, assisting 
with city audits, successfully preparing for and completing HSEMD monitoring reviews, 
conflict mediation, financial management, and closeout processes associated with 
HSEMD projects. 
 

 

Primary INRCOG Staff Members 
The primary contacts for this proposal and program are 

o Brian Schoon, Executive Director (bschoon@inrcog.org);  
o Isaiah Corbin, Community Planner II (icorbin@inrcog.org );  

 
Brian Schoon has been employed by INRCOG since September 1991 and is currently 
serving as the Executive Director. He is a member of the American Institute of Certified 
Planners. His responsibilities include supervision, project administration, budget 
oversight, and planning functions associated with INRCOG’s housing, planning, and 
economic development efforts, including numerous projects funded by the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority (IEDA) and Economic Development Administration 
(EDA).  Schoon also oversees the Iowa Northland Regional Housing Council and its 
local Housing Trust Funds and staffs the Waterloo Housing Trust Fund and its financial 
programs. He is currently providing planning and grant administration services to the 
City of Cedar Falls, including updating and drafting the Annual Action Plan, Annual 
CAPER Summary Report, and summary reporting to HUD, as they relate to its current 
HUD CDBG Entitlement Program. Schoon has a Bachelors’ degree in Landscape 
Design from South Dakota State University and a Masters’ degree in Community and 
Regional Planning from Iowa State University. 
 
Isaiah Corbin became employed with INRCOG in January of 2021 as Community 
Planner II. Prior to his role, he managed the volunteer program at Mercy Medical Center 
and managed a grant funded program for first-generation, low-income students at Mount 
Mercy University. His responsibilities at INRCOG include project administration and a 
variety of planning functions associated with INRCOG’s economic and community 
development projects, including CDBG and HMGP programs. Corbin has a Bachelors’ 
degree in Political Science from Wartburg College and a Masters’ degree in Public 
Policy from the University of Northern Iowa. 
 

 

 

 

259

Item 19.

mailto:bschoon@inrcog.org
mailto:icorbin@inrcog.org


 

  BRIC Grant Administration Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. ST-000-3306 
 

 

Administrative Task Description 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments shall assist in compliance with the 
Iowa Department Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEMD) and other 
federal requirements; maintenance of required records and documents; and other required 
actions not specifically listed, but requested by the local government, including but not 
limited to the following activities: 
 
GENERAL ACTIVITIES 
 
A. Program Set-Up 
 
 1. Meet with the Cedar Falls staff to review and assure understanding of terms 

and conditions of grant agreement with HSEMD 
 
 2. Set up a model for program schedule, assuring compliance with time 

limitations of grant contract. 
 
 3. Meet with Cedar Falls City staff to explain and coordinate scheduling of grant 

activities in accordance with HMESD contract. 
 
PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION 
 
A. Capital Improvement Activities 
 
  1. Prepare Program Schedule, as may be required by HMESD. 
  2. Assist City in acquiring HMESD required contract documents. 
  3. Review bid documents for HMESD compliance. 
  4. Review contracts for HMESD compliance. 
  5. Submit documents to HMESD for project and contractor clearance. 
  6. Conduct on-site interviews and inspections. 
  7. Monitor subcontractor compliance with HMSED regulations. 
  8. Assist contractors in execution of HMESD required documents and 

assurances. 
  9. Promote and document efforts regarding minority participation. 
 10. Assist in monitoring and clearing change orders, addendum, etc. 
 11. Assist in close-out and audit. 
 12. Provide financial management, including tracking and preparation of 

reimbursement requests 
 13. Provide other technical assistance, as may be required by this project. 
 
B. Record Keeping 
 
 1.  Assist in setting up bookkeeping system for grant funds. 
 2. Assist in setting up filing system for program information maintenance. 
 3.  Regularly monitor records. 
 4.  Assist in preparing reimbursement request, authorizing and disbursements. 
 5.  Assist in meeting with HSEMD officials during site visits. 

260

Item 19.



 

  BRIC Grant Administration Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. ST-000-3306 
 

  6.  Assist in preparing monthly, quarterly, and annual reports. 
             7.  Ensure that contractor/architect invoices have separated eligible and non-

eligible expenses on sub-grantees behalf. 
             8.  Work to ensure completed project meets the FEMA and HSEMD 

guidelines. 
  9.  Assist in final closeout reports. 
 
The above outline is intended to be specific, but some areas may have more detailed 
requirements implied, but not listed. 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments will assist the Cedar Falls City 
Council with these requirements unless special requests are made to the Executive Director 
or governing body of the grantee. 
 
The Cedar Falls City Council may request assistance from the Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments that is not specifically designated. 
 

 

Budget 

 
The INRCOG budget for performing the administrative tasks, identified herein, is 
consistent with the Memorandum of Understanding approved by the City of Cedar Falls 
and shall not exceed $12,970.76. 

 

 

Time of Performance 
Work under this proposal would begin upon execution of an agreement and completion 
would be no later than March 12th, 2024.  INRCOG may propose an extension to the 
negotiated agreement, in the event it is unable to complete the services defined above.  
Accordingly, the completion date may be extended for a period of up to six (6) months 
upon written request of INRCOG documenting a good faith effort to complete 
performance in a timely manner. 

 
 

261

Item 19.



EXHIBIT “B” 

 

 

    

Exhibit B 

 
 

Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEMD) 
Fiscal Year 2021 Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) Project Scoping 

Project 
City of Cedar Falls 

Project Number: ST-000-3306  

 

   
 

10-06-2022 
 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
FOR GOODS & SERVICES 

FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 

 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who perform 
work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this document shall be 
defined as any person or entity that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls 
under contract.   
 
 

1. All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer authorized 
by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be issued by 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   

 
2. The Contractor shall obtain and maintain through the term of the Agreement, 

insurance with the terms set forth in this Exhibit and with limits of coverage equal 
to or in excess of those set forth on Pages 3-4 of this Exhibit.  By requiring the 
insurance as set forth in this Exhibit the City does not represent that coverage or 
limits will necessarily be adequate to protect Contractor’s interests and such 
coverage and limits shall not be deemed a limitation on Contractor’s liability 
under the Agreement or under the indemnity provisions of this Exhibit.  The City 
shall have the right at any time to require liability insurance with greater coverage 
than that otherwise specified herein.   

 
3. Coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. All deviations 

or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general liability form CG 001 
shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the review and approval of the 
City. 

 
 

262

Item 19.



2021 BRIC Project Scoping 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. ST-000-3306  

 

4. Contractor shall maintain ongoing Commercial General Liability coverage for at 
least 2 years following substantial completion of the work, under the Agreement, 
to cover liability arising from the products-completed operations hazard and 
liability assumed under an insured contract. 

 
5. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not contain 

the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially similar 
clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 

6. Certificate of Insurance: Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of 
Insurance, with accompanying endorsements, to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa for 
the coverage required herein. See Pages 6-12 of this Exhibit.  

 
A. Upon request by the City, Contractor shall provide Certificates of 

Insurance for all subcontractors and sub-sub-contractors who perform 
work or services pursuant to the provisions of the Agreement. 

 
B. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 

Cancellation & Material Changes Endorsement.   
 

7. Termination: Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver 
of these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure of the Contractor to 
obtain or maintain the required insurance shall be considered a material breach 
of the Agreement, and at City’s option, shall allow City to terminate the 
Agreement for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s expense. 

 
 

  

263

Item 19.



2021 BRIC Project Scoping 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. ST-000-3306  

 

8. Insurance Limits 
 

A. Commercial General Liability 
 
The City shall be named as Additional Insured on a primary and non-
contributory basis.  The policy will include waiver of subrogation endorsement 
in favor of the City of Cedar Falls. 
 

Each Occurrence $1,000,000  

Fire Damage (any one occurrence) $100,000  

Medical Payments $5,000  

Personal & Advertising Injury $1,000,000  

General Aggregate $2,000,000  

Products-Completed Operations Aggregate $2,000,000  

 

Required Endorsements - sample endorsements Pages 7-11 of this Exhibit 

Blanket or Scheduled Additional Insured  
Owners, Lessees or Contractors - Scheduled Person or 
Organization 

CG 20 10 12 19         
or Equivalent 

Additional Insured - Owners, Lessees or Contractors - 
Completed Operations 

CG 20 37 12 19           
or Equivalent 

Governmental Immunity                                     
(Nonwaiver of Government Immunity -                    
Code of Iowa §670.4) 

Equivalent to sample 
on Page 7 of this 
Exhibit. 

Designated Construction Project(S) General Aggregate 
Limit (if applicable) 

CG 25 03 05 09         
or Equivalent 

 
 
B. Automobile Liability 
 
Coverage is required for non-owned and hired vehicles, if the Contractor does 
not own any vehicles.  The City shall be named as Additional Insured on a 
primary and non-contributory basis.  The policy will include waiver of 
subrogation endorsement in favor of the City of Cedar Falls. 
 

Bodily Injury & Property Damage (each accident) $1,000,000  (CSL) 

Hired & Non-Owned Autos  If required 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

264

Item 19.



2021 BRIC Project Scoping 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. ST-000-3306  

 

C. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability  
 
As required by any applicable law or regulation.  The policy will include waiver 
of subrogation endorsement in favor of the City of Cedar Falls. 
 

Workers' Compensation Statutory Limits 

Bodily Injury Each Accident $500,000  

Bodily Injury by Disease Policy Limit $500,000  

Bodily Injury by Disease Each Employee $500,000  

 
 
D. Umbrella/Excess Liability 
 
If the umbrella/excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the 
same endorsement as required of the primary policies including but not 
limited to additional insured on a primary and non-contributory, and waiver of 
subrogation endorsement in favor of the City of Cedar Falls.   
 

Each Occurrence $3,000,000  

Aggregate $3,000,000  

 
 
E. Errors & Omissions/Professional Liability 
 
If the Agreement’s scope of services includes design work or other 
professional consultation services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other negligent acts or omissions (except 
for intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services 
performed by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & 
Omissions coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the 
Agreement, and continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date 
of completion of all work completed or services performed under the 
Agreement. 
 

Each Occurrence $1,000,000  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

265

Item 19.



2021 BRIC Project Scoping 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. ST-000-3306  

 

ENDORSEMENTS 
 
 

ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 
 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its 
employees, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, are 
included as Additional Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 20 10 12 19 or 
equivalent, and completed operations CG 20 37 12 19 or equivalent. See specimens on 
Pages 9-10 of this Exhibit. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing with any 
other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, whether other 
available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
_______________________________ 

 
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 

(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 
 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly agrees and 
states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity 
available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now 
exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of governmental 
immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be 
amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so at any 
time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance carrier. Nothing 
contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from asserting the defense of 
governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage under 
this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and benefits 
accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of governmental 
immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has ruled in favor of the 
defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall not otherwise 
change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

266

Item 19.



2021 BRIC Project Scoping 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. ST-000-3306  

 

 
CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 

 

Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction in 
coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-payment of premium shall 
be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement supersedes the standard cancellation 
statement on the Certificate of Insurance to which this endorsement is attached.  
Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 days advance written notice of 
cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage and/or limits, and 10 days advance 
written notice of non-payment of premium. 

 
 

________________________________ 
 
 
 

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS 
OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US  

(Waiver of Subrogation Endorsement) 
 
To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby releases the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its directors, employees, and agents working 
on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or 
responsibility to the Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by 
way of subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s employees. This 
provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect to loss or 
damage occurring during the time of the Agreement or arising out of the work performed 
under the Agreement. The Contractor’s policies of insurance (except for Professional 
Liability) shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 

267

Item 19.



Terms and Conditions for Federal Compliance 

CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR CONTRACTS UNDER FEDERAL AWARDS 

State of Iowa agencies receive federal funding. As a recipient of federal funds, State of Iowa agencies and 
their subrecipients must adhere to federal legislation passed by Congress as well as codified regulations 
implemented through administrative requirements when executing the funding.  

Specific to the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Title 2 Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, specific language must be included in 
agreement articles, contracts, memorandums of understanding, and letters of agreement. Detailed in 2 
CFR Part 200 Appendix II, in addition to other provisions required by the Federal agency or non-Federal 
entity, all contracts made by a non-Federal entity under the Federal awards must contain provisions 
covering the following, as applicable.  

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) 
Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification. Each 
tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any 
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in 
connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each 
tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining 
any Federal award.  
Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier, up to the non-Federal award.  

Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 12511387), 
as Amended  
Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-
Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to 
the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 
U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of 
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) 
Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the 
employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 
3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the 
Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis 
of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided 
that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all 
hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable 
to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings 
or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not 
apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or 
contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.  

Exhibit C

268

Item 19.



  

Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations 
(29 CFR Part 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or 
in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”) 
The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, 
any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected 
or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. 
 
Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148) 
When required by Federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 
awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 
U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted 
Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and 
mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the 
Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The 
non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the 
Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be 
conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all 
suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.  
   
Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) 
A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide 
exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 
180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 
Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, 
suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or 
regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.  
 
Domestic Preferences for Procurements  
As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the non-Federal entity should, to the greatest extent 
practicable under a Federal award, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, 
products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, 
cement, and other manufactured products). The requirements of this section must be included in all 
subawards including all contracts and purchase orders for work or products under this award. For 
purposes of this section: (1) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all 
manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in 
the United States. (2) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in 
whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as 
polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber.  
 
Equal Employment Opportunity 
Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet the definition of “federally 
assisted construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided 
under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 

269

Item 19.



  

FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, 
“Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing 
regulations at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Department of Labor.”  
  
Procurement of Recovered Materials 
In the performance of this contract, the contractor shall make maximum use of products containing 
recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired (1) 
Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule; (2) 
Meeting contract performance requirements; or (3) At a reasonable price. Information about this 
requirement, along with the list of EPA designated items, is available at EPA’s Comprehensive 
Procurement Guidelines web site:   
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program.  
The contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the Solid 
Waste Disposal Act.  
  
Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment 
Recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to: (1) 
Procure or obtain; (2) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or (3) Enter into a contract (or 
extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered 
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as 
critical technology as part of any system.  
  
As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is 
telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any 
subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  
• For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of 

critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications 
equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology 
Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  

• Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.  
• Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that 

the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director 
of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or 
otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.  

 
Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 
If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the 
recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit 
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must 
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations 
and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any 
implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.  
 

270

Item 19.



  

Termination  
 

Immediate Termination by the State  
The State may terminate this Contract for any of the following reasons effective immediately without 
advance notice:  
• In the event the Contractor is required to be certified or licensed as a condition precedent to 

providing goods and services, the revocation or loss of such license or certification will result in 
immediate termination of the Contract effective as of the date on which the license or certification 
is no longer in effect;  

 
• The State determines that the actions, or failure to act, of the Contractor, its agents, employees or 

subcontractors have caused, or reasonably could cause, a person’s life, health or safety to be 
jeopardized;  

• The Contractor fails to comply with confidentiality laws or provisions;  
• The Contractor furnished any statement, representation or certification in connection with the 

Contract or the bidding process which is materially false, deceptive, incorrect or incomplete.  
 

Termination for Cause by the Agency  
The Agency may terminate this Contract upon written notice for the breach by Contractor of any 
material term, condition or provision of this Contract, if such breach is not cured within the time 
period specified in the Agency’s notice of breach or any subsequent notice or correspondence 
delivered by the Agency to Contractor, provided that cure is feasible. In addition, the Agency may 
terminate this Contract effective immediately without penalty and without advance notice or 
opportunity to cure for any of the following reasons:  
• Contractor furnished any statement, representation, warranty or certification in connection with 

this Contract, the RFP or the Proposal that is false, deceptive, or materially incorrect or incomplete;  
• Contractor or any of Contractor’s officers, directors, employees, agents, subsidiaries, affiliates, 

contractors or subcontractors has committed or engaged in fraud, misappropriation, 
embezzlement, malfeasance, misfeasance, or bad faith;  

• Contractor or any parent or affiliate of Contractor owning a controlling interest in Contractor 
dissolves;  

• Contractor terminates or suspends its business;  Contractor’s corporate existence or good standing 
in Iowa is suspended, terminated, revoked or forfeited, or any license or certification held by 
Contractor related to Contractor’s performance under this Contract is suspended, terminated, 
revoked, or forfeited;  

• Contractor has failed to comply with any applicable international, federal, state (including, but not 
limited to Iowa Code chapter 8F), or local laws, rules, ordinances, regulations or orders when 
performing within the scope of this Contract;  

• The Agency determines or believes the Contractor has engaged in conduct that: (a) has or may 
expose the Agency or the State to material liability, or (b) has caused or may cause a person’s life, 
health or safety to be jeopardized;  

• Contractor infringes or allegedly infringes or violates any patent, trademark, copyright, trade dress 
or any other intellectual property right or proprietary right, or Contractor misappropriates or 
allegedly misappropriates a trade secret;  

• Contractor fails to comply with any applicable confidentiality laws, privacy laws, or any provisions 
of this Contract pertaining to confidentiality or privacy; or  

271

Item 19.



  

• Any of the following has been engaged in by or occurred with respect to Contractor or any 
corporation, shareholder or entity having or owning a controlling interest in Contractor:  
o Commencing or permitting a filing against it which is not discharged within ninety (90) days, of a 

case or other proceeding seeking liquidation, reorganization, or other relief with respect to itself 
or its debts under any bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar law now or hereafter in effect; or 
filing an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it in any involuntary 
case or other proceeding commenced against it seeking liquidation, reorganization, or other relief 
under any bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar law now or hereafter in effect with respect to 
it or its debts; or consenting to any such relief or to the appointment of or taking possession by 
any such official in any voluntary case or other proceeding commenced against it seeking 
liquidation, reorganization, or other relief under any bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar law 
now or hereafter in effect with respect to it or its debts;  

o Seeking or suffering the appointment of a trustee, receiver, liquidator, custodian or other similar 
official of it or any substantial part of its assets;  

o Making an assignment for the benefit of creditors;  
o Failing, being unable, or admitting in writing the inability generally to pay its debts or obligations 

as they become due or failing to maintain a positive net worth and such additional capital and 
liquidity as is reasonably adequate or necessary in connection with Contractor’s performance of 
its obligations under this Contract; or  

o Taking any action to authorize any of the foregoing. The Agency’s right to terminate this Contract 
shall be in addition to and not exclusive of other remedies available to the Agency, and the Agency 
shall be entitled to exercise any other rights and pursue any remedies, in law, at equity, or 
otherwise.  

 
Termination upon Notice  
Following thirty (30) days written notice, the Agency may terminate this Contract in whole or in part 
without penalty and without incurring any further obligation to Contractor. Termination can be for 
any reason or no reason at all.  
 
Termination Due to Lack of Funds or Change in Law  
Notwithstanding anything in this Contract to the contrary, and subject to the limitations set forth 
below, the Agency shall have the right to terminate this Contract without penalty and without any 
advance notice as a result of any of the following:  
• The legislature or governor fail in the sole opinion of the Agency to appropriate funds sufficient to 

allow the Agency to either meet its obligations under this Contract or to operate as required and to 
fulfill its obligations under this Contract; or  

• If funds are de-appropriated, reduced, not allocated, or receipt of funds is delayed, or if any funds 
or revenues needed by the Agency to make any payment hereunder are insufficient or unavailable 
for any other reason as determined by the Agency in its sole discretion; or  

• If the Agency’s authorization to conduct its business or engage in activities or operations related to 
the subject matter of this Contract is withdrawn or materially altered or modified; or  

• If the Agency’s duties, programs or responsibilities are modified or materially altered; or  
• If there is a decision of any court, administrative law judge or an arbitration panel or any law, rule, 

regulation or order is enacted, promulgated or issued that materially or adversely affects the 
Agency’s ability to fulfill any of its obligations under this Contract. The Agency shall provide 
Contractor with written notice of termination pursuant to this section.  

 

272

Item 19.



  

Limitation of the State’s Payment Obligations  
In the event of termination of this Contract for any reason by either party (except for termination by 
the Agency), the Agency shall pay only those amounts, if any, due and owing to Contractor hereunder 
for Deliverables actually and satisfactorily provided in accordance with the provisions of this Contract 
up to and including the date of termination of this Contract and for which the Agency is obligated to 
pay pursuant to this Contract; provided however, that in the event the Agency terminates this 
Contract pursuant to Section 1.6.4, the Agency’s obligation to pay Contractor such amounts and other 
compensation shall be limited by, and subject to, legally available funds. Payment will be made only 
upon submission of invoices and proper proof of Contractor’s claim. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
this section in no way limits the rights or remedies available to the Agency and shall not be construed 
to require the Agency to pay any compensation or other amounts hereunder in the event of 
Contractor’s breach of this Contract or any amounts withheld by the Agency in accordance with the 
terms of this Contract. The Agency shall not be liable, under any circumstances, for any of the 
following:  

 
• The payment of unemployment compensation to Contractor’s employees;  
• The payment of workers’ compensation claims, which occur during the Contract or extend beyond 

the date on which the Contract terminates;  
• Any costs incurred by Contractor in its performance of the Contract, including, but not limited to, 

startup costs, overhead or other costs associated with the performance of the Contract;  
• Any damages or other amounts associated with the loss of prospective profits, anticipated sales, 

goodwill, or for expenditures, investments or commitments made in connection with this Contract;  
• Any taxes Contractor may owe in connection with the performance of this Contract, including, but 

not limited to, sales taxes, excise taxes, use taxes, income taxes or property taxes.  
 

Contractor’s Termination Duties  
Upon receipt of notice of termination or upon request of the Agency, Contractor shall:  
• Cease work under this Contract and take all necessary or appropriate steps to limit disbursements 

and minimize costs, and furnish a report within thirty (30) days of the date of notice of termination, 
describing the status of all work performed under the Contract and such other matters as the 
Agency may require.  

• Immediately cease using and return to the Agency any property or materials, whether tangible or 
intangible, provided by the Agency to Contractor.  

• Cooperate in good faith with the Agency and its employees, agents and independent contractors 
during the transition period between the notification of termination and the substitution of any 
replacement service provider.  

• Immediately return to the Agency any payments made by the Agency for Deliverables that were not 
rendered or provided by Contractor.  

• Immediately deliver to the Agency any and all Deliverables for which the Agency has made payment 
(in whole or in part) that are in the possession or under the control of the Contractor or its agents 
or subcontractors in whatever stage of development and form of recordation such property is 
expressed or embodied as that time.  

 
Termination for Cause by Contractor  
Contractor may only terminate this Contract for the breach by the Agency of any material term, 
condition or provision of this Contract, if such breach is not cured within sixty (60) days of the Agency’s 
receipt of Contractor’s written notice of breach. 

273

Item 19.



  

  
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND ASSURANCES  
  
Access to Records 
The following access to records requirements apply to this contract: (1) The contractor agrees to provide 
the State of Iowa, HSEMD, the federal awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or 
any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the 
contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcriptions. (2) The contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce 
by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. (3) The contractor 
agrees to provide the federal awarding agency or his authorized representatives access to construction or 
other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract. (4) In compliance with the 
Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, HSEMD and the contractor acknowledge and agree that no language in this 
contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the federal awarding agency or the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  
  
Awarding Agency Seal, Logo, and Flags 
The contractor shall not use the awarding agency’s seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or 
likenesses of agency officials without specific agency preapproval.  
  
Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders 
This is an acknowledgement that Federal financial assistance will be used to fund all or a portion of the 
contract. The contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive orders, federal 
awarding policies, procedures, and directives.  
  
No Obligation by Federal Government 
The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to 
the non-Federal entity, contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract.  
  
Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts 
The contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and 
Statements) applies to the contractor’s actions pertaining to this contract.  

274

Item 19.



The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

7/5/2022

PDCM Insurance
P.O. Box 2597
Waterloo IA 50704

Janet Dufel, CPCU, CIC, CRM, CPIW
319-234-8888 319-234-7702

jdufel@pdcm.com

Philadelphia Ins. Companies
IOWANOR-02 IMWCA

Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments
229 E. Park Avenue
Waterloo IA 50703

XL Insurance

1228833549

A X 1,000,000
X 1,000,000

20,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

X

Y Y PHPK2432896 7/1/2022 7/1/2023

2,000,000

A 1,000,000
X

XX

Y Y PHPK2432896 7/1/2022 7/1/2023

A X X 4,000,000

10,000

Y PHUB821353

X

7/1/2022 7/1/2023

B 0640 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 X
5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000
A
C

Professional Liability
Public Officials E&O/EPL

PHPK2432896
POL0950362

7/1/2022
7/1/2022

7/1/2023
7/1/2023

Ea Incident/Aggregate
Ea Claim/Aggregate

1000000/2000000
3000000/3000000

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and
their board members, employees and volunteers are an Additional insured on the general liability policy on a primary and non-contributory basis (CG2010 &
CG2037). Governmental Immunities Endorsement and 30 Day Notice of Cancellation Endorsement are included. Waiver of Subrogation applies under General
Liability.

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls IA 50613

275

Item 19.



PI-MANU-1 (01/00) 
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

 
 

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.  

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT

(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured)

1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly agrees

and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of

Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the

defenses of governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

under Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended

from time to time.

2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of

insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of

governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists

and as it may be amended from time to time.

3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be

responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do

so at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the

insurance carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the

carrier from asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage

under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights

and benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for

reasons of governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent

jurisdiction has ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity

asserted by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

Page 1 of 1

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT

276

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: November 22, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Vacancy Agreements 
 
As part of the Main Street Reconstruction Project, it was determined that the rental 
property at 1203 Main Street needed to be acquired to accommodate the proposed 
roundabout at the Main Street/12th Street intersection. Part of the negotiations for the 
property buyout was that the owner would not renew the leases of any of its tenants. It 
would have cost the City approximately $40,000 ($10,000 per tenant) to relocate the 
four (4) tenants from this apartment. 
 
In lieu of paying to relocate the four (4) tenants, our property acquisition consultant 
(JCG Land Service, Inc., sub-consultant to Foth Infrastructure & Environment, L.L.C.) 
has negotiated a Vacancy Agreement with the owner where the City will pay the rent for 
the vacant rental units until the closing date when the City takes ownership of the 
property. The Engineering Division of the Public Works department requests your 
consideration and approval of this Vacancy Agreement. 
 
If you have any questions or comments, feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer     

 
 
 

277

Item 20.



278

Item 20.



279

Item 20.



280

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: November 23, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 Patching Project  
  Project No. RS-000-3275 
   Project Final Acceptance  
 
The 2021 Patching Project is completed and ready for final acceptance. This project 
involved the construction of forty-six (46) utility patches on existing City streets. Work 
shall include roughly 644.32 SY removal and replacement of existing pavement; 118 ton 
of asphalt patches; 105 LF of concrete curb and gutter; subgrade preparation; and 
replacement of driveway approaches and pedestrian ramps. This project was under 
contract with Boulder Contracting, LLC of Gundy Center, Iowa. Attached please find the 
following final documents: 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
   -  Copy of Maintenance Bond 
 
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division, and 
are on file with the City Clerk: 
 

Boulder Contracting, LLC Suppliers: 
 

Boulder Contracting, LLC subcontractors: 
Aspro, Inc. 
Service Signing Company 
 

 281

Item 21.



This project was funded by Cedar Falls Utilities and below is a breakdown of final 
contract costs by the funding source: 
 

Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Cedar Falls Utilities  149,275.47 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2021 Patching Project was completed in 
reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
            Brett Armstrong   Date 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
 
 

  

11/23/22 

282

Item 21.



No. 5

06/30/22  to 09/26/22 Application Date: 09/26/22

Project Number: Via (Engineer): Brett Armstrong 

06/24/22 Civil Engineer II

1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 161,197.60$                                                                      

Additions (a) Deductions (b)

-$                              -$                              2. NET CHANGE BY CHANGE ORDERS ( c ) .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . -$                                                                                     

-$                              -$                              

-$                              -$                              3. CURRENT CONTRACT PRICE .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 161,197.60$                                                                      

-$                              -$                              

-$                              -$                              4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE

-$                              -$                              (Total Column F on Progress Estimate) .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 149,275.47$                                                                      

-$                              -$                              

-$                              -$                              5. RETAINAGE

-$                              -$                              a. 0%      x Work Completed   .   .   -$                                                                                     

-$                              -$                              b. 0%      x Stored Materials   .   . -$                                                                                     

-$                              -$                              c. Total Retainage (Line 5a + Line 5b) .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . -$                                                                                     

-$                              -$                              

-$                              -$                              6. CUMULATIVE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CHARGED

-$                              -$                              0 Days      x Per Day   .   .   .   .   .   . -$                                                                                     

-$                              -$                              

-$                              -$                              7. AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line 4 - Line 5c - Line 6) .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 149,275.47$                                                                      

8. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (Line 7 From Prior Application)  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 140,168.31$                                                                      

9. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION 9,107.16$                                                                           

10. BALANCE TO DATE, PLUS RETAINAGE (Line 7 + Line 5c)   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 149,275.47$                                                                      

11. % OF COMPLETION

Original Contract Price (Line 10 ÷ Line 1) 93%

Current Contract Price (Line 10 ÷ Line 3) 93%

(Line 9 or Other: Attach Explanation if Other Amount)

    ________________________________

Date: 
Date

Contractor's Certification

The undersigned Contractor certifies that: (1) all previous progress payments

received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract have been

applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in

connection with Work covered by prior Applications for Payment; (2) title of all

Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or

covered by this Application for Payment will pass to Owner at time of payment free

and clear of all LIens, security interests and encumbrances (except such are covered

by a Bond acceptable to Owner indemnifying Owner against such Liens, security

interest or encumbrances); and (3) all Work covered by this Application for Payment

is in accordance with the Contract Documents and is not defective.

By (Conctractor):

13

14

15

Totals

(a) + (b) = ( c )

Net Change by Change Orders

-$                                                                        

12

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

From (Contractor): Boulder Contracting 

City of Cedar Falls

Application Period:

RS-000-3275 To (Owner):

CONTRACTOR'S                   

APPLICATION                                         

FOR PAYMENT

Pay Application

Luke Kjormoe

Payment of: 9,107.16$                                           

Is Respectufully Submitted:
Brett Armstrong , Civil Engineer II

149,275.47$                               

-$                                              

2021 STREET PATHCING PROJECT

Contract Completion Date:

Change Order Summary

Approved Change Orders:

Number

10/7/2022

283

Item 21.



No. 5

to

Project Number:

Contract Completion Date: 06/24/22

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O

Bid                                                                   

Item                                   

Number

Description Unit

1 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT S.Y. 530.40 30.00$                15,912.00$        572.34 -                      -$                    572.34 17,170.20$        -$                       17,170.20$        108% (1,258.20)$         

2 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER L.F. 74.50 12.00$                894.00$              74.50 -                      -$                    74.50 894.00$              -$                       894.00$              100% -$                    

3 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 13.20 25.00$                330.00$              13.20 -                      -$                    13.20 330.00$              -$                       330.00$              100% -$                    

4 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 18.00 11.00$                198.00$              18.00 -                      -$                    18.00 198.00$              -$                       198.00$              100% -$                    

5 SAW CUTTING FOR REMOVALS L.F. 1,598.20 7.00$                  11,187.40$        1,654.20 -                      -$                    1,654.20 11,579.40$        -$                       11,579.40$        104% (392.00)$            

6 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, UNSTABLE MATERIAL C.Y. 172.50 30.00$                5,175.00$          121.90 27.46 823.80$              149.36 4,480.80$          -$                       4,480.80$          87% 694.20$              

7 CURB, P.C.C., 7",  2.0' WIDTH, TYPE "C", CLASS III L.F. 53.10 50.00$                2,655.00$          11.40 30.10 1,505.00$          41.50 2,075.00$          -$                       2,075.00$          78% 580.00$              

8 CURB, P.C.C., 7",  2.5' WIDTH, TYPE "C", CLASS III L.F. 33.00 65.00$                2,145.00$          33.00 -                      -$                    33.00 2,145.00$          -$                       2,145.00$          100% -$                    

9 MODIFIED SUBBASE C.Y. 172.50 75.00$                12,937.50$        121.90 27.46 2,059.50$          149.36 11,202.00$        -$                       11,202.00$        87% 1,735.50$          

10 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD C.Y. 1.90 475.00$              902.50$              1.90 -                      -$                    1.90 902.50$              -$                       902.50$              100% -$                    

11 HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.Y. 17.60 75.00$                1,320.00$          17.60 -                      -$                    17.60 1,320.00$          -$                       1,320.00$          100% -$                    

12 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6", CLASS "C" S.Y. 13.20 121.00$              1,597.20$          19.80 -                      -$                    19.80 2,395.80$          -$                       2,395.80$          150% (798.60)$            

13 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4", CLASS "C" S.Y. 17.60 90.00$                1,584.00$          17.60 -                      -$                    17.60 1,584.00$          -$                       1,584.00$          100% -$                    

14 PEDESTRIAN RAMPS, DETECTABLE WARNING S.F. 8.00 40.00$                320.00$              8.00 -                      -$                    8.00 320.00$              -$                       320.00$              100% -$                    

15 UTILITY PATCH, P.C.C., TYPE "C", CLASS III S.Y. 517.22 105.00$              54,308.10$        427.67 -                      -$                    427.67 44,905.35$        -$                       44,905.35$        83% 9,402.75$          

16 UTILITY PATCH, HMA(ST) SURF., 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 91.70 235.00$              21,549.50$        85.68 -                      -$                    85.68 20,134.80$        -$                       20,134.80$        93% 1,414.70$          

17 COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE S.Y. 530.40 6.00$                  3,182.40$          368.38 71.39 428.34$              439.77 2,638.62$          -$                       2,638.62$          83% 543.78$              

18 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.00 25,000.00$        25,000.00$        1.00 -                      -$                    1.00 25,000.00$        -$                       25,000.00$        100% -$                    

161,197.60$      4,816.64$          149,275.47$      -$                       149,275.47$      11,922.13$        

2021 STREET PATHCING PROJECT

RS-000-3275

From (Contractor):

To (Owner):

Application Period:

Current Pay 

Application 

Quantities

Application Date: 09/26/22

Via (Engineer): Brett Armstrong 

Civil Engineer II

06/30/22 09/26/22

City of Cedar Falls

Boulder Contracting 

Balance to                               

Date                                                  

( F - M )

It
e

m
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Estimate

Totals

Current Pay 

Application                            

Value                                             

( E x H )

Estimated 

Quantity Installed                                    

( G + H )

Total                    

Completed                    

Value                                           

( E x J )

Value of Materials 

Presently Stored                                     

(Column M on 

Stored Materials)

Total Completed                  

and Stored                 

to Date                                     

( K + L )

% Original 

Contract                          

( M ÷ F )

           Item

Bid                             

Quantity

Unit                                     

Price

Bid                                       

Value

Previous Pay 

Application 

Quantities

284

Item 21.



285

Item 21.



286

Item 21.



287

Item 21.



288

Item 21.



289

Item 21.



290

Item 21.



291

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II   
 
 DATE: November 14, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Hartman Reserve Educational Partnership   
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls, along with several other communities in the area, partner 
annually with Hartman Reserve Nature Center to provide public outreach and education 
programs related to improving water quality and stormwater run-off. These programs 
help students and visitors to Hartman Reserve understand the importance of improving 
water quality in urban areas as it helps to protect the environment and preserve our 
local natural resources for continued public recreational use and enjoyment.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls’ annual contribution for 2023-2026 is $1,685.00, which is paid 
for out of the Stormwater Fund. This program helps the City meet the Public Education 
and Outreach requirement of our National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permit.  
 
Attached is the contracted education proposal between Black Hawk County 
Conservation Board, BHCCB, and the Cities of Cedar Falls, Elk Run Heights, 
Evansdale, Hudson, Raymond and Waterloo for the education partnership with the 
Black Hawk County Conservation‘s Hartman Reserve Nature Center. The Engineering 
Division requests your approval of this contract. 
 
If there are any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:   Chase Schrage, Director of Public works 
        David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 
 

292

Item 22.



  

BLACK HAWK COUNTY CONSERVATION
1346 West Airline Hwy Waterloo, IA 50703
Phone: (319)433-7275   Fax: (319)433-7276
Email: conservation@blackhawkcounty.iowa.gov
Website: blackhawkcountyparks.com

Contracted Education Proposal: July 1, 2023- June 30, 2026

This proposal is between Black Hawk County Conservation (BHCC) and the cities of Cedar 
Falls, Elk Run Heights, Evansdale, Hudson, Raymond, and Waterloo.  Hartman Reserve Nature 
Center will organize and conduct stormwater education.   Education programs will occur 
throughout the year including programing for school groups, field trips, summer camps, and the 
public.   
What Conservation can provide for your cities:

 General stormwater education facts sheets or brochures which include information on 
stormwater impacts on water quality, as well as steps residents can implement to reduce 
water quality degradation.

 Informational articles will be provided for use in city newsletters 2 times per year.  These 
articles will provide information regarding the impacts of stormwater on water quality 
and ideas that individual residents can implement.  

 Hartman Reserve Nature Center staff will provide a wide range of hands-on water quality 
and stormwater themed programs to classrooms and individuals that attend programming 
for school trips, summer camps, public and private programs.   

 This program will allow the participating municipalities to remain in compliance with 
their DNR issued NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) general 
permit #2 which contains a public education and outreach programming requirement, in a 
cost-effective manner.  

 Conservation staff can provide up to two (2) public programs in your municipalities per 
fiscal year.   

Project Coordination:  Conservation will provide program planning, set up, equipment, 
maintenance, and storage of equipment along with billing and registration.  Reports will be 
submitted to each individual city at the end of each fiscal year.  

Staff: Conservation has two full time naturalist who plan organize and implement education 
programs for children and adults.  These staff will lead the watershed education initiative.  

Budget: The incorporation of water quality lessons into existing programs, city specific 
programs, and this cost share match from each participating municipality.  Overall program 
budget is $5,600.00 

293

Item 22.



  

BLACK HAWK COUNTY CONSERVATION
1346 West Airline Hwy Waterloo, IA 50703
Phone: (319)433-7275   Fax: (319)433-7276
Email: conservation@blackhawkcounty.iowa.gov
Website: blackhawkcountyparks.com

City Population Min. 
Contribution 

% Of total Cost share by 
population 

Cost share 
including 
min. 
contribution 

Cedar Falls 40,713 $250 35% $1,435 $1,685
Elk Run 
Heights 

1,069 $250 1% $41 $291

Evansdale 4,561 $250 4% $164 $414
Hudson 2,546 $250 2% $82 $332
Raymond 759 $250 1% $41 $291
Waterloo 67,067 $250 57% $2,337 $2,587
Total 116,715 $1,500 100% $4,100 $5,600.00

Deliverables:  Conservation will provide programming that will meet with required education 
component of the Iowa DNR MS-4 Stormwater mandate.  In FY 2021 1,323 individuals
received this instruction and FY 2022 1,723 individuals received this instruction. Conservation 
will track the number and provide the report at the end of the year or as requested.  

Invoice:  Conservation will invoice the cities at the beginning of each fiscal year, and it will be 
payable in 60 days.  

Signature Page:  Attached please find the signature page.  

294

Item 22.



  

BLACK HAWK COUNTY CONSERVATION
1346 West Airline Hwy Waterloo, IA 50703
Phone: (319)433-7275   Fax: (319)433-7276
Email: conservation@blackhawkcounty.iowa.gov
Website: blackhawkcountyparks.com

Signature Page: Contracted Storm Water Education Proposal July 1, 2023- June 30, 2026

Amy Davison, Nature Center Manager, Black Hawk County Conservation 

Rob Green, Mayor City of Cedar Falls, 

Lisa Smock, Mayor of Elk Run Heights

Deanne Kobliska, Mayor, City of Evansdale

George Wessel, Mayor, City of Hudson 

Gary Vick , Mayor, City of Raymond

Quentin Hart, Mayor, City of Waterloo 
295

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: December 5, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Tooth Trio, LLC, 9219 University Avenue, Cedar Falls, IA  
 

 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an annual 
inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair activities of the 
stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an easement for the City to 
inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the property owners fail or refuse to 
meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair Agreement. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement is attached for City Council review.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department was notified of a discrepancy 
of the legal description in the original Maintenance and Repair Agreement for the 
stormwater facility at 9219 University Avenue, Cedar Falls, IA. The two agreements 
attached will terminate the existing Maintenance and Repair Agreement and establish a 
new Maintenance and Repair Agreement with the corrected legal description.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends the agreement be accepted by the City Council 
and recorded at the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 

296

Item 23.



297

Item 23.



298

Item 23.



299

Item 23.



300

Item 23.



301

Item 23.



302

Item 23.



303

Item 23.



304

Item 23.



305

Item 23.



306

Item 23.



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by and return to: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa  

50613 (319)273-8600 

 

TERMINATION OF STORM WATER MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR AGREEMENT 

 

       Now, on the ______ day of ________________________, 2022, the undersigned “Cedar 

Brook Dental Group” and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, do hereby fully and finally terminate 

that certain Storm Water Maintenance and Repair Agreement dated October 8, 2018, filed with 

the office of the Black Hawk County, Iowa, Recorder as Document # 2019-7877 on November 

16, 2018. 

       The property subject to said Agreement is legally described in said Agreement as:  

“UNPLATTED CEDAR FALLS E 20 RDS N 40 RDS SE ¼ SEC 24 T 89 R 14”  

        

       IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the “Cedar Brook Dental Group” and the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, have executed this Termination of Storm Water Maintenance and Repair Agreement at 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, effective as of the date first stated above. 

 

                                                       “Cedar Brook Dental Group” 

                                                       

    By (Signature): ______________________________________ 

Printed Name: ______________________________________ 

Title: ______________________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA ) 

 ) SS 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of ______________   , 2022, by 
________________________________ as _________________________ of “Cedar Brook Dental 
Group.” 

______________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
  

Exhibit F

307

Item 23.



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
By:       

 
            Robert M. Green, Mayor 

  ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA ) 

 ) SS 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the  day of __________________,  

2022 by Robert M. Green, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa. 

 

   
 Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

308

Item 23.



309

Item 23.



310

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE: November 11, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  CUCCC, 5109 Nordic Dr, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal Maintenance 
and Repair Agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for CUCCC, 5109 Nordic Dr, Cedar Falls, IA and 
finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering Division recommends the 
agreement be accepted by the City Council and recorded at the Black Hawk County 
Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

311

Item 24.



312

Item 24.



313

Item 24.



314

Item 24.



315

Item 24.



316

Item 24.



317

Item 24.



318

Item 24.



319

Item 24.



320

Item 24.



321

Item 24.



322

Item 24.



323

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE: November 11, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  D&D Midwest Investments, 5630 Westminster Dr, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal Maintenance 
and Repair Agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for D&D Midwest Investments, 5630 Westminster 
Dr, Cedar Falls, IA and finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering Division 
recommends the agreement be accepted by the City Council and recorded at the Black 
Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

324

Item 25.



325

Item 25.



326

Item 25.



327

Item 25.



328

Item 25.



329

Item 25.



330

Item 25.



331

Item 25.



332

Item 25.



333

Item 25.



334

Item 25.



335

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO:   Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM:  Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE:  November 23, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V  
    Public Hearing on CFU Easement 
     
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct West Viking Road along the north side 
of the West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V from Union Road to Production Drive. 
Part of this design includes the filling of the southern ditch to modify this road from its 
current rural cross section to an updated urban cross section. As a result, the existing 
Cedar Falls Utilities overhead electrical transmission lines will be impacted. In good 
effort to remain proactive, Cedar Falls Utilities is requesting a non-exclusive 10-foot-
wide easement along the north edge of the West Viking Road Industrial Park to bury the 
electric utility. This would prevent any electrical conflicts during the reconstruction and 
ditch filling of the proposed roadway.  
 
An Easement agreement has been prepared by Cedar Falls Utilities to convey the 
northerly 10 feet of the West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V for the purpose of 
protecting their buried electrical utility. The non-inclusive nature of this agreement still 
allows the City of Cedar Falls the unrestricted ability to construction public infrastructure 
in this area.  
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize this Easement 
Agreement.  The public hearing offers an opportunity for the public, and any other 
involved parties, to comment on the Easement. 
 
We recommend setting Monday, December 19, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time 
for the public hearing on this project. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 David Wicke, City Engineer, PE 

336

Item 26.



337

Item 26.

claypoolb
Snapshot



 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by and return to: 

Garrett Ramthun, Cedar Falls Utilities, P.O. Box 769, Cedar Falls, IA 50613-0769, 1-319-268-5375 
 

 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

EASEMENT  
FILE NO. 

That the undersigned, hereinafter "Grantor", for good and valuable consideration to Grantor, receipt of 

which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant unto the City of Cedar Falls, for the use and benefit of 

The Municipal Electric and Communications Utilities of the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, 

hereinafter called "Cedar Falls Utilities", its successors and assigns, and to any other established entity 

which regularly furnishes communication, data or media services which are delivered or available on a city 

wide basis, a perpetual non-exclusive easement with the right, privilege and authority to construct, 

reconstruct, operate, maintain and remove an electric or communication line or lines, wires, transformers 

and other fixtures, over, across, upon and under the following described real estate owned by the Grantor 

and located in the County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, to-wit: 

 

Easement Description 

 

The North Ten (10) feet of Outlot “Y”, Tract “A” and Outlot “Z”, West Viking Road Industrial 

Park Phase V, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 
 

Parcels: 891434127001 & 891434101011 

 
Together with the right to Cedar Falls Utilities, its successors and assigns, of ingress and egress to, from 

and over said real estate for doing anything necessary or useful for the enjoyment of the rights herein 

granted; also, except for public infrastructure installed by or for Grantor, the privilege of removing at 

anytime any structure or obstruction which may interfere with the proper maintenance and operation of 

utilities located thereon; together with all rights and privileges required for the full enjoyment of the rights 

herein granted.  Any conflict with public infrastructure installed at any time by or for Grantor shall be 

resolved at Cedar Falls Utilities’ cost.  

 

Dated this  day of  , A.D. 2022. 
 

GRANTOR 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

By:   

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

STATE OF IOWA 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK} ss 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on  , 2022, by Robert M. 

Green, as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

 

 

Notary Public – State of Iowa 

338

Item 26.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone:  319-273-8600 
Fax:  319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: November 28, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Adoption of the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan 
 
 
The proposed Urban Renewal Plan for the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area 
has been developed to help promote economic development in this portion of Cedar 
Falls. The Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area is being formed from property 
that the City will soon be acquiring for future industrial development. The primary goal of 
this Plan is to stimulate, through public involvement and commitment, private 
investment in new and expanded industrial development in the Urban Renewal Area. 
 
With the above information noted, a copy of the proposed Southwest Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Plan (Exhibit 1 to the Resolution) is attached for your review.  This Plan and 
related documents were drafted by City staff in coordination with the Ahlers Law Office in 
Des Moines. 
 
It is important to keep in mind that the projects and associated cost estimates are 
maximum expenditures for potential projects that may occur within the Southwest 
Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area over the next few years.  To the best of our ability, 
staff is trying to identify all potential future projects to minimize the need for constant 
plan amendments (hopefully for the next 12-18 months) that require significant amounts 
of staff time and legal expense. 
 
The first step in the City Council review process of the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Plan is to set a date of Consultation Session with local taxing entities and a 
date for public hearing.  Staff recommends that City Council adopt the following 
attached Resolution prepared by the Ahlers Law Office: 
 

1. Resolution determining the necessity and setting dates of a consultation and a 
public hearing on a proposed Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan for a 
proposed Urban Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa. 

 
The Consultation Session (required by law) with the local taxing entities will be 
scheduled for December 13, 2022 while the date of Public Hearing will be set for 
January 3, 2023. 
 
 

339

Item 27.



If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
Xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Nathan Overberg, Ahlers Law Office 

340

Item 27.



 

ITEM TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

December 5, 2022 

7:00 P.M. 

 

Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan 

 

  Resolution determining the necessity and setting dates of a consultation and a public 

hearing on a proposed Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan for a proposed Urban 

Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 

 

 

1. The above agenda items should be included, along with any other agenda items, in the 

meeting agenda.  The agenda should be posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place 

easily accessible to the public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office 

of the body holding the meeting.  If no such office exists, the notice must be posted at the 

building in which the meeting is to be held. 

2. If you do not now have a bulletin board designated as above mentioned, designate one and 

establish a uniform policy of posting your notices of meeting and tentative agenda. 

3. Notice and tentative agenda must be posted at least 24 hours prior to the commencement 

of the meeting. 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 21, 

CODE OF IOWA, AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 

341

Item 27.



i 

December 5, 2022 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 

session, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M., on 

the above date.  There were present Mayor _______________, in the chair, and the following 

named Council Members: 

 

__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

* * * * * * * * 

342

Item 27.



ii 

Council Member ____________________ then introduced the following proposed 

Resolution entitled "RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE NECESSITY AND SETTING 

DATES OF A CONSULTATION AND A PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED 

SOUTHWEST CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR A PROPOSED URBAN 

RENEWAL AREA IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA", and moved that the 

same be adopted.  Council Member ____________________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The 

roll was called, and the vote was: 

 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the Resolution duly adopted as follows: 

 

343

Item 27.



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE NECESSITY AND 

SETTING DATES OF A CONSULTATION AND A PUBLIC 

HEARING ON A PROPOSED SOUTHWEST CEDAR FALLS 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR A PROPOSED URBAN 

RENEWAL AREA IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE 

OF IOWA 

WHEREAS, it is hereby found and determined that one or more economic development 

areas, as defined in Chapter 403, Code of Iowa, exist within the City and the rehabilitation, 

conservation, redevelopment, development, or combination thereof, of the area is necessary in the 

interest of the public health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the City; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has caused there to be prepared a proposed Southwest Cedar 

Falls Urban Renewal Plan ("Plan" or "Urban Renewal Plan") for the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban 

Renewal Area ("Area" or "Urban Renewal Area"), which proposed Plan is attached hereto as 

Exhibit 1 and which is incorporated herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Plan is to form the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal 

Area suitable for economic development and to include a list of proposed projects to be undertaken 

within the Urban Renewal Area, and a copy of the Plan has been placed on file for public inspection 

in the office of the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, the property proposed to be included in the Urban Renewal Area is legally 

described in the Plan and this Council has reasonable cause to believe that the Area described in 

the Plan satisfies the eligibility criteria for designation as an urban renewal area under Iowa law 

and; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable that the area be redeveloped as part of the overall redevelopment 

covered by the Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Urban Renewal Area includes land classified as agricultural land 

and written permission of the current owners will be obtained; and 

WHEREAS, the land proposed to be added to the Area contains property within Black 

Hawk County, Iowa that is outside, but within two miles, of the corporate limits of the City, and 

Black Hawk County will execute a Joint Agreement to allow the City to operate within the Area 

outside the corporate limits of the City and within Black Hawk County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Iowa statutes require the City Council to submit the proposed Urban 

Renewal Plan to the Planning and Zoning Commission for review and recommendation as to its 

conformity with the general plan for development of the City as a whole prior to Council approval 

of such Plan, and further provides that the Planning and Zoning Commission shall submit its 

written recommendations thereon to this Council within thirty (30) days of its receipt of such 

proposed Urban Renewal Plan; and 

344

Item 27.



2 

WHEREAS, the Iowa statutes require the City Council to notify all affected taxing entities 

of the consideration being given to the proposed Urban Renewal Plan and to hold a consultation 

with such taxing entities with respect thereto, and further provides that the designated 

representative of each affected taxing entity may attend the consultation and make written 

recommendations for modifications to the proposed division of revenue included as a part thereof, 

to which the City shall submit written responses as provided in Section 403.5, Code of Iowa, as 

amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Iowa statutes further require the City Council to hold a public hearing on 

the proposed Urban Renewal Plan subsequent to notice thereof by publication in a newspaper 

having general circulation within the City, which notice shall describe the time, date, place and 

purpose of the hearing, shall generally identify the urban renewal area covered by the Plan and 

shall outline the general scope of the urban renewal project under consideration, with a copy of 

the notice also being mailed to each affected taxing entity. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That the consultation on the proposed Urban Renewal Plan required by Section 

403.5(2), Code of Iowa, as amended, shall be held on December 13, 2022, in Conference Room 

#2, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 11:00 A.M., and the Economic Development 

Coordinator, or his delegate, is hereby appointed to serve as the designated representative of the 

City for purposes of conducting the consultation, receiving any recommendations that may be 

made with respect thereto and responding to the same in accordance with Section 403.5(2), Code 

of Iowa. 

Section 2. That the City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause a notice of such 

consultation to be sent by regular mail to all affected taxing entities, as defined in Section 

403.17(1), Code of Iowa, along with a copy of this Resolution and the proposed Urban Renewal 

Plan, the notice to be in substantially the following form: 

345

Item 27.



3 

NOTICE OF A CONSULTATION TO BE HELD BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA AND ALL 

AFFECTED TAXING ENTITIES CONCERNING THE 

PROPOSED SOUTHWEST CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL 

PLAN FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA 

The City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa will hold a consultation with all affected taxing 

entities, as defined in Section 403.17(1), Code of Iowa, as amended, commencing at 11:00 A.M. 

on December 13, 2022, in Conference Room #2, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

concerning a proposed Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan for the Southwest Cedar Falls 

Urban Renewal Area, a copy of which is attached hereto. 

Each affected taxing entity may appoint a representative to attend the consultation.  The 

consultation may include a discussion of the estimated growth in valuation of taxable property 

included in the proposed Urban Renewal Area, the fiscal impact of the division of revenue on the 

affected taxing entities, the estimated impact on the provision of services by each of the affected 

taxing entities in the proposed Urban Renewal Area, and the duration of any bond issuance 

included in the Plan.   

The designated representative of any affected taxing entity may make written 

recommendations for modifications to the proposed division of revenue no later than seven days 

following the date of the consultation.  The Economic Development Coordinator, or his delegate, 

as the designated representative of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, shall submit a written 

response to the affected taxing entity, no later than seven days prior to the public hearing on the 

proposed Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan, addressing any recommendations made by 

that entity for modification to the proposed division of revenue. 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, 

as provided by Section 403.5, Code of Iowa, as amended. 

Dated this __________ day of _______________, 2022. 

  

 

 

  

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

(End of Notice) 

346

Item 27.



4 

Section 3. That a public hearing shall be held on the proposed Urban Renewal Plan before 

the City Council at its meeting which commences at 7:00 P.M. on January 3, 2023, in the Council 

Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Section 4. That the City Clerk is authorized and directed to publish notice of this public 

hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier, once on a date not less than four (4) nor more than 

twenty (20) days before the date of the public hearing, and to mail a copy of the notice by ordinary 

mail to each affected taxing entity, such notice in each case to be in substantially the following 

form: 

347

Item 27.



5 

(One publication required) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER APPROVAL 

OF A PROPOSED SOUTHWEST CEDAR FALLS URBAN 

RENEWAL PLAN FOR A PROPOSED URBAN RENEWAL 

AREA IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, will hold a public hearing before 

itself at its meeting which commences at 7:00 P.M. on January 3, 2023 in the Council Chambers, 

City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, to consider adoption of a proposed Southwest Cedar 

Falls Urban Renewal Plan (the "Plan") concerning a proposed Urban Renewal Area in the City of 

Cedar Falls, State of Iowa. 

The Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area is proposed to contain the land legally 

described as follows: 

Olander, Graham & Ladage Property: 

The South one-half (S ½) of the Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section thirty-four 

(34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West; 

 

And also, 

 

S Union Road ROW (West side): 

The East thirty-three (33) feet of the South one-half (S ½) of the Southeast Quarter 

(SE ¼) of Section thirty-three (33), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range 

fourteen (14) West; 

 

And also, 

 

West Ridgeway Ave ROW (North side): 

The North fifty (50) feet of the East two thousand-six-hundred and eighty feet 

(2,680) of the West two thousand-eight-hundred and twenty-five feet (2,825) of 

Section four (4), Township eighty-eight (88) North, Range fourteen (14) West. 

 

A copy of the Plan is on file for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

The City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa is the local public agency which, if such Plan is 

approved, shall undertake the urban renewal activities described in such Plan. 

The general scope of the urban renewal activities under consideration in the Plan is to 

promote the growth and retention of qualified industries and businesses in the Urban Renewal Area 

through various public purpose and special financing activities outlined in the Plan.  To accomplish 

the objectives of the Plan, and to encourage the further economic development of the Urban 

Renewal Area, the Plan provides that such special financing activities may include, but not be 

limited to, the making of loans or grants of public funds to private entities under Chapter 15A, 

Code of Iowa.  The City also may reimburse or directly undertake the installation, construction 

348

Item 27.



6 

and reconstruction of substantial public improvements, including, but not limited to, street, water, 

sanitary sewer, storm sewer or other public improvements.  The City also may acquire and make 

land available for development or redevelopment by private enterprise as authorized by law.  The 

Plan provides that the City may issue bonds or use available funds for purposes allowed by the 

Plan and that tax increment reimbursement of the costs of urban renewal projects may be sought 

if and to the extent incurred by the City.  The Plan initially proposes specific public infrastructure 

or site improvements to be undertaken by the City, and provides that the Plan may be amended 

from time to time. 

Any person or organization desiring to be heard shall be afforded an opportunity to be 

heard at such hearing. 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, 

as provided by Section 403.5, Code of Iowa. 

Dated this __________ day of _______________, 2022. 

  

 

 

  

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

(End of Notice) 

349

Item 27.



7 

Section 5. That the proposed Urban Renewal Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, for the 

proposed Urban Renewal Area described therein is hereby officially declared to be the proposed 

Urban Renewal Plan referred to in the notices for purposes of such consultation and hearing and 

that a copy of the Plan shall be placed on file in the office of the City Clerk. 

Section 6. That the proposed Urban Renewal Plan be submitted to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission for review and recommendation as to its conformity with the general plan for the 

development of the City as a whole, with such recommendation to be submitted in writing to this 

Council within thirty (30) days of the date hereof. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this _______ day of ______________, 2022. 

  

 

 

  

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

Label the Plan as Exhibit 1 (with all exhibits) and attach it to this Resolution. 

 

350

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

Exhibit 1 
 

SOUTHWEST CEDAR FALLS URBAN 
RENEWAL PLAN 

 
for the 

  

SOUTHWEST CEDAR FALLS  
URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 
 

Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan - 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

351

Item 27.



 

SOUTHWEST CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
This Urban Renewal Plan (“Plan” or “Urban Renewal Plan”) for the Southwest Cedar Falls 
Urban Renewal Area (the “Area” or “Urban Renewal Area”) has been developed to help 
promote economic development in the City of Cedar Falls (the “City”). The primary goal 
of this Plan is to stimulate, through public involvement and commitment, private 
investment in new and expanded commercial and industrial development in the Urban 
Renewal Area. 
 
In order to achieve this Plan’s objectives, the City intends to undertake urban renewal 
activities pursuant to the powers granted to it under Chapter 403 and Chapter 15A, Code 
of Iowa, as amended.  
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AREA 
 

The Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area is illustrated in Exhibit A and 
described in Exhibit B.  
 
The City reserves the right to modify the boundaries of the Area by amendments to this 
Plan. 
 

AGREEMENT TO INCLUDE AGRICULTURAL LAND  
 

Some of the property being included in the Urban Renewal Area is defined as 
“agricultural land” by Iowa Code Section 403.17(3). In accordance with Iowa Code 
Section 403.17(10), the owners of such property have entered into agreement(s) 
agreeing to allow the City to include their real property defined as “agricultural land” in 
the Urban Renewal Area.  A copy of the signed agreement of each agricultural land 
owner within the Urban Renewal Area is attached as Exhibit “C”. The original signed 
agreements will be on file at City Hall. 
 

JOINT CITY/COUNTY AGREEMENT 
 
In accordance with Iowa Code Section 403.17(4), a City may exercise urban renewal 
powers with respect to property which is located outside but within two miles of the 
boundary of a City if the City obtains the consent of the County within which such 
property is located.  A Joint Agreement has been executed by the City of Cedar Falls 
and Black Hawk County, which gives the City permission to include land that is outside 
the city limits in the Area.  A copy of such Joint Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“D”.  The original signed Joint Agreement is on file at City Hall. 
 

352

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

AREA DESIGNATION 
 
With the adoption of this Plan, the City of Cedar Falls designates this Urban Renewal 
Area as an economic development area that is appropriate for the promotion of industrial 
and/or commercial economic development. 
 

BASE VALUE 
 
If the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area is legally established, a Tax Increment 
Financing (TIF) Ordinance is adopted, and debt is certified all prior to December 1, 2023, 
the taxable valuation within the area included in the TIF Ordinance as of January 1, 2022, 
will be considered the frozen “base valuation.” If debt is not certified until a later date or if 
a TIF ordinance is not adopted until later, the “base value” will be the assessed value of 
the taxable property within the TIF Ordinance area as of January 1 of the calendar year 
preceding the calendar year in which the City first certifies the amount of any debt on the 
Area. It is possible that separate TIF ordinances for separate parcel(s) may be adopted 
as development in the Area warrants.  In that case, each separate TIF ordinance area 
may have a separate base and separate sunset or expiration date. 

 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 
The City of Cedar Falls has a general plan for the physical development of the City, as a 
whole, designated as the “Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan” adopted in May 2012. This 
Urban Renewal Plan is in conformity with the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan. The 
urban renewal projects included in this Plan also are consistent with the Cedar Falls 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The Plan does not modify the City’s existing zoning policies or designations. 
 
The need for improved traffic, public transportation, public utilities, recreational and 
community facilities, or other public improvements within the Urban Renewal Area is set 
forth in this Urban Renewal Plan. As the Area develops, the need for public infrastructure 
extensions and upgrades will be evaluated and planned for by the City. 

 
PLAN OBJECTIVES 

 
Renewal activities are designed to provide opportunities, incentives, and sites to promote 
economic development, including new and expanded industrial and commercial 
development. More specific objectives for development within this Urban Renewal Area 
include: 
 

1. To stimulate through public action and commitment, private investment in 
new commercial and industrial development. 

 

353

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

2. To plan for and provide sufficient land for commercial or industrial 
development in a manner that is efficient from the standpoint of providing 
municipal services and that encourages the creation and retention of jobs. 

 
3. To provide for the installation of public infrastructure, including gas, water, 

and communications infrastructure, and public facilities in the Urban 
Renewal Area, which ultimately contribute to the sound development of the 
entire City. 

 
4. To provide a more marketable and attractive investment climate through the 

use of various governmental incentives. 
 
5. To achieve a diversified, well-balanced economy providing a desirable 

standard of living, creating job opportunities, and strengthening the tax 
base. 

 
6. To develop a sound economic base that will serve as the foundation for 

future growth and development. 
 
7. To provide reimbursement of City personnel costs and other administrative 

and legal fees associated with the development and implementation of 
urban renewal projects within the Urban Renewal Area. 

 
TYPE OF RENEWAL ACTIVITIES 

 
To meet the objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan and to encourage the development of 
the Urban Renewal Area, the City intends to utilize the powers conferred under Chapter 
403 and Chapter 15A, Code of Iowa. Activities may include: 
 

1. To undertake and carry out urban renewal projects through the execution 
of leases, contracts, and other instruments. 

 
2. To make or have made surveys, studies, and plans necessary for the 

implementation of the Urban Renewal Program or specific urban renewal 
projects. 

 
3. To arrange for or cause to be provided the construction, relocation, or repair 

of public infrastructure, including but not limited to, streets, water, storm 
sewer, sanitary sewer, public utilities, sidewalks, street lights and signs, 
streetscaping and landscaping, or other related facilities and activities in 
connection with urban renewal projects. 

 
4. To acquire property through a variety of means (purchase, lease, option, 

contract, etc.) and to hold, clear, or prepare the property for redevelopment, 
or to dispose of property. 

 

354

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

5. To provide for the construction of specific site improvements such as 
grading and site preparation activities including site/soil reports and studies, 
access roads and parking, fencing, utility connections, and related activities. 

 
6. To make loans, forgivable loans, tax rebate payments, or other types of 

economic development grants or incentives to private persons or 
businesses for economic development purposes on such terms as may be 
determined by the City Council. 

 
7. To use tax increment financing to facilitate urban renewal projects, 

including, but not limited to, financing to achieve a more marketable and 
competitive land offering price and to provide for necessary physical 
improvements and infrastructure. 

 
8. To borrow money and to provide security therefor. 

 
9. To provide contributions and/or incentives for appropriate redevelopment 

and development projects. 
 
10. To use any or all other powers granted by the Urban Renewal Act to develop 

and provide for improved economic conditions for the City of Cedar Falls 
and the State of Iowa. 

 
Nothing herein shall be construed as a limitation on the power of the City to exercise any 
lawful power granted to the City under Chapter 15, Chapter 15A, Chapter 403, Chapter 
427B, or any other provision of the Code of Iowa in furtherance in of the objectives of this 
Urban Renewal Plan. 

 
ELIGIBLE URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 

 
1. Development Agreements 
 
The City expects to consider requests for development agreements for projects that are 
consistent with this Plan, in the City’s sole discretion. Such agreements are unknown at 
this time, but based on past history, and dependent on development opportunities and 
climate, the City expects to consider a broad range of incentives as authorized by this 
Plan, including but not limited to, land, loans, grants, tax rebates, public infrastructure 
assistance, and other incentives. The costs of such development agreements are 
estimated not to exceed $5,000,000. 
 
2. Land Acquisitions 
 
The City expects to consider acquiring land in the Urban Renewal Area to accommodate 
future economic development and facilitate the provision of public services in an efficient 
manner that allows the City to provide these services to new and expanded businesses 
in the Urban Renewal Area. These acquisitions are expected to occur over the life of the 

355

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

Area as development occurs. The costs of such land acquisitions are estimated not to 
exceed $5,000,000. 
 
3. Extensions of Utilities by Cedar Falls Utilities 
 
The City expects to enter into agreements with Cedar Falls Utilities providing for the 
extension of services by Cedar Falls Utilities in the Urban Renewal Area, to ensure the 
installation and/or relocation of utility infrastructure as necessary to accommodate and 
promote economic development and growth in the Urban Renewal Area. The 
agreement(s) will likely provide for the provision of infrastructure for the following utilities: 
gas, water, communication, and electric. The extension of utility services will take place 
over the life of the Area as development occurs. The cost of these agreements to be 
reimbursed through tax increment financing is estimated not to exceed $5,000,000. 
 
 
4. Capital Improvement Projects/Public Infrastructure Projects 
 

Project 
Estimated 

Project Date 
Not to 

Exceed 
 

Rationale 

Land preparation for 
industrial/commercial development 
within the Urban Renewal Area, 
including design, construction and 
related project expenses. 

2023-2043 $5,000,000 Economic 
Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

Sanitary sewer and storm sewer 
installation within the Urban 
Renewal Area, including design, 
construction and related project 
expenses.  

2023-2043 $5,000,000 Economic 
Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

Construction of new roadways within 
the Urban Renewal Area, including 
design, construction and related 
project expenses. 

2023-2043 $5,000,000 Economic 
Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 
 
 

 

 TOTAL: $15,000,000  

 
5.  Fees, Costs, and Expenses (for urban renewal projects and planning) 
  

Project 
Estimated 

Project Date Not to Exceed 

356

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

Legal Fees: 

Legal, consulting, recording, publication, and other 
miscellaneous fees associated with land 
acquisition and economic development projects 
occurring within the Urban Renewal Area. 

2023-2043 $500,000 

Personnel Costs and Other Administrative Expenses to Support Urban Renewal 
Projects and Planning: 

Staffing/Personnel related expenses including but 
not limited to salary and benefits incurred by City 
personnel tied to supporting economic 
development and urban renewal projects within the 
Urban Renewal Area. Plan Amendment preparation 
and administration included. 

2023-2043 $500,000 

Engineering, Planning, and Study Costs: 

Engineering, design and inspection costs incurred 
for future roadway and infrastructure projects 
within the Urban Renewal Area. 

2023-2043 $1,000,000 

Planning, design, studies and associated costs for 
the development of land within the Urban Renewal 
Area.   

2023-2043 $500,000 

Traffic planning and studies tied to any roadway 
improvement projects. 

2023-2043 $200,000 

 
FINANCIAL DATA 

 
Constitutional debt limit   $174,549,626 
   
Current general obligation debt:  $11,850,000 

Proposed amount of indebtedness to be 
incurred: 
(This amount does not include financing costs, which 
will be incurred over the life of the Area.) 

 $32,700,000 
 

 
 

PROPOSED AMOUNT OF LOANS, ADVANCES, INDEBTEDNESS  
OR BONDS TO BE INCURRED 

 
A specific amount of actual debt to be incurred for the Eligible Urban Renewal Projects 
has not yet been determined. This document is for planning purposes only. The estimated 
project costs in this Plan are estimates only and will be incurred and spent over a number 
of years. In no event will the City’s constitutional debt limit be exceeded. The City Council 
will consider each project proposal on a case-by-case basis to determine if it is in the 

357

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

City’s best interest to participate before approving an urban renewal project or expense. 
It is further expected that such indebtedness, including interest on the same, may be 
financed in whole or in part with tax increment revenues from the Urban Renewal Area. 
 
Subject to the foregoing, it is estimated that the cost of the Eligible Urban Renewal 
Projects as described above will be approximately $32,700,000. 
 

URBAN RENEWAL FINANCING 
 
The City intends to utilize various financing tools such as those described below to 
successfully undertake the proposed urban renewal actions.  The City has the statutory 
authority to use a variety of tools to finance physical improvements within the Areas.  
These include: 
 

A. Tax Increment Financing. 
 

Under Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, urban renewal areas may utilize 
the tax increment financing mechanism to finance the costs of public 
improvements, economic development incentives, or other urban renewal 
projects.  Upon creation of a tax increment district within the Area, by 
ordinance, the assessment base is frozen and the amount of tax revenue 
available from taxes paid on the difference between the frozen base and 
the increased value, if any, is segregated into a separate fund for the use 
by the City to pay costs of the eligible urban renewal projects.  Certain 
increased taxes generated by any new development, above the base value, 
are distributed to the taxing entities, if not requested by the City, and in any 
event upon the expiration of the tax increment district. 
 
The City may also determine to use tax increment financing to provide 
incentives such as cash grants, loans, tax rebates, or other incentives to 
developers or private entities in connection with the urban renewal projects 
identified in this Plan.  In addition, the City may determine to issue general 
obligation bonds, tax increment revenue bonds or such other obligations, or 
loan agreements for the purpose of making loans or grants of public funds 
to private businesses located in the Area for urban renewal projects.  
Alternatively, the City may determine to use available funds for making such 
loans or grants or other incentives related to urban renewal projects.  In any 
event, the City may determine to use tax increment financing to reimburse 
the City for any obligations or advances. 
 

B. General Obligation Bonds. 
 

Under Division III of Chapter 384 and Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa, 
the City has the authority to issue and sell general obligation bonds for 
specified essential and general corporate purposes, including the 
acquisition and construction of certain public improvements within the 

358

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

Area and for other urban renewal projects or incentives for development 
consistent with this Plan.  Such bonds are payable from the levy of 
unlimited ad valorem taxes on all the taxable property within the City of 
Cedar Falls.  It may be, the City will elect to abate some or all of the debt 
service on these bonds with incremental taxes from this Area. 

 
Nothing herein shall be construed as a limitation on the power of the City to exercise 
any lawful power granted to the City under Chapter 15, Chapter 15A, Chapter 403, 
Chapter 427B, or any other provision of the Code of Iowa in furtherance of the 
objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan. 
 

PROPERTY ACQUISITION/DISPOSITION 
 
The City may finance or assist with financing the cost of land acquisitions in the Area. The 
City will follow applicable legal proceedings and procedures for the acquisition and 
disposition of property. 
 

RELOCATION 
 
The City does not expect there to be any relocation required of residents or businesses 
as part of the proposed urban renewal projects; however, if any relocation is necessary, 
the City will follow all applicable relocation requirements. 
 

STATE AND LOCAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
All provisions necessary to conform to state and local laws will be complied with by the 
City and/or the developer in implementing this Urban Renewal Plan and its supporting 
documents, objectives, and renewal activities. 
 

SEVERABILITY  
 
In the event one or more provisions contained in the Urban Renewal Plan shall be held 
for any reason to be invalid, illegal, unauthorized, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, unauthorization, or enforceability shall not affect any other provision 
of this Urban Renewal Plan, and this Urban Renewal Plan shall be construed and 
implemented as if such provisions had never been contained herein.  
 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENTS 
 
This Urban Renewal Area Plan may be amended from time to time for a number of 
reasons, including but not limited to, to change in the area, to add new urban renewal 
projects, to update and/or modify ongoing urban renewal projects, to delete completed 
urban renewal projects, to add or change land use controls and regulations, to modify 
goals or types of renewal activities, or to amend property acquisition and disposition 
provisions. The City Council may amend this Plan pursuant to appropriate procedures 
under Iowa Code Chapter 403. 

359

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

 
EFFECTIVE PERIOD 

  
This Urban Renewal Plan will become effective upon its adoption by the Cedar Falls City 
Council and will remain in effect until it is repealed by City Council.  
 
With respect to the property included within the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal 
Area, which is also included in an ordinance which designates that property as a tax 
increment area, the use of incremental property tax revenues or the “division of revenue,” 
as those words are used in Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa, is limited to twenty (20) 
years beginning with the first calendar year following the calendar year in which the City 
first certifies to the County Auditor the amount of any loans, advances, indebtedness, or 
bonds which qualify for payment from the incremental property tax revenues attributable 
to that property within a TIF ordinance of the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area. 
The division of revenues shall continue on the Urban Renewal Area for the maximum 
period allowed by law. 
 
It is possible that separate TIF ordinances for separate parcel(s) may be adopted as 
development in the Area warrants.  In that case, each separate TIF ordinance may have 
a separate base and separate sunset or expiration date.   
 
At all times, the use of tax increment financing revenues (including the amount of loans, 
advances, indebtedness or bonds which qualify for payment from the division of revenue 
provided in Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa) by the City for activities carried out in the 
Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area shall be limited as deemed appropriate by 
the City Council and consistent with all applicable provisions of law. 
  

360

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

EXHIBIT A 
MAP OF THE SOUTHWEST CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

361

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

 
EXHIBIT B 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SOUTHWEST CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL 
AREA 

 
 
Olander, Graham & Ladage Property: 

The South one-half (S ½) of the Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section 

thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West; 

 

And also, 

 

S Union Road ROW (West side): 

The East thirty-three (33) feet of the South one-half (S ½) of the Southeast 

Quarter (SE ¼) of Section thirty-three (33), Township eighty-nine (89) North, 

Range fourteen (14) West; 

 

And also, 

 

West Ridgeway Ave ROW (North side): 

The North fifty (50) feet of the East two thousand-six-hundred and eighty 

feet (2,680) of the West two thousand-eight-hundred and twenty-five feet (2,825) 

of Section four (4), Township eighty-eight (88) North, Range fourteen (14) West. 

 
  

362

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

EXHIBIT C 

 

AGREEMENT TO INCLUDE AGRICULTURAL LAND 

IN THE SOUTHWEST CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, (the “City”) has proposed the Southwest Cedar Falls 

Urban Renewal Plan (the “Plan”) for the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area (the “Urban Renewal 

Area”), pursuant to Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa, in order to undertake activities authorized by that 

Chapter; and 

WHEREAS, it has been proposed that the boundaries of the Urban Renewal Area will include 

certain property which is owned by the Agricultural Land Owner listed below (the “Property”); and 

WHEREAS, Section 403.17(10) of the Code of Iowa provides that no property may be included 

in an urban renewal area which meets the definition in that Section of “agricultural land,” until the owners 

of such property agree to include such property in such urban renewal area; and  

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the portion of the Property owned by the Agricultural 

Land Owner below meets the definition of “agricultural land” in Section 403.17(3) of the Code of Iowa; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby certified and agreed by the Agricultural Land Owner as follows: 

1. The Agricultural Land Owner hereby certifies that he/she is the owner of certain Property 

within the proposed Urban Renewal Area and agrees that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, may include such 

Property within the Urban Renewal Area. 

2. The Agricultural Land Owner further authorizes the governing body of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, to pass any resolution or ordinance necessary to designate said Property as part of the Urban 

Renewal Area under Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa, and to proceed with activities authorized under 

said Chapter. 

 

DATED this _____ day of _______________, 2022. 
 

 

Agricultural Land Owner’s Name:  
__________________________________ 
 

Signature:       

Date:       

Witness:       
 

 

 

Agricultural Land Owner’s Name:  
__________________________________ 
 

Signature:       

Date:       

Witness:       
 

Agricultural Land Owner’s Name:  
__________________________________ 
 

Signature:       

Date:       

Witness:       
 

 

 
 

363

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

EXHIBIT D  

 

JOINT CITY/COUNTY AGREEMENT 

  

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls (the “City”) has proposed to adopt the Southwest 

Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area which includes property that is outside, but within two miles of, 

its corporate boundaries for the purpose of engaging in proposed urban renewal projects on said 

property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, has reviewed the 

Urban Renewal Plan for said Urban Renewal Area, and has determined that the proposed Urban 

Renewal Area and completion of the eligible projects therein, are in the best interests of the City 

of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Iowa Code Section 403.17(4) requires a “joint agreement” between the City 

and the County before the City can proceed with said projects. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA AND THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 1. The Board of Supervisors of Black Hawk County, State of Iowa hereby agrees and 

authorizes the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to proceed with including property within two 

miles of the City of Cedar Falls in the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area as described in 

the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan, and the undertaking of the eligible urban renewal 

projects therein. 

 

 2. This “joint agreement” is intended to meet the requirements of Iowa Code Chapter 

403.17(4) with respect to the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area located in or within two 

miles of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa. 

 

 3. This Joint Agreement has been duly authorized by the governing bodies of Black 

Hawk County, State of Iowa and the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa. 

  

364

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 2022.  

 

 BLACK HAWK COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA 

 

 

  

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

Auditor 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

 On this __________ day of _______________, 2022, before me a Notary Public in and for 

the State of Iowa, personally appeared __________________________ and 

__________________________ to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they 

are the Chairperson and Auditor, respectively, of Black Hawk County, State of Iowa, a political 

subdivision, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said political 

subdivision, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said political subdivision 

by authority and resolution of its Board of Supervisors, and said Chairperson and Auditor 

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said political subdivision by it 

voluntarily executed. 

  

 

  

Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, 

Iowa 

 
  

365

Item 27.



 

 

Final 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 20__.  

 

 

 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA 

 

 

   

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

   

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF _______ 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

 On this __________ day of _______________, 20__, before me a Notary Public in and 

for said County, personally appeared __________________________ and 

__________________________ to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that 

they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, a 

Municipal Corporation, created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal 

affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipal Corporation, and that said 

instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipal Corporation by authority and 

resolution of its City Council, and said Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to 

be the free act and deed of said Municipal Corporation by it voluntarily executed. 

  

 

  

Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, 

Iowa 

 

366

Item 27.



 

CERTIFICATE 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in any 

way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a notice of 

meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of the Council 

and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the public and clearly 

designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to the local rules of the 

Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance notice to the 

public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the meeting as required 

by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further certify that the individuals 

named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of their respective city offices 

as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may be stated in the proceedings, 

and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or threatened involving the incorporation, 

organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the right of the individuals named therein as 

officers to their respective positions. 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2022. 

  

 

 

  

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

(SEAL) 

 
02124187-1\10283-188 

367

Item 27.



368

Item 28.



369

Item 28.



370

Item 28.



371

Item 28.



372

Item 28.



373

Item 28.



374

Item 28.



375

Item 28.



376

Item 28.



377

Item 28.



378

Item 28.



379

Item 28.



380

Item 28.



381

Item 28.



382

Item 28.



383

Item 28.



384

Item 28.



385

Item 28.



386

Item 28.



387

Item 28.



388

Item 28.



389

Item 28.



390

Item 28.



391

Item 28.



392

Item 28.



393

Item 28.



394

Item 28.



395

Item 28.



396

Item 28.



397

Item 28.



398

Item 28.



399

Item 28.



400

Item 28.



401

Item 28.



402

Item 28.



403

Item 28.



404

Item 28.



405

Item 28.



406

Item 28.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of November 21, 2022
	221121MINUTES

	Item 2.	Reconsider Resolution-Agreement for PD-CF Storage
	1_CC Memo for CF Storage, LLC Public Hearing 11-21-22
	2_CF Storage, LLC Site Map
	3_EXECUTION VERSION Agreement for Private Development - CF Storage, LLC
	4_Authorizing Resolution - CF Storage, LLC (1)

	Item 3.	3020-Fireworks
	1-3020-Fireworks-Final
	2-3020-Fireworks-Redline

	Item 4.	3021-Amended-Comp Plan Voting Threshold
	1. 3021-Comp Plan voting threshold
	1. Ord-Amended Redline-Comp Plan voting threshold
	2. PH on voting threshold (1)
	3. Chapter_18___PLANNING (2)
	4. Dec 2002 staff report (1)
	5. Dec 2002 P-Z recommendation (1)
	6. Crews veto memo (1)

	Item 5.	3022-Zoning-Voting Threshold
	3. Ord Zoning amendment voting threshold (1)
	1. PH on voting threshold (1)
	2. Sec._26_4.___Amendments_to_chapter_ (2)
	4. Dec 2002 staff report (1)
	5. Dec 2002 P-Z recommendation (1)
	6. Crews veto memo (1)

	Item 6.	Resignation-V&T
	Carlson Resignation

	Item 7.	Appointments - HPC
	2022-11-23_HPC_RoelofseOloughlin
	HPC Appts

	Item 8.	Appointment of Student Liaison
	CFD 1144.22a - Appointment Of Student Liaison to City Council

	Item 9.	Civil Service Commission-Certified Lists
	DEI Spec CertList 11-2022
	Eng Tech I-CertList11-2022

	Item 10.	Departmental Monthly Report
	10 - October 2022 Departmental Monthly Report

	Item 11.	Liquor Beer 12-5-22
	Liquor Beer 12-5-22

	Item 13.	Personnel Policy Changes
	12-05-22 Personnel Policy Change Memo to Mayor Council
	809 Disciplinary Procedure Redline 11-22-22

	Item 14.	Personnel Policy-Grievance
	903 Grievance procedure Redline 11-22-22

	Item 15.	Principal Engineer Recruitment Agreement
	FY23 Principal Engineer Recruitment Agreement - Memo to Council
	Protham Principal Engineer Recruitment Agreement

	Item 16.	CFPL Branding Project Contract
	Memo Branding Contract Signed

	Item 17.	Rec Fee Schedule
	Memo PR fees 2023 updated
	2023 Rec Fees

	Item 18.	IHSEMD BRIC Grant - Stormwater Resilience Planning
	1. Council memo
	BRIC 2021-IA-0003 City of Cedar Falls Subaward Agreement - 11.16.2022
	Drainage Master Plan Areas - Full - Reduced

	Item 19.	INRCOG HSEMD BRIC - Grant Administration
	1a. Council memo
	1b. Drainage Master Plan Areas - Full - Reduced
	2. City-INRCOG Standard Profesional Service Agreement - Updated
	3. City-INRCOG Attachment A-Scope of Services
	4. Exhibit B Goods Services - Insurance Requirements
	5. Exhibit C - Terms and Conditions for Federal Compliance
	6. City-of-Cedar-Falls_Iowa-Northland COI.pdf (7-1-2022 through 6-30-2023)
	7. CF Govt Immunity

	Item 20.	Vacancy Agreement-Main Street Reconstruction
	1. Vacancy Agreement - 1203 Main Street - Memo
	2. Vacancy Agreement - 1203 Main Street

	Item 21.	2021 Patching Project - Final Acceptance
	1. Final Out Memo - 2021 Patching Project
	2. Pay APP 5 - Retainage Signed 10-7-22
	3. PPM-Boulder Contracting
	4. Lein Waivers

	Item 22.	Hartman Reserve Stormwater Education Agreement
	1. Memo Black Hawk Educational Hartman Contract
	2023-26 stormwater agreement_

	Item 23.	M&R Agreement -Tooth Trio
	1. Memo MRA - Tooth Trio
	2. Updated MRA
	2. Termination of MRA

	Item 24.	M&R Agreement - CUCCC (5109 Nordic Drive)
	1. Memo - MRA CUCCC (5109 Nordic Drive)
	2. MRA - CUCCC (5109 Nordic Drive)

	Item 25.	M&R Agreement - D&D Midwest Investments (5630 Westminster Drive)
	1. Memo - MRA D&D Midwest Investments (5630 Westminster Dr)
	2. MRA - D&D Midwest Investments (5630 Westminster Dr)

	Item 26.	Set PH - CFU Easement
	1. Memo - Setting of Public Hearing for West Viking Indutrial Park Phase V CFU Easement
	2. Location of Proposed Easement
	3. Easement Agreement

	Item 27.	Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan
	1_Council Memo on Southwest CF URP Setting Consultation and Public Hearing December 5, 2022
	2_Southwest Cedar Falls URP - Resolution Setting Dates (with Exhibit 1 attached)

	Item 28.	Bills and Claims 12/05/22
	1 Daily Invoices 120522
	2 Council Invoices 120522

	Bottom

